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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

To the Members of CMR Green Technologies Limited

Report on the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements
Opinion

We have audited the accompanying Consolidated Financial Statements of CMR Green
Technologies Limited (“the Holding Company™) and its subsidiaries (the Holding Company and its
subsidiaries together referred to as "the Group") and its joint ventures comprising of the Consolidated
Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2025, and the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss (including
Other Comprehensive Income), the Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity and the
Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows for the year then ended, and notes to the Consolidated
Financial Statements, including a summary of material accounting policies and other explanatory
information (hereinafter referred to 2s “the Consolidated Financial Statements™).

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us and
based on the consideration of reports of other auditors on separate finandial statements and on the
other financial information of the subsidiaries and joint ventures, the aforesaid Consolidated Financial
Statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013, as amended (the “Act”) in the
manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the Indian Accounting Standards
prescribed under Section 133 of the Act read with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards)
Rules, 2015, as amended (“Ind AS”) and other accounting principles generally accepted in India, of
the consolidated state of affairs of the Group and its joint ventures as at March 31, 2025, its
consolidated profit and other comprehensive income, consolidated changes in equity, and its
consolidated cash flows for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under section
143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those Standards are further described in the Auditor’s
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our report. We are
independent of the Group and its joint ventures in accordance with the ‘Code of Ethics’ issued by the
Insttute of Chartered Accountants of India (‘ICAI") together with the ethical requirements that are
relevant to our audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements under the provisions of the Act and
the Rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these
requirements and the ICAI’s Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained and
on consideration of audit reports of other auditors referred to in paragraph (a) of the “Other Matters”
secton below, is suffident and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the
Consolidated Financial Statements.
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Information other than the Consolidated Financial Statements and Auditots’ Report thercon

The Holding Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the other informaton. The other
informaton comprises the information included in the Director’s Report including Annexures to the
Director’s Report but does not include the Consolidated Financial Statements and our auditor’s report
thereon. The aforementioned other information is expected to be made available to us after the date
of this auditor’s repot.

Our opinion on the Consolidated Finandial Statements does not cover the other information and we
do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements, our responsibility is to read
the other information identified above when it becomes available and, in doing so, consider whether
the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge
obtained in the audit, or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we have
performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information; we are required
to report that fact.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Consolidated
Financial Statements

The Holding Company’s management and Board of Directors are responsible for the matters stated
in section 134(5) of the Act with respect to the preparation and presentation of these Consolidated
Financial Statements that give a true and fair view of the consolidated financial position, consolidated
financial performance, including other comprehensive income, consolidated change in equity and
consolidated cash flows of the Group including its joint ventures in accordance with the accounting
principles generally accepted in India, including the Indian Accounting Standards (“Ind AS”)
prescribed under section 133 of the Act read with the Companies (India Accounting Standards) Rule
2015 amended. The respective Board of Directors of the companies included in the Group and of its
joint ventures are responsible for maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the
provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Group and its joint ventures including and
for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate
accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design,
implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating
cffectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the
preparation and presentation of the Consoclidated Financial Statements that give a true and fair view
and are irec from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, which have been used for the
purpose of preparation of the Consolidated Financial Statements by the Directors of the Holding
Company, as aforesaid.

In preparing the Consolidated Financial Statements, the respective management and Board of
Directors of the companies included in the Group and of its joint ventures are responsible for
assessing the ability of the Group and its joint ventures to continue as a going concern, disclosing,
as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless
management and Boarg of Direciors either intends to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or
has no realistic alternative but to do so.
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The respective management and Board of Directors of the companies included in the Group and of
its joint ventures are also responsible for oversecing the financial reporting process of the Group and
of its joint ventures.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the Consolidated Financial
Statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue
an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is
not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material
if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic
decisions of users taken on the basis of these Consolidated Financial Statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

* Identify and assess the risks of materal misstatement of the Consolidated Financial Statements,
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those dsks, and
obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and approptiate to provide a basis for our opinion. The rsk
of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from
error, as fraud may invaolve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the
override of internal control.

* Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under Sectioni 143(3)(i) of the Act, we are
also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the Holding Company has adequate
internal financial controls with reference to Consolidated Financial Statements in place and the
operatng effectiveness of such controls.

*  Evaluate the appropsiateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management and Board of Directors.

* Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s and Board of Directors use of the going-
concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material
uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the ability of
the Group and its joint ventures to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related
disclosures in the Consolidated Financial Statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to
modify our opinion. Qur conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of
our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Group and its joint
ventures to cease to continue as a going concern.

* Evaluate the overall presentation, structure, and content of the Consolidated Financial Statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the Consolidated Financial Statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.
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« Obtain sufficient appropriate audit cvidence regarding the financial information of the entities
within the Group and its joint ventures to express an opinion on the Consolidated Financial
Statements. We are responsible for the direcdon, supervision and performance of the audit of the
financial statements of such enttes included in the Consolidated Financial Statements of which
we are the indcpendent auditors. For the other entides included in the Consolidated Financial
Statements, which have been audited by the other auditors, such other auditors remain responsible
for the direction, supervision and performance of the audits carried out by them. We remain solely
responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance of the Holding Company regarding, among
other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any
significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant
ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and
other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable,
related safeguards.

Other Matters

a) We did not audit the financial statements of 5 subsidiaries, whose financial statement reflects total
assets of Rs. 1,08,327.21 Lacs as at March 31, 2025, total revenues of Rs. 4,95,608.91 Lacs, net
profits of Rs. 6,383.14 Lacs and net cash outflows of Rs. 23.06 Lacs for the year ended on that
date, as considered in the Consolidated Financial Statements (before consolidation adjustments),
whose financial statements have not been audited by us. These financial statements have been
audited by other auditors, whose reports have been furnished to us by the Management and our
opinion on the Consolidated Financial Statements, in so far as it relates to the amounts and
disclosures included in respect of these subsidiaries and our report in terms of sub-section (3) and
(11) of Section 143 of the Act, in so far as it relates to the aforesaid subsidiaries is based solely on
the reports of other auditors.

b) Onec of the subsidiary is located outside India whose financial statements reflects total revenues
of Rs. 96.84 Lacs for the year ended March 31, 2025, as considered in the Consolidated Financial
Statements (before consolidation adjustments), whose financial statements and other financial
information have been prepared in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in
that country. These financial statements and other financial information are vnaudited and have
been certified by the Management, and our opinion on the Consolidated Financial Statements, in
so far as it relates to the amounts and disclosures included in respect of the said subsidiary, and
our report in terms of sub-secton (3) and (11) of Section 143 of the Act, in so far as it relates to
the aforesaid subsidiary, is based solely on such management certified financial statements and
other financial information. The Holding Company’s management has converted the financial
statements and other financial informadon of such subsidiary located outside India from
accounting principles generally accepted in that country to accounting principles generally
accepted in India.
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We have reviewed these ccaversion adjustments tade by the Holding Company’s management.
Our opinion in so far as it relates to the balances and affairs of such subsidiary located outside
India is based on the conversion adjustments prepared by the management of the Holding
Company and reviewed by us.

c) The Consolidated Financial Statements include the Group’s share of net loss of Rs. 493.31 Lacs
for the year ended March 31, 2025, as considered in the Consolidated Financial Statements, in
respect of one joint venture, whose financial statements and other financial information have not
been audited by us. These financial statements and other financial informaton are unaudited and
have been certified by the Management, and our opinion on the Consolidated Financial
Statements, in so far as it relates to the amounts and disclosures included in respect of the said
joint venture, and our report in terms of sub-section (3) and (11) of Section 143 of the Act, in so
far as it relates to the aforesaid joint venture, is based solely on such management-certified financial
statements and other financial information.

d) We draw attention to note 42(a) to the Consolidated Financial Statements, wherein two joint
ventures have not been considered for consolidation since these are not operational and there is
an ongoing disputes between these joint ventures.

e) The Consolidated Financial Statements of the Company for the financial year ended March 31,
2024, were audited by the predecessor auditor who expressed an unmodified opinion on July 31,
2024.

Our opinion above on the Consolidated Financial Statements, and our report on Other Legal and
Reguiatory Requirements below, is not modified in respect of the above matters with respect to our
reliance on the work done and the reports of the other auditors and the financial statements and other
financial informaton cerdfied by the Management.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. As required by the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2020 (“"the Order"), issued by the Central
Government of India in terms of sub-Section (11) of Section 143 of the Act, based on our audit
and on the consideration of report of the other auditors on separate financial statements and the
other financial information of the subsidiary companies, incorporated in India, as noted in the
'Other Matters' paragraph we give in the "Annexure A" a statement on the matters specified in
paragraph 3(xxi) of the Order.

2. As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, based on our audit and on the consideration of reports
of the other auditors on separate financial statements and other financial information of the
subsidiaries 2s noted in the 'Other Matters' paragraph, we report, to the extent applicable, that:

(3} We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our
knowledge and belicf were necessary for the purposes of our audit of the Consolidated
Financial Statements.
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(b) In cur opinien, proper books of account as required by law relating to preparation of the
aforesaid Consolidated Financial Statements have been kept so far as it appears from our
examination of those books and the reports of the other auditors, except for the matter stated
in the paragraph (i)(vi) below on reporting under Rule 11(g).

(c) The consolidated balance sheet, the consolidated statement of profit and loss, (including other
comprehensive income), the consolidated statement of changes in equity and the consolidated
statement of cash flows dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the relevant books of
account maintained for the purpose of the preparation of the Consolidated Financial
Staternents.

(d) In our opinion, the aforesaid Consolidated Financial Statements comply with the Indian
Accounting Standards ("Ind AS") specified under section 133 of the Act read with the
Companies (Indian Accountng Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended.

(¢} On the basis of the written representations received from the directors of the Holding
Company as on March 31, 2025 taken on record by the Board of Directors of the Holding
Company and the reports of the statutory auditors of its subsidiaries incorporated in India,
none of the directors of the Group companies incorporated in India are disqualified as on
March 31, 2025 from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act.

(f) The modification relating to the maintenance of accounts and other matters connected
therewith are stated in the paragraph (b) above on reporting under Secton 143(3) (b) and
paragraph (1)(v1) below on reporting under Rule 11(g).

{(g) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference to Consolidated
Financial Statements of the Group which are companies incorporated in India, and the
operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate Report in “Annexure B”. QOur
report expresses an unmodified opinion on the adequacy and operating effectiveness of the
Group’s internal financial controls with reference to Consolidated Financial Statements.

(h) In our opinion, according to information and explanations given to us, the remuneration paid
by the Holding Company to its directors is within the limits laid prescribed under Section 197
of the Act and the rules thereunder. Based on the consideration of reports of other auditors
provisions of Section 197 of the Act read with Schedule V to the Act are not applicable to its
subsidiaries.

() With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with
Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, as amended, in our opinion and
to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us and based on the
consideration of the report of the other auditors on separate financial statements and also the
other financial information of the subsidiaries and joint ventures as noted in the ‘Other
Matters’ paragraph:

1. The Consolidated Financial Statements disclose the impact of pending litigations on the
consolidated financial position of the Group and its joint ventures. — Refer note 31(b) to
the Consolidated Financial Statements.
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. The Group and its one joint venture did not have any material foreseeable losses on long-
term contracts including derivative contracts during the year ended Maxch 31, 2025.

iii. There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education
and Protection Fund by the Holding Company, its subsidiaries and one joint venture
incorporated in India.

tv.  (a) The respective managements of the [Holding Company, its subsidiardes and one joint
venture incorporated in India whose financial statements have been audited under
the Act have represented to us and other auditors of such subsidiaries that, to the
best of their knowledge and belief, as disclosed in note 46 to the Consolidated
Financial Statements, no funds have been advanced or loaned or invested (either
from borrowed funds or share premium or any other sources or kind of funds) by
the Holding Company or any of such subsidiaries and one joint venture to or in any
other person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities ("Intermediaries"), with the
understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, as on the date of this audit
report, that such parties shall, directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or
entities identfied in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Holding Company
or any of such subsidiaries and joint venture ("Ultimate Bencficiaries") or provide
any guaranree, security or the like on behalf of the Uldmate Beneficiaties;

(b) The respective managements of the Holding Company;, its subsidiaries and its one
joint venture which are companies incorporated in India whose financial statements
have been audited under the Act have represented to us and the other auditors of
such subsidiaries that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, other than as disclosed
in the note 46 to the Consolidated Financial Statements, no funds have been received
by the Holding Company or any of such subsidiaries and joint venture from any
person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities ("Funding Pardes"), with the
understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Holding Company
or any of such subsidiaries and joint venture shall, directly or indirectly, lend or invest
in other persons or entitics identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of
the Funding Party ("Ultimate Beneficiaries") or provide any guarantee, security or the
like on behalf of the Ulimate Beneficiaries; and

(c) Based on the audit procedures that have been considered reasonable and approprate
in the circumstances performed by us and that performed by the auditors of the
subsidiaries which are companies incorporated in India whose financial statements
have been audited under the Act, and according to the information and explanations
provided to us by the Management of the Holding company in this regard nothing
has come to our or other auditor's notice that has caused us or the other auditors to
believe that the representations under sub-clause (a) and (b) contain any material
misstatement.

v. No dividend has been declared or paid during the year by the Holding Company; its
subsidiaries and joint venture incorporated in India.
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vi. Based on our examination which included test checks and that performed Gy the respective
auditors of the subsidiaries which are companies incorporated in India whose financial
statements have been audited under the Act, the Holding Company, subsidiaries and joint
venture have used an accounting software for maintaining its books of account for the
financial year ended March 31, 2025, which has a feature of recording audit trail (edit log)
facility and the same has operated throughout the year for all relevant transactions
recorded in the software except that, audit trail feature is not enabled for certain master
tables and direcr changes to the undetlying database using privileged/administrative rights
in respect of one of the sofrware, as described in Note 47 to the Consolidated Financial
Statements. Further, during the course of our audit, we and respective auditors of the
above referred subsidiaries did not come across any instance of the audit trail feature being
tampered with in respect of accounting sofrwares where the audit trail has been enabled
and the audit trail has been preserved by the Holding Company and above referred
subsidiaries for these softwares as per the statutory requirements for record retention.

For ASA & Associates LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No: 009571N JINE00006

N

Nitin Gupta
Partner
Membership No. 122499

UDIN: 25122499BMICWRKP3552

Place: New Delli
Date: May 21, 2025
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Annexure - A to the Independent Anditors’ Report of even date on the Consolidated Financial
Statements of the CMR Green Technologies Limited

Referred to in paragraph 1 under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’
section of our report of cven date

Report on the clause 3 (xxi) of the Compzanies (Auditor Report) Order, 2020 (CARO)

According to the information and explanadons given to us, the following companies incorporated in
India and included in the consolidated financial statements, have qualifications or adverse remarks
made by the respective auditors in their reports in the Companies (Auditor Report) Order (CARO):

Sr. No. | Name of the CIN Holding/ CAROQO Clause
entities Subsidiary /JV

1 CMR Green U00337HR2005PLCO85675 Holding 3()(c)
Technologies Company
Limited

2 CMR Eco U27320HR2021PTC098914 Subsidiary 3{(xvii)
Aluminium Company
Private Lirnited

The above does not include, comments, if any, in respect of the following entity as the CARQO report
relatng to i1t has not been issued by its auditors dll the date of our auditor’s report:

Sr. No. |Name of the entity CIN Holding Company/
Subsidiary/
|Associate/ Joint
[Venture

1 Nikkei CMR Aluminium India | U27300PN2019PTC188144 | Joint Venture
Private Limited
For ASA 8: Associates LLP

Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No: 009571N/N500006

Nades

Nitin Gupta

Partner

Membership No. 122499
UDIN: 25122495 BMKWKP3552

Place: New Delhi
Date: May 21, 2025
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Annexure - B to the Independent Auditors® Report of even date on the Consolidated Financial
Statements of the CMR Green Technologies Limited

Referred to in paragraph 2(g) under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’
section of our report of even date

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of
the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act®)

In conjunction with our audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements of CMR Green
Technologies Limited (hereinafter referred to as the “Holding Company™) as of and for the year
ended March 31, 2025, we have audited the internal financial controls over Financial Reporting with
reference to Consolidated Financial Statements of the Holding Company and its subsidiaries (the
Holding Company and its subsidiaries together referred to as “the Group”, which are companies
incorporated in India, as of that date.

Management's Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The respective Board of Directors of the Holding Company, its subsidiary company and one joint
venture, which are companies incorporated in India, are responsible for establishing and maintaining
internal financial controls based on, the internal control over Financial Reporting criteria established
by the Holding Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the
Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Controls over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of India (ICAI). These responsibilities include the design, implementation and
maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operadng effectively for ensuring the
orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to company's policies, the
safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and
completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information,
as required under the Companies Act, 2013.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Holding Company’s internal financial controls over
financial reporting with reference to Consolidated Financial Statements based on our audit. We
conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls
over Iinancial Reporting (the "Guidance Note") and the Standards on Auditing. issued by ICAI and
decmed to be prescribed under Secton 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable
to an audit of internal financial controls, both issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of
India. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirernents and
plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial
controls over financial reporting was established and maintained and if such controls operated
effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal
financial controls system over financial reporting with reference to Consolidated Financial Statements
and their operating cffectiveness.
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Qur audit of internal financial controls over financial reporting with reference to Consolidated
Financial Statements included obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls over financial
reporting with reference to Consolidated Financial Statements, assessing the risk that a material
weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control
based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the Consolidated Financial Statements, whether
duc to fraud or error. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained, and the audit evidence
obtained by the other auditors of the subsidiaries which are incorporate in India, in terms of their
reports referred to in the “Other Matrer’s” paragraph below, is sufficient and appropriate to provide
a basis for our audit opinion on the internal financial controls over financial reporting with reference
to Consolidated Financial Statements of the Group.

Meaning of Internal Firancial Controls with Reference to Consolidated Financial Statements

A Company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide
reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparaton of
Consolidated Financial Statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted
accounting principles. A company's internal financial control over financial reporting includes those
policies and procedures that(1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail,
accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide
reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of Consolidated
Financial Statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts
and cxpenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorizations of
management and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention
or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or dispositon of the company's assets that could
have a material effect on the Consolidated Financial Statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls with Reference to Consolidated Financial
Statements

Because of the inherent limirations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, with
reference to Consolidated Financial Statements including the possibility of collusion or improper
management override of controls, material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be
detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls with reference to
Consolidated Financial Statements to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial
control over financial reporting with reference to Consolidated Financial Statements may become
inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or
procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, the Holding Company and its subsidiary companies, which are companies
incorporated in India have, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls system with
reference to Consolidated Financial Statements and such internal financial controls over financial
reporting were operating effectvely as at March 31, 2025, based on the internal financial conttol over
financial reporting criteria established by the Holding Company considering the essential components
of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Control Over Financial
Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.
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Other Matter

Our report under Section 143(3)(1) of the Act on the adequacy and operating effectiveness of internal
financial controls over financial reporting of the Group, insofar as it relates to 5 subsidiary companies
which are companies incorporated in India, is based solely on the reports of the auditors of such
companies. In respect of one joint venture incorporated in India, whose financial statements arc
unaudited and have been certified by the management, no report under Section 143(3)(1) of the Act
has been furnished to us, and accordingly, we have not reported on the adequacy and operating
effectiveness of internal financial controls over financial reporting of such joint venture.

For ASA & Associates LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No: 009571N/N500006

N

Nitin Gupta
Partmer
Membership No. 122499

UDIN: 25122499BMKWKP3552

Place: New Delhi
Date: May 21, 2025



MR Green Teehnologles Umited

Consolidated Balance Sheet a3 3¢ March 31, 2025
CIN: UC033THRIO05PLCOBS67S

{Amount in Rupees lacs, unless otherwise stated)

Asat At 3t
Particulars Mates March 31. 2028 March 31, 2024
Assats
Hon-curront assets
Property, plant and equipment 6 60,188.95 54,883.60
Capital werk In progresy & 14,992.67 2,600.70
Investment property 7 b
Goodvill 8 - .
Other Intangible assels 9 247.52 176.77
pible assets under development 9 - -
Right-of-ute assets Ma 6.470.52 6.256.57
RvesEMEnts in Jount ventures ita 3,095.2 3.586.19
Financial azsets
i. Investments 10 95.60 76.60
. Loans 10b 43.69 004
1ih. Gther financial assets 10 775.15 B856.95
Deferred tax assets {net) 1t 24228 257
Han-current tax assets {net) 2,152.2% 2,51044
Other non-turrent assets 12 6,110.97 6,278.09
94,411.83 77,148.52
Current assets
inventories 13 82.721.89 61,983.62
Fingncia) assets
1. Trade recelvables 14 78,756.92 62,719,712
1i. Cash and cash equivalent 15 176.76 300.22
iii. Bank balances other than {ii) above 152 619.63 410.35
Iv. Loans 10b 63.99 $9.33
v. Other finanglal assets 10c 6,643.48 2,783.38
Current tax assct {net) 101.90 36.75
Other current assets 12 18,038.16 13,890.3%
1,87,122.73 1,42,18.72
Assets hetd for sale k1)) 5139 839
Total assets 2,81,585.95 2,19,440.63
Equity and Habilitles
Equity
Equity share cagital 16 4,381.11 4,381.11
Other equity 16{a) 1,32,881.59 1.18.799.04
Equity attributable to equity halders of parent 1,37,264.70 1,23,150.15
Non - controlling interest 14,861.05 13.459.69
Total Equity 1,52,128.75 1,36,639.84
Uazbliltles
Nuon-current [Eabllitles
Financial llabitities
| Borrawirgs 17a 2142547 13,661.56
il. Lease habilivies E ] 2,545.07 2,395.76
iii. Other financial liabilities 17 6351 3551
Deferred 1ax liabiluies {net) n 1,949.46 2,184.53
Provisions 18 1,179.56 £34.02
21,163.07 19,461.18
Current labillles
Financial liabilities
i. Bortowings 17 67.977.77 36,203.48
ii. Lease labitities ila 552.61 76235
ik Trade payabtes i7b
~Total cutstanding dues of micra eaterprites and small enterprises 43377 37146
«Total cutstanding dues of craditars other than mitro enterprises and small enterprises 22,693.81 17,416 09
iv. Other finarcla liablikties 17c 5,088.03 387167
Current tax llabitities (ret} 1,27168 1,16592
Provisions 18 33392 59553
Other Nabllities 19 394248 295091
1,02,293.13 53,339.41
Total labllities 1,29,457.20 82,300.79
Total equity 2nd liablllties 2.81,585.35 2.19,440.63

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the idated fi ial |Nate 1 to 47]
A par our report of even date
For ASA B Assoclates LLP For and on behall of the Board of Directars
Chartered Accountants of CMR Green Technolagies Umited
ICAl FTem Reglstration Number - 0095 71N/N500006
Nt o
Nitin Gupta " ‘o
Pattner - i Marging Direttor
Membership No: 122499 o 'CE_
<l nz
Plage : New Delhi .

Date: 21-05-2025 Virender Kumar Shimar

Chlel Financlal officer

Place : Farldabad
Date: 21-05-2025

Selshil 5 1]
Company secretary
M.No. A40576




CMR Green Technologies Limited

Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended March 31, 2025
CIN: UD0337HR2005PLCOB5675

[Amount In Rupees lacs, unless otherwise stated)

For the year ended For the year ended

Particulars Nates March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Revenue from operations 20 6,66,908.82 5.95,244.10
Other income 2] 3,017.80 1.600.25
Tatal Income 6,69,926,62 5,96,844.35
Expenses

Cost of raw materials consumed 22 §,92,594.22 5,30,442.84
Purchase of traded Roods 23a 70.50 11.95
Changes in inventories of finished goods 23b [4,154.16) 631.13
Employee benefits expenses 24 14,534.32 12,912.94
Finance costs 25 6,120.83 5,376.22
Depreciation and amortization expense 26 6,269.26 4,958.57
Other expenses 27 33,492.28 29.504.80
Totzl expenses 6,48,927.25 5,83,838.45
Profit before share in loss of Joint ventures, exceptional item and tax 20,999,37 13,005.90
Share in (loss) of Joint Ventures (net of tax) {493.31) [52.37)
Prafit before exceptional Item and tax 20,506.06 12,953.53
Exceptional item . 1,23,962.69
Profit/{loss) before tax 20,506.06 {1,11,009.16)
Tax expense:

= Current tax 11 5,452.97 3,717.53
- Income tax for earlier years {net} 11 20.78 {115.42)
- Deferred tax charge/(credit) 11 (520.28) (618.63)
- Deferred tax adjustment faor earlier years (net) n 48.83 127.72
- Deferred tax on exceptional item - [30,264.67)
Total tax expenses/{credit) 5,002.30 {27,153.47)
Profitf{loss) for the year 15,503.76 {83,855.69)|
Other comprehensive ingome

Itemns that will not be reclassified to profit ar loss

Re-measurement gain/{loss) on defined benefit plan {18.90) .1
income tax relating to items that will not be classified to profit 4,05 {11.04}
orloss

Cther comprehensive Income (14.85) 33.17
Tatal comprehensive income/{loss) for the year 15,488.91 {83,822.52]
Profit/(toss) for the yaar attributable to:

Equity halders of the parent 14,246.02 (84,432.74)
Nan - controlling interest 1,257.74 577.05
Other comprehensive Income/{loss) for the year attributable to:

Equity holders of the parent {16.43} 30.76
Non - controlling interest 1.58 2.41
Tatal Comprehensive income/{loss) for the year attributable
fo:

Equity holders of the parent 14,220.59 184,401.98}
Non - controlling interest 1,269.32 579.46
Earnings per equity share: {nominal value per share of 29
Rs 2 each)

Basic and diluted 6.50 {38.32)

The accompanylng nates are an integral part of the consolidated financial statements [Note 1 to 47)
As per our report of even date

For ASA & Assoclates LLP For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
Chartered Accountants of CMR Green Technologies Limited
ICA! Flrm Reglistration Number - 008571N/N500006

No>

Nitin Gupta
Partner
Membership No: 122499

.

el
-::[A

Chartered
ceountants

Place : New Delhi
Date: 21-05-2025

Virender Kumar Shimar 5rlshllﬂ%
Chief Finaneial officer Compény secretary

M.No. A30576

Place : Farldabad
Date: 21-05-2025




CIVIR Green Technologies Limited
Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows for the year ended March 31, 2025

CIN: U00337HR2005PLC085675
{Amount in Rupees lacs, unless otherwise stated)

. Far the year ended For the year ended
Particulars March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Cash Flow from Operating Activities
Prafit/(Loss) before tax 20,506.06 {1,11,005.16)
Adjustments for:
Depreciation and amortization expense 6,269.26 4,958.57
Loss on disposal of praperty, plant & equipment, intangible assets and devaluation of 180.16 145.98
assets held for sale (net)
Impairment allowance for trade Receivables- Credit impaired 23.55 -
Profit on sale of investment property - {21.06)
Impairment of goodwiil - 1,23,962.69
Lease maodifications (71.98}) (15.19)
{Income) on account of financial guarantee (33.52} -
{Income) on account of reversal of excess provision of custom and stamp duty - (10.54)
Interest {income) (450.16) (814.41)
Interest expense 5,887.51 5,194.27
Sundry balances written (back)/off - {1.02)
Share in losses of Joint ventures (net of tax) 493.31 52.37
Forward premium on unrealised commodity contracts - 17.10
Mark to market loss on currency future contracts (net} - 3.47
Mark to market loss/(gain) on derivatives contracts {289.81) 151.57
Operating Profit before working capital change 32,514.40 22,614.63
Movement in working capital
(Increase) in trade receivables {16,060.81) {7,014.59)
(Increase) in inventories {20,738.27) (240.14)
{Increase) in loans (28.31) {26.90})
{Increase)/Decrease in financial and other assets {6,860.61) 9,227.85
Increase/(Decrease) in trade payables 5,340.59 {13,679.34)
Increase/[Decrease) in financial and other liabilities 1,506.78 (604.77)
Increase in provisions 205.04 214.87
Change in the adjustments {36,635.60) (12,123.42)
Direct taxes paid (net of refunds) {5,078.28) (3,081.27)
Net cash {used in) operating activities (A} {9,199.48) 7,405.95
Cash Flow from Investing Activities
Purchase of property, plant, equipment, right of use assets, intangible assets including {23,985.68) {14,396.19)
capital work In progress
Proceeds from sale of Property, plant, equipment, intangible assets including capital 150.41 131.78
work In progress and assets held for sale
Proceeds from sale of Investment Property - 48.36
Investment made - (76.00)
Investments in fixed deposits (6,919.85) {6,688.82)
Maturity of fixed depaosits 6,781.80 6,753.80
Interest received 489.87 850.44

Net Cash (used in) Investing Activities (B}

(23,483.45)

{13,376.63)

Chartercd
AeRTints




CMR Green Technologies Limited

Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows for the year ended March 31, 2025

CIN; UC0337HR2005PLC0O85675
{Amount in Rupees lacs, unless otherwise stated)

Cash Flow From Financing Activities:

Proceeds from short term borrowings (net)
Repayments of long term borrowings

Proceeds from long term borrowings

Buyback of equity shares

Tax on buyback of equity shares

Lease payments made

Payment of interest portion of lease liabilitie

Interest paid

Net Cash flow generated from Financing Activities (C)

Net Change in cash & cash equivalents {A+B+C}
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year

Cash and cash equivalents compyrise of the following :

Cash on hand (Note 15)
In current accounts (Note 15)
Cash credit accounts {Note 15}

Balance as per statement of cash flows

29,885.02 4,668.61
(1,726.83) (3,039.19)
11,380.01 11,067.80
- {3,000.00}
- (319.19)
(632.89) (698.66)
(280.78) (299.62)
{6,065.05) (5.307.46)
32,559.48 3,072.29
(123.46} {2,894.38)
300.22 3,194.60
176.76 300.22
27.49 28.21
83.61 172.54
65.66 99.47
176.76 300.22

Note:

1. The above cash flow statement has been prepared under the "Indirect Method" as stated in ind AS 7 on Cash Flow Statement specified under
Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013, read together with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 (as amended).

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the consolidated financial statements. [Note 1 to 47]

For ASA & Associates LLP
Chartered Accountants
ICAl Firm Registration Number - 009571N/N500006

Nt |

c0cy
ﬁ@(
Nitin Gupta 13 chartered
Partner Accountants

Membership No: 122499

Place : New Delhi
Date: 21-05-2025

For and on hehalf of the Board of Directors
of CMR Green Technologies Limited

Virender Kumar Shimar
Chief Financial officer

Place : Faridabad
Date: 21-05-2025

S

Company secretary
M.No. A40576




CMR Green Technolopies Limited

Consalidated Statement of changes in equity for the year ended March 31, 2025

CIN: U00337HR2005PLCOBS5675
{Amountin Rupecs facs, unless otherwise stated)

Share capltal
Partioulars o, of Shares] Face value per equity share {Amount)
{Rs.]

At April 01,2023 22,12,68,171 4,425.36

Change during the year - - -

thange during the year an account of buyback of equi 22,12 6GB2} 2 {44.25)

AsatMarch 31, 2024 21,90,55,489 4,381.11

Change during the year - - -

As at March 31, 2025 21,90,55,489 4,381.11

Otherequity
Retained earnings | Statutory reserve {pursuant Capital reserve Caphtal redemptlon | Securities premivm Total Non controlling
to Scction 45 (IC) of RBI Act, reserve \ntcrest Total other equity
1934)
A j) 1A ) {Amount) {Amount) {Amount) {Amount)

At April 01,2023 31,29%93 84,39 91,292.08 - 83,793.55 2,06,475.95 12,880.23 2,06,475.95

Praliy {loss) for the year (84,432.74) - - . - (84,432.74) 577.05 {84,432, 74},

Other comprehensive income for the year 30.76 - - - - 30.76 2.41 30.76

Buyback of cquity shares - . . - {2,955.74) {2,955.74) - {2,955.74)

Transfer to capital redemption reserve - - - 44,25 {44.25) - - -

Tax on buyback of equity shares - - - - {319.19) {319.1%) - [319.19}

Asat March 31, 2024 {53,102.05) 84.33 91,298.08 44.25 B20,474.37 1,18,799.04 13,459.69 1,18,799.04

Profit for the year 14,246.02 - - - - 14,246.02 1,257.74 14,246.02

Other comprehensive {lass) far the year {16.43) . - - - {16.43) 1.58 {16.43)

Derecopnition of the carrying amount of subsidiary {145.04) - - - - {145.04) 145.04 {145.04
] Total comprehensive income/{loss) for the year 14,084.55 - - - - 14,084.55 1,404.36 14,084.55

As at March 31, 2025 {39,017.50) 84.39 91,298.08 44,25 80.474.37 1,32,883.60 14,864.05 1,32,883.60 I

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the consolidated flinancial statements, [Note 110 47)

As per our report of even date

For ASA & Assoclates LLP
Chartered Accountants

ICAI Firm Reglstration Number - 009571N/N500006

Nos

Nitln Gupta
Partner
Membership No: 122439

Place = New Delhl
Date: 21-05-2025

For and an behalf of the Board of Directors
of CMR Green Technologles Umited

irender Kumar Shimar
Chief Financial officer

Place : Faridabad
Date: 21-05-2025

Company secretary
t.Na, AD576




CMR Green Technologies Limited

Notes to the consolidated financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2025
CIN: U00337HR2005PLCOB5675
{Amount in Rupees lacs, unless otherwise stated)

1. Corporate Information

CMR Green Technologies Limited {‘the Parent Company’) is a company domiciled and incorporated in India under the
provisions of the Companies Act applicable in India.

The consolidated financial statements relate to the Parent company and its subsidiaries {collectively hereinafter referred
to as “Group”} and its joint ventures.

The Group is engaged in the business of manufacturing and selling of aluminium based die cast alloys and zinc alloys in
India, The Group is also engaged in the business of segregation and sale of metal scrap as a part of manufacturing process
{with a specific focus on stainless steel, brass, copper and zinc).

These Consolidated financial statements were approved for issue in accordance with a resolution of the Board of
Directors of the Parent Company in their meeting held on May 21, 2025.

2.1 Basis of preparation

These Consolidated Financial Staternents have been prepared in accordance with fndian Accounting Standards (Ind AS)
notified under the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 (as amended from time to time) and
presentation requirements of Division Il of Schedule Il to the Companies Act, 2013, (Ind AS compliant Schedule 1), as
applicable to the Consolidated Financial Statements

The preparation of these financial statements requires the use of certain significant accounting estimates and
judgements. It also requires the management to exercise judgement in applying the Group’s accounting policies. The
areas where estimates are significant to the financial statements, or areas involving a higher degree of judgement or
complexity, are disclosed in Note 4 and 5.

These consolidated financial statements have been prepared on accrual basis except certain subsidy income and interest
on delayed payment from customers which are accounted when the right to receive subsidy from the Government and
when there is no significant uncertainty regarding the ultimate collection of the relevant subsidy and such interest from
customers {refer note 3.5 & 3.6 below) and under the historical cost canvention except for certain financial assets and
financial liabilities which have been measured at fair value as per the requirements of the Ind AS;

a) Derivative financial instruments {refer accounting policy regarding financial instruments in Note 3.13)
b} Certain financial assets and liabilities measured at fair value (refer accounting policy regarding financial instruments in
Note 3.18}

The consolidated financial statements are presented in INR, and all values are rounded to the nearest lacs {INR
00,000), except when otherwise indicated.

The Group has prepared the financial statements on the basis that it will continue to operate as a going concern.
The consolidated financial statements provide comparative information in respect of the previous period.

2.2 Basis of Consaolidation

These consolidated financial statements comgprise the financial statements of the Parent Company, its subsidiaries
and joint ventures.

Control is achieved when the Group is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its involvement with the
investee and has the ability to affect those returns through its power over the investee. Specifically, the Group
controls an investee if and only if the Group has:

s Power over the investee {i.e. existing rights that give it the current ability to direct the relevant activities of the
investee}

e Exposure, or rights, to variable returns from its involvement with the investee, and

s The ability to use its power over the investee to affect its returns




CMR Green Technologies Limited

Notes to the consolidated financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2025
CIN: UD0337HR2005PLCO85675
(Amount in Rupees lacs, unless otherwise stated)

Generally, there is a presumption that a majority of voting rights result in control. To support this presumption and
when the Group has less than a majority of the voting or similar rights of an investee, the Group considers all
relevant facts and circumstances in assessing whether it has power over an investee, including:

* The contractual arrangement with the other vote holders of the investee

* Rights arising frorn other contractual arrangements

+ The Group’s voting rights and potential voting rights

* The size of the group’s holding of voting rights relative to the size and dispersion of the holdings of the other
voting rights holders

The Group re-assesses whether or not it controls an investee if facts and circumstances indicate that there are
changes to one or more of the three elements of control. Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Group
obtains control over the subsidiary and ceases when the Group loses contro! of the subsidiary. Assets, liabilities,
income and expenses of a subsidiary acquired or disposed of during the year are included in the consolidated
financial statements from the date the Group gains control until the date the Group ceases to control the subsidiary.

The consolidated financial statements are prepared using uniform accounting policies for like transactions and other
events in similar circumstances. If a member of the Group uses accounting policies other than those adopted in the
consolidated financial statements for like transactions and events in similar circumstances, appropriate adjustments
are made to that Group member’s financial statements in preparing the consolidated financial statements to ensure
conformity with the Group's accounting policies.

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on the following basis:

a) The financial statements of the subsidiary companies used in the consolidation are drawn upto the same
reporting date as that of the group i.e. March 31, 2025.

b} Combine like items of assets, liabilities, equity, income, expenses and cash flows of the parent with those of its
subsidiaries. For this purpose, income and expenses of the subsidiary are based on the amounts of the assets and
liabilities recognised in the consolidated financial statements at the acquisition date.

c) Offset (eliminate) the carrying amount of the parent’s investment in each subsidiary and the parent’s portion of
equity of each subsidiary.

d) Eliminate in full intragroup assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses and cash flows relating to transactions
between entities of the group (profits or losses resulting from intragroup transactions that are recognised in
assets, such as inventory and fixed assets, are eliminated in full).

Profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive income {OC!) are attributed to the equity holders of the
parent of the Group and to the non-controlling interests, even if this results in the non-controlling interests having a
deficit balance. When necessary, adjustments are made to the financial staternents of subsidiaries to bring their
accounting policies into line with the Group’s accounting policies. All intra-group assets and liabilities, equity,
income, expenses and cash flows relating to transactions between members of the Group are eliminated in full on
consolidation.

2.3 Investment in joint ventures

A joint venture is a type of joint arrangement whereby the parties that have joint control of the arrangement have
rights to the net assets of the joint venture. Joint control is the contractually agreed sharing of control of an
arrangement, which exists only when decisions about the relevant activities require unanimous consent of the
parties sharing control.

The considerations made in determining whether significant influence are similar to those necessary to determine
control over the subsidiaries.

The Group's investments in its joint ventures are accounted for using the equity method. Under the equity method,
the investment in joint ventures is initially recognised at cost. The carrying amount of the investment is adjusted to
recognise changes in the Group's share of net assets of the joint venture since the acquisition date. Goodwill relating
to the joint venture is included in the carrying amount of the investment and is not tested for impairment
individually.




CMR Green Technologies Limited

Notes to the consolidated financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2625
CIN: U00337HR2005PLC0OB5675
{Amount in Rupees lacs, unless otherwise stated)

The statement of profit and loss reflects the Group's share of the results of operations of the joint venture. Any
change in OCI of those investees is presented as part of the Group's OCL. In addition, when there has been a change
recognised directly in the equity of the joint venture, the Group recognises its share of any changes, when
applicable, in the statement of changes in equity. Unrealized gains and losses resulting from transactions between
the Group and the joint venture are eliminated to the extent of the interest in the joint venture.

The aggregate of the Group’s share of profit or loss of a joint venture is shown on the face of the statement of profit
and loss outside operating profit.

The financial statements of the joint ventures are prepared for the same reporting period as the Group. When
necessary, adjustments are made to bring the accounting policies in line with those of the Group.

3. Summary of material accounting policies

The accounting policies, as set out below, have been consistently applied, by the Group, to all the years presented in
the cansolidated financial statements except as mentioned in note 3.1 and 3.19 below:

3.1 New and amended standard and interpretation

The Ministry of Corporate Affairs (“MCA”) has carried out amendments to the following accounting standards. The
effect on adoption of following mentioned amendments had no impact on the standalone Ind AS financial
statements. The Company has not early adopted any standards or amendments that have been issued but are not
yet effective.

{i) Ind AS 117: Insurance Contracts; The Ministry of corporate Affairs (MCA) notified the Ind AS 117, Insurance
Contracts, vide notification dated 12 August 2024, under the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Amendment
Rules, 2024, which is effective from annual reporting periods beginning on or after 1 April 2024.

(i) Amendment to Ind AS 116 Leases — Lease Liability in a sale and Leaseback; The MCA notified the Companies
(Indian Accounting Standards) Second Amendment Rules, 2024, which amend Ind AS 116, Leases, with respect to
Lease Liability in a Sale and Leaseback.

The amendment specifies the requirements that a seller-lessee uses in measuring the lease liability arising in a sale
and leaseback transaction, to ensure the seller-lessee does not recognise any amount of the gain or loss that relates
to the right of use it retains.

The amendment is effective for annual reporting periods beginning on or after 1 April 2024 and must be appiied
retrospectively to sale and leaseback transactions entered into after the date of initial application of Ind AS 116.

The amendment does not have a material impact on the Group’s financial statements.

3.2 Current versus non-currant classification

Bases on the time involved between the acquisition of the assets for processing and their realization in cash and
cash equivalent, the Company has identified twelve months as its operating cycle for determining current and non-
current classification of assets and liabilities in the balance sheet.

3,3 Foreign currencies
The Group’s financial statements are presented in INR, which is also the Group's functional currency.

Transactions and balances

Transactions in foreign currencies are initially recorded by the Group at their respective functional currency spot
rates at the date the transaction first qualifies for recognition. However, for practical reasons, the Group uses
average rate if the average approximates the actual rate at the date of the transaction.

Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated at the functional currency spot rates
of exchange at the reporting date. Exchange differences arising on settlement or translation of monetary items are
recognised in statement of profit or loss.




CMR Green Technologies Limited

Notes to the consolidated financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2025
CiN: U00337HR2005PLCOB5675
{Amount in Rupees lacs, unless otherwise stated)

Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are translated using the
exchange rates at the dates of the initial transactions. Non-monetary items measured at fair value in a foreign
currency are translated using the exchange rates at the date when the fair value is determined. The gain or loss
arising on translation of non-monetary items measured at fair value is treated in line with the recognition of the gain
or loss on the change in fair value of the item (i.e., translation differences on items whose fair value gain or loss is
recognised in OCI or profit or loss are also recognised in OCI or profit or loss, respectively).

3.4 Fair value measurements

The Group measures financial instruments, such as, derivatives at fair value at each balance sheet date.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction
between market participants at the measurement date. The fair value measurement is based on the presumption
that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place either:

* In the principal market for the asset or liability, or
* In the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability

The principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible by the Group.

The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions that market participants would use when
pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market participants act in their economic best interest.

A falr value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account a market participant’s ability to generate
economic benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by selling it to another market participant that
would use the asset in its highest and best use.

The Group uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which sufficient data are
available to measure fair value, maximising the use of relevant observable inputs and minimising the use of
unobservable inputs.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the consolidated financial statements are
categorized within the following fair value hierarchy based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair
value measurement as a whole:

Level 1 — Quoted {unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities

Level 2 — Valuation techniques for which the lowest leve! input that is significant to the fair value measurement is
directly or indirectly observable.

Level 3 —Valuation technigues for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement is
unohservable.

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the consolidated financial statements on a recurring basis, the Group
determines whether transfers have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by re-assessing categorization {based
on the lowest leve! input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole) at the end of each reporting
period.

The Group’s management determines the policies and procedures for both recurring fair value measurement, such
as derivative instruments and unquoted financial assets measured at fair value, and for non-recurring measurement,
such as assets held for distribution in discontinued operation.

External valuers are involved for valuation of significant assets, and significant liabilities, if any.

At each reporting date, the management analyses the movements in the values of assets and liabilities which are
required to be re-measured or re-assessed as per the Group’s accounting policies. For this analysis, the management
verifies the major inputs applied in the latest valuation by agreeing the information in the valuation computation to
contracts and other relevant documents.

The management, in conjunction with the Group’s external valuers, also compares the change in the fair value of
each asset and liability with relevant external sources to determine whether the change is reasonable.




CMR Green Technologies Limited

Notes to the consolidated financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2025
CIN: UDD337HR2005PLCOB5675 '
{Amount in Rupees lacs, unless otherwise stated)

For the purpose of fair value disclosures, the Group has determined classes of assets and liabilities on the basis of
the nature, characteristics and risks of the asset or liability and the level of the fair value hierarchy as explained
above.

This note summarises accounting policy for fair value. Other fair value related disclosures are given in the relevant
notes.

3.5 Revenue from contract with customers

Revenue from contracts with customers is recognised when control of the goods are transferred to the customer at
an amount that reflects the consideration to which the Group expects to be entitled in exchange for those goods or
services. The Group has generally concluded that it is the principal in its revenue arrangements because it typically
controls the goods befare transferring them to the customer.

Sale of products

Revenue from sale of products is recognised at the point in time when control of the asset is transferred to the
customer. Amounts disclosed as revenue are net of returns and allowances, trade discounts and rebates. The Group
collects Goods & Service Tax (GST)/ on behaif of the government and therefore, these are not ecanomic benefits
flowing to the Group. Hence, these are excluded from the revenue.

Variable consideration includes trade discounts and volume rebates. The Group estimates the variable consideration
with respect to above based on an analysis of accumulated historical experience. The Group adjusts estimate of
revenue at the earlier of when the most likely amount of consideration expected to receive changes or when the
consideration becomes fixed.

Sale of services

Revenue fram job work in process is recognised by reference to the stage of completion. Stage of completion is
measured by reference to job work in process at the year end and is recognized at measured value of conversion
charges. The Group collects service tax/ GST on job work on behalf of the government and, therefore, it is not an
economic benefit flowing to the Group. Hence, it is excluded from revenue.

Interest income

Interest income is recorded using the effective interest rate (EIR) method. EIR is the rate that exactly discounts the
estimated future cash payments or receipts over the expected life of the financial instrument or a shorter pertod,
where appropriate, to the gross carrying amount of the financial asset.

Interest income on delayed payment from customers is recognised when there is no significant uncertainty
regarding the uitimate collection of such interest from customers.

Rental income
Rental income arising from operating leases is accounted for on a straight-line basis over the lease terms.

Export incentive

Export entitlements in the form of advance license, Duty Drawback and MEIS {Merchandise Exports from India Scheme)
are recognised in the statement of profit and loss when the right to receive credit as per the terms of the scheme is
established in respect of exports made and when there is no significant uncertainty regarding the ultimate collection of
the relevant export proceeds.

3.6 Government grant

Government grants are recognised where there is reasonable assurance that the grant will be received and all
attached conditions will be complied with, When the grant relates to an expense item, it is recognised as income on
a systematic basis over the periods that the related costs, for which it is intended to compensate, are expensed.
When the grant relates to an asset, it is recognised as income on a systematic basis.

3.7 Income taxes

Current income tax

Current income tax assets and liabilities are measured at the amount expected to be recovered from or paid to the
taxation authorities in accordance with the Income Tax Act, 1961 enacted in India. The tax rates and tax laws used to
compute the amount are those that are enacted or substantively enacted, at the reporting date in India.
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2025
CIN; U0D337HR2005PLCO8B5675
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Current income tax relating to items recognised outside profit or loss (either in other comprehensive income or in
equity). Current tax items are recognised in correlation to the underlying transaction either in other comprehensive
income or directly in equity. Management perfodically evaluates positions taken in the income tax returns with
respect ta situations in which applicable tax regulations are subject to interpretations and considers whether it is
probable that a taxation authority will accept an uncertain tax treatment. The Group shall reflect the effect of
uncertainty for each uncertain tax treatment by using either most likely method or expected value method,
depending on which method predicts better resolution of the treatment.

Deferred tax
Deferred tax is provided using the liability method on temporary differences between the tax bases of assets and
liabilities and their carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes at the reporting date.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognized for all taxable temporary differences, except:

(3} When the deferred tax liability arises from the initial recognition of goodwill or an asset or liability in a
transaction that is not a business combination and, at the time of the transaction, affects neither the accounting
profit nor taxable profit or loss.

(b) In respect of taxable temporary differences associated with investments in subsidiaries and joint venture, when
the timing of the reversal of the temporary differences can be controlled and it is probable that the temporary
differences will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

Deferred tax assets are recognized for all deductible temporary differences, the carry forward of unused tax credits
and any unused tax losses, if any. Deferred tax assets are recognized to the extent that it is probable that taxable
profit will be available against which the deductible temporary differences and the carry forward of unused tax
credits and unused tax losses can be utilized, except:

{a) When the deferred tax asset relating to the deductible temporary difference arises from the initial recognition of
an asset or lfability in a transaction that is not a business combination and, at the time of the transaction, affects
neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss.

{b) In respect of deductible temporary differences associated with investments in subsidiaries and joint venture,
deferred tax assets are recognised only to the extent that it is probable that the temporary differences will
reverse in the foreseeable future and taxable profit will be available against which the temporary differences can
be utilised.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets and MAT credit entitlement is reviewed at each reporting date and
reduced to the extent that it is no longer probabie that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of
the deferred tax asset to be utilized. Unrecognized deferred tax assets are re-assessed at each reporting date and
are recognized to the extent that it has become probable that future taxable profits will allow the deferred tax asset
to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the year when the
asset is realized or the liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively
enacted at the reporting date.

Deferred tax relating to items recognized outside profit or loss is recognized outside profit or loss (either in ‘OCI’ or
in equity). Deferred tax items are recognized in correlation to the underlying transaction either in OC| or directly in

equity.

The Group offsets deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities if and only if it has a legally enforceable right to set
off current tax assets and current tax liabilities and the deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities relate to
income taxes levied by the same taxation authority.

3.8 Property, plant and equipment (‘PPE’)

An item of PPE Is recognised as an asset, if and only if, it is probable that the future economic benefits associated
with the item will flow to the Group and its cost can be measured reliably.

Capital work in progress and PPE are initially recognised at cost net of accumulated depreciation, if any. The initial
cost of PPE comprises its purchase price {including non-refundable duties and taxes and excluding any trade
discounts and rebates), and any directly attributable cost of bringing the asset to its working condition and location
for Its intended use.
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Subsequent to initial recognition, freehold fand is carried at historical cost and other items of PPE are stated at cost
less accumulated depreciation and any impairment losses. When significant parts are required to be replaced at
regular intervals, the Group recognises such parts as separate component of assets and depreciates separately
based on their specific useful life. When an item of PPE is replaced, then its carrying amount is de-recognised from
the balance sheet and cost of the new item of PPE is recognised.

The expenditures those are incurred after the item of PPE is available for use, such as repairs and maintenance, are
charged to the statement of profit and loss in the period in which such costs are incurred. However, in situations
where such expenditure can be measured reliably, and is probable that future economic benefits associated with it
will flow to the Group, it is included in the asset’s carrying value or as a separate asset, as appropriate.

Depreciation on PPE is provided on straight line basis using the rates as specified in Part C of Schedule Il of the
Companies Act, 2013, as set out below except for certain components of plant and machinery useful lives of which
have been taken as 8-9 years based on independent assessment of professionals undertaken by Group's
management.

Asset Useful life
Roads 05-10 years
Office and non-factory building 60 years
Factory buildings 30 years
Plant and equipment 05-25 years
Offlce equipment 05 years
Computers 03 years
Servers 06 years
Furniture and fixtures (including leasehold 10 years/over life of lease
improvements)

Vehicles 08 years

The assets acquired pursuant to Scheme of Arrangement are being depreciated over their balance useful lives an
straight line basis after considering the rates specified in Part C of schedule |} of the Companies Act 2013.

Lease hold improvements inciuded in furniture & fixtures are depreciated on a straight line basis over the useful life
of asset or the unexpired lease period ranging from 2.5 to 10 years, whichever is lower.

Individual items of property, plant and equipment costing up to Rs. 10,000/ is charged to the statement of profit
and loss in the year in which it is purchased or acquired.

The identified components are depreciated separately over their useful lives; the remaining components are
depreciated over the life of principal asset.

The useful lives, residual values and depreciation method of PPE are reviewed, and adjusted appropriately, at each
reporting date. The effect of any change in the estimated useful lives, residual values and / or depreciation method
are accounted for prospectively, and accordingly the depreciation is calculated over the PPE’s remaining revised
useful life. The cost and the accumulated depreciation for PPE sold, scrapped, retired or otherwise disposed off are
de-recognised from the balance sheet and the resulting gains / (losses) are included in the statement of profit and
loss within other expenses / other income.

Transition to ind AS

On transition to Ind AS, the Group has elected to continue with the carrying value of all its property, plant and
equipment recognised at April 01, 2020, measured as per the previous GAAP and use that carrying value as the
deemed cost of the property, plant and equipment and capital wark-in-progress.

The cost of capital work-in-progress is presented separately in the balance sheet.
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3.9 Investment properties

Investment properties are measured initially at cost, including transaction costs. Subsequent to initial recognition,
investment properties are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and accurnulated impairment loss, if any.

The cost includes the cost of replacing parts and borrowing costs for long-term construction projects if the
recognition criteria are met. When significant parts of the investment property are required to be replaced at
intervals, the Group depreciates them separately based on their specific useful lives. All other repair and
maintenance costs are recognised in profit or loss as incurred.

Though the Group measures investment property using cost based measurement, the fair value of investment
property is disclosed in the notes.

Investment properties are derecognised either when they have been disposed of or when they are permanently
withdrawn from use and no future economic benefit is expected from their disposal. The difference between the
net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset is recognised in profit or loss in the period of
derecognition.

3.10 Intangible assets

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial recognition at cost. Following initial recognition,
intangible assets are carried at cost less any accumulated amortization and accumulated impairment losses.
Software is capitalised at the amounts paid to acquire the respective license for use and is amortised over the period
of license not exceeding six years from the date when the asset is available for use.

The amortisation expense on intangible assets is recognised in the statement of profit and loss on straight line basis
over the estimated useful lives of intangible assets from the date they are available for use. The amortisation period
and the amortisation methad for an intangible asset with a finite useful life are reviewed at each balance sheet date.
If expected useful life is significant different from previous assessment, the change in useful life is made on a
prospective basis,

Gains or losses arising from de-recognition of an intangible asset are measured as the difference between the net
disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and are recognised in the statement of profit or loss when
the asset is derecognised.

Transition to Ind AS

On transition to Ind AS, the Group has elected to continue with the carrying value of all its intangible assets
recognised at April 01, 2020 measured as per the previous GAAP and use that carrying value as the deemed cost of
intangible assets including goodwill. (Refer Note 8 & 9)

3.11 Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of an asset that necessarily takes
a substantial period of time to get ready for its intended use or sale are capitalised as part of the cost of the asset.
All other borrowing costs are expensed in the period in which they cccur. Borrowing costs consist of interest and
other costs that an entity incurs in connection with the borrowing of funds. Borrowing cost also includes exchange
differences to the extent regarded as an adjustment to the borrowing costs.

3.12 Impairment of non-financial assets

The Group assesses, at each reporting date, whether there is an indication that an asset may be impaired. If any
indication exists, or when annual impairment testing for an asset is required, the Group estimates the asset’s
recoverable amount. An asset’s recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s or cash-generating unit's {CGU) fair
value less costs of disposal and its value in use. The recoverable amount is determined for an individual asset, unless
the asset does not generate cash inflows that are largely independent of those from other assets or group of assets.
When the carrying amount of an asset or CGU exceeds its recoverable amount, the asset is considered impaired and
is written down to its recoverable amount.

In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax
discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset.
In determining fair value less costs of disposal, recent market transactions are taken into account. If no such
transactions can be identified, an appropriate valuation model is used.




CMR Green Technologies Limited

Notes to the consolidated financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2025
CIN: UDD337HR2005PLCOBS5675
(Amount in Rupees lacs, unless atherwise stated)

The Group bases its impairment calculation on detailed budgets and forecast calculations, which are prepared
separately for each of the Group's CGUs to which the individual assets are allocated. These budgets and forecast
calculations generally cover a period of five years. For longer periods, a long-term growth rate is calculated and
applied to project future cash fiows after the fifth year. To estimate cash flow projections beyond periods covered
by the most recent budgets/foracasts, the Group extrapolates cash flow projections in the budget using a steady or
declining growth rate for subsequent years, unless an increasing rate can be justified. In any case, this growth rate
does nat exceed the long-term average growth rate for the products, industries, or country or countries in which the
entity operates, or for the market in which the asset is used. Impairment losses, if any, are recognized in Statement
of Profit and Loss as a component of depreciation and amortisation expense.

A previously recognised impairment loss is reversed only if there has been a change in the assumptions used to
determine the asset’s recoverable amount since the last impairment loss was recognised. The reversal is limited to
the extent the carrying amount of the asset does not exceed its recoverable amount, nor exceed the carrying
amount that would have been determined, net of depreciation or amortisation, had no impairment loss been
recognised for the asset in prior years. Such reversal is recognized in the statement of profit and loss when the asset
is carried at the revalued amount, in which case the reverse is treated as a revaluation increase.

3.13 Leases

The Group assesses at contract inception whether a contract is, or contains, a lease. That is, if the contract conveys
the right to control the use of an identified asset for a period of time in exchange for consideration.

Group as a lessee

The Group applies a single recognition and measurement approach for all leases, except for short-term leases and
leases of low-value assets. The Group recognises lease liabilities to make lease payments and right-of-use assets
representing the right to use the underlying assets.

i} Right of use assets:

The Group recognises right-of-use assets at the commencement date of the lease (i.e., the date the underlying asset
is available for use). Right-of-use assets are measured at cost, less any accumulated depreciation and impairment
losses, and adjusted for any remeasurement of lease liabilities. The cost of right-of-use assets includes the amount
of lease liabilities recognised, initial direct costs incurred, and lease payments made at or before the
commencement date less any lease incentives received. Right-of-use assets are depreciated on a straight-line basis
over the shorter of the lease term and the estimated useful lives of the assets, as follows:

Particulars Life in years
Offices 1.33 to 9.00 years
Factory land and building 3.17 t0 9.00 years
Guest Houses/Residential Building 6.00 to 7.00 years
Leasehold Land 90 years

If ownership of the leased asset transfers to the Group at the end of the lease term or the cost reflects the exercise
of a purchase option, depreciation is calculated using the estimated useful life of the asset.

The right-of-use assets are also subject to impairment. Refer to the accounting policies 3.12 on Impairment of non-
financial assets.

ii} Lease liabilities

At the commencement date of the lease or date of transition to Ind AS, whichever is earlier, the Group recognises
lease liabilities measured at the present value of lease payments to be made over the lease term. The lease
payments are fixed payments.

In calculating the present value of lease payments, the Group uses its incremental borrowing rate at the lease
commencement date because the interest rate implicit in the lease is not readily determinable. After the
commencement date, the amount of lease liabilities is increased to reflect the accretion of interest and reduced for
the lease payments made. In addition, the carrying amount of lease liabilities is remeasured if there is a
modification, a change in the lease term, a change in the lease payments (e.g., changes to future payments resulting
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from a change in an index or rate used to determine such lease payments) or a change in the assessment of an
option to purchase the underlying asset.

The Group’s lease liabilities are disclosed separately in the balance sheet {see Note 31).

ifi) Short-term leases and leases of low-value assets

The Group applies the short-term lease recognition exemption to its short-term leases except in case of lease
contracts with related parties since there exist economic incentive for the Group to continue using the leased
premises for a period longer than the 11 months and considering the contract is with the related parties, it does not
foresee non-renewal of the lease term for future periods, thus basis the substance and economics of the
arrangements, management believes that under Ind AS 116, the lease terms in the arrangements with related
parties have been determined considering the period for which management has an ecanomic incentive to use the
leased asset (i.e. reasonable certain to use the asset for the said period of economic incentive). Such assessment of
incremental period is based on management assessment of various factors including the remaining useful life of the
asset as on the date of transition. The management has assessed period of arrangements with related parties as 5 to
6 years as at April 01, 2020. Lease payments on short-term leases and leases of low-value assets are recognised as
expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

Group as a lessor

Leases in which the Group does not transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of an asset are
classified as operating leases. Rental income from operating lease is recognised on a straight-line basis over the term
of the relevant lease. Contingent rents are recognised as revenue in the period in which they are earned.

3.14 Inventories
Inventories are valued at the lower of cost and net realisable value in accordance with ind AS 2 ~ [nventories.

Raw materials, traded goods and stores and spares are valued at lower of cost and net realizable value. However,
materials and other items held for use in the production of inventories are not written down below cost if the
finished products in which they will be incorporated are expected to be sold at or above cost. Cost of raw materials
and traded goods is determined on the basis of weighted average basis. However, inventory pertaining to stores &
spares are valued at cost.

During the year, the group changed its inventory cost formula for raw material and traded goods from FIFO to
weighted average method to provide more reliable and relevant information. The change has been accounted for in
accordance with Ind AS 8 — Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors, and its impact is not
material, therefore has not been accounted in the financial statements of current year,

Finished goods are valued at lower of cost and net realizable value. Cost includes direct materials and direct labour
and a proportion of manufacturing overheads based on normal operating capacity. Cost is determined on a moving
weighted average basis.

Inventories qualifying as hedged items in a fair value hedge relationship are adjusted for the hedging gain or loss on
hedged item in accordance with Ind AS 109 - Financial Instruments.

Net realizable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less estimated costs of
completion and estimated costs necessary to make the sale.

3.15 Provisions

General

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past event,
it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation and
a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation in accordance with Ind AS 37 — Provisions,
Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets..

When the Group expects some or all of a provision to be reimbursed, for example, under an insurance contract, the
reimbursement is recognised as a separate asset, but only when the reimbursement is virtually certain. The expense
relating to a provision is presented in the Statement of Profit and Loss, net of any reimbursement. although the
provision and the related reimbursement asset are presented separately in the financial statements in the
Statement of Profit and Loss.

If the effect of the time value of money is material, provisions are discounted using a current pre-tax rate that
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reflects, when appropriate, the risks specific to the liability. When discounting is used, the increase in the provision
due to the passage of time is recognised as a finance cost.

Provisions are reviewed at the end of each reporting period and adjusted to reflect the current best estimate. If it is
no longer probable that an outflow of resources would be required to settle the obligation, the provision is reversed
and the reversal is recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss in the same line item where the original provision
was recorded. '

3.16 Contingent Liabilities and assets

Contingent liabilities are disclosed when there is a possible obligation arising from past events, the existence of
which will be confirmed only by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not
wholly within the control of the Group or a present obligation that arises from past events where it is either not
probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle or a refiable estimate of the amount cannot be
made.

Contingent assets are disclosed in the consolidated financial statements only when an inflow of economic benefits is
probable.

3.17 Employee benefits

The Group’s employee benefits mainly include wages, salaries, bonuses, contribution to plans, defined benefit plans
and compensated absences. The employee benefits are recognised in the year in which the associated services are
rendered by the Group’s employees.

i. Defined contribution plans — Provident fund

Provident fund

A defined contribution plan is a post-employment benefit plan under which an entity pays fixed contributions into a
separate entity and has no obligation to pay any further amounts. The Group makes specified monthly contributions
towards provident fund which are defined contribution plans. The Group has no obligation, other than the
contribution payable to the funds. The Group recognises contribution payable to the fund scheme in the statement
of profit and loss, when an employee renders the related service. If the contribution payable to the scheme for
service received before the balance sheet date exceeds the contribution already paid, the deficit payahle to the
scheme is recognised as a liability after deducting the contribution already paid, If the contribution already paid
exceeds the contribution due for services received before the balance sheet date, then excess is recognised as an
asset to the extent that the prepayment will lead to, for example, a reduction in future payment or a cash refund.

il. Defined benefit plans - Gratuity

The Group's gratuity benefit scheme is a defined benefit plan. The Group’s net ohligation in respect of defined
benefit plan is calculated by estimating the amount of future benefit that employees have earned in return for their
service in the current and prior periods; this benefit is discounted to determine its present value. Any unrecognised
past service costs and the fair value of any plan assets are deducted. The calculaticn of the Group’s obligation under
this plan is performed annually by a qualified actuary using the projected unit credit method.

Re-measurements comprising of actuarial gains and losses, the effect of the changes to the asset ceiling (if
applicable) are recognised immediately in the balance sheet with a corresponding debit or credit to retained
earnings through other comprehensive income in the period in which they occur. Re-measurements are not
reclassified to profit or loss in subsequent periods.

All other expenses related to defined benefit plans are recognised in statement of profit and loss as employee
benefit expenses. Gains or losses on the curtailment or settlement of any defined benefit plan are recognised when
the curtailment or settlement occurs. Curtailment gains and losses are accounted for as past service costs.
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iii. Other employee benefits

The employees can carry forward a portion of the unutilized accrued compensated absences and utilise it in future
service periods or receive cash compensation during termination of employment.

Compensated absence, which is expected to be utilized within the next 12 months, is treated as short-term
employee benefit. The Group measures the expected cost of such absences as the additional amount that it expects
to pay as a result of the unused entitlement that has accumulated at the reporting date. The Group treats
compensated absences expected to be carried forward beyond twelve months, as long-term employee benefit for
measurement purposes. Such long-term compensated absences are provided for based on the actuarial valuation
using the projected unit credit method at the year-end. Actuarial gains/losses are immediately taken to the
statement of profit and loss.

The Group presents the leave liability as a current liability in the balance sheet, to the extent it does not have an
unconditional right to defer its settlement for 12 months after the reporting date.

3.18 Financial instruments

A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial liability or equity
instrument of another entity.

Initial recognition

Financial assets are classified, at initial recognition, as subsequently measured at amortised cost, fair value through
other comprehensive income {OCI), and fair value through profit or loss.

In order for a financial asset to be classified and measured at amortised cost or fair value through OCl, it needs to
give rise to cash flows that are ‘solely payments of principal and interest (SPPI)’ on the principal amount
outstanding. This assessment is referred to as the SPPI test and is performed at an instrument level. Financial assets
with cash flows that are not SPPI are classified and measured at fair value through profit or loss, irrespective of the
business model.

All financial assets are recognised initially at fair value plus, in the case of financial assets not recorded at fair value
through profit or loss, transaction costs that are attributable to the acquisition of the financial asset. Transaction
costs of financial assets carried at fair value through profit or loss are expensed in profit or loss. Purchases or sales of
financial assets that require delivery of assets within a time frame established by regulation or convention in the
market place (regular way trades) are recognised on the trade date, i.e., the date that the Group commits to
purchase or sell the asset.

Subsequent measurement

i} Financial assets carried at amortized cost {debt instrument)

A financial asset is subsequently measured at amortized cost if it is held within a business model whose objective is
to hold the asset in order to collect contractual cash flows and the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise
on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal outstanding.
Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount ar premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are
an integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortisation is included in finance income in the profit or loss.

ii) Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

A financial asset which is not classified in any of the above categories are subsequently fair value through profit or
loss.

Financial liabilities

Financial liabilities are subsequently carried at amortized cost using the effective interest method or at fair value
through profit or loss. Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss include financial liabilities held for
trading and financial liabilities designated upon initial recognition as at fair value through profit or loss if the criteria
under Ind AS 109 are satisfied. All other financial liabilities are subsequently measured at amortised cost.
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For trade and other payables maturing within one year from the Balance Sheet date, the carrying amounts
approximate the fair value due to the short maturity of these instruments.

a) Financial guarantee contracts

Financial guarantee contracts issued by the Group are those contracts that require a payment to be made to
reimburse the holder for a loss it incurs because the specified debtor fails to make a payment when due in
accordance with the terms of a debt instrument. Financial guarantee contracts are recognised initially as a liability at
fair value, adjusted for transaction costs that are directly attributable to the issuance of the guarantee.
Subsequently, the liability is measured at the higher of the amount of loss allowance determined as per impairment
requirements of Ind AS 109 and the amount recognised less cumulative amortization.

b} Borrowings

On initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and borrowings are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the
EIR method. Gains and losses are recognised in profit or loss when the liabilities are derecognised as well as through
the EIR amortisation process.

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are
an integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortisation is included as finance costs in the statement of profit and loss.

Derecognition of financial instruments

The Group derecognizes a financial asset when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the financial asset
expire or it transfers the financial asset and the transfer qualifies for derecognition under IND AS 109. A financial
liability (or a part of the financial liability) is derecognized from the Group’s balance sheet when the obligation
specified in the contract is discharged or cancelled or expired.

Fair value of financial instruments

In determining the fair value of its financial instruments, the Group uses a variety of methods and assumptions that
are based on market conditions and risks existing at each reporting date. The methods used to determine fair value
include discounted cash flow analysis, available quoted market prices and dealer quotes. All methods of assessing
fair value result in general approximation of value, and such value may never actually be realized.

For all other financial instruments the carrying amounts approximate fair value due to the short maturity of those
instruments.

Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the consolidated balance sheet if
there is a currently enforceable legal right to offset the recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle on a
net basis, to realise the assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously.

Impairment of financial assets

The Group applies the expected credit loss model for recognising impairment loss on financial assets measured at
amortised cost, debt instruments at FYTOCI, trade receivables and other contractual rights to receive cash or other
financial asset.

Expected credit losses are the weighted average of credit losses with the respective risks of default occurring as the
weights. Credit loss is the difference between all contractual cash flows that are due to the Group in accordance
with the contract and all the cash flows that the Group expects to receive {i.e. all cash shortfalls}, discounted at the
original effective interest rate {or credit-adjusted effective interest rate for purchased or originated credit-impaired
financial assets). The Group estimates cash flows by considering all contractual terms of the financial instrument {for
example, prepayment, extension, call and similar options) through the expected life of that financial instrument.

The Group measures the loss allowance for a financial instrument at an amount equal to the lifetime expected credit
losses if the credit risk on that financial instrument has increased significantly since initial recognition. If the credit
risk on a financial instrument has not increased significantly since initial recognition, the Group measures the [oss
allowance for that financial instrument at an amount equal to 12-month expected credit losses. 12-month expected
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credit losses are portion of the life-time expected credit losses and represent the lifetime cash shortfalls that will
result if default occurs within the 12 months after the reporting date and thus, are not cash shortfalls that are
predicted over the next 12 months.

For trade receivables, the Group follows "simplified approach for recognition of impairment loss. The application of
simplified approach does not require the group to track changes in credit risk.

Further, for the purpose of measuring lifetime expected credit loss allowance for trade receivables, the Group has
used a practical expedient as permitted under ind AS 109. This expected credit loss allowance is computed based on
a provision matrix which takes into account historical credit loss experience and adjusted for forward-locking
information.

3.19 Derivatives and hedge accounting

The Group uses derivative financial instruments such as forward exchange contracts and forward commodity
contracts to hedge risks associated with foreign currency fluctuations and commodity price risks. The Group also
holds commadity future contracts to mitigate the risk of changes in price of commodity.

Derivatives not designated as hedging instruments

This category has derivative assets or liabilities which are not designated as hedges.

Although the Group believes that these derivatives constitute hedges from an economic perspective, they may not
qualify for hedge accounting under Ind AS 109. Any derivative that is either not designated a hedge, or is so
designated but is ineffective, is recognized on balance sheet and measured initially at fair value. Subseguent to initial
recognition, derivatives are re-measured at fair value, with changes in fair value being recognized in the statement
of profit and loss. Derivatives are carried as financial assets when the fair value is positive and as financial liabilities
when the fair value is negative.

Hedge accounting

The Group designates forward commodity contracts under fair value hedges to hedge the exposure to changes in
prices of the commodities for its unrecognized firm commitment and existing inventory. At the inception of a hedge
relationship, the Group formally designates and documents the hedge relationship to which the Group wishes to
apply hedge accounting and the risk management objective and strategy for undertaking the hedge. The
effectiveness of hedge instruments is assessed and measured at inception and on an ongoing basis.

The documentation includes identification of the hedging instrument, the hedged item, the nature of the risk being
hedged, and how the Group will assess whether the hedging relationship meets the hedge effectiveness
requirements (including the analysis of sources of hedge ineffectiveness and how the hedge ratio is determined).

Hedges that meet the hedge effectiveness criteria, the change in the fair value of hedging instrument and the hedge
item is recognised in the statement of profit and loss. When an unrecognised firm commitment is designated as a
hedged item, the subsequent cumulative change in the fair value of the firm commitment attributable to the hedged
risk is recognised as an asset or liability with a corresponding gain or loss recognised in profit or loss.

3.20 Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalent in the balance sheet comprise cash at banks and on hand and short-term deposits with an
original maturity of three months or less, that are readily convertible to a known amount of cash and subject to an
insignificant risk of changes in value.

For the purpose of the statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents consist of cash and short-term deposits,
as defined above, net of outstanding bank overdrafts as they are considered an integral part of the Group’s cash
management.

3.21 Cash dividend

The Group recognises a liability to make cash distributions to equity holders of the parent when the distribution is
authorised and the distribution is no longer at the discretion of the Group. As per the corporate laws in india, a
distribution is authorised when it is approved by the shareholders. A corresponding amount is recognised diractly in
equity.
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3.22 Segment

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the internal reporting provided to the chief operating
decision maker. The Chief Operating decision maker reviews business performance at an overall Group level as one
segment "Aluminium ingots and zinc ingots”.

3.23 Earning per share

Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing the net profit or loss attributable to equity holder of the Parent
Company (after deducting preference dividends and attributable taxes) by the weighted average number of equity
shares outstanding during the year. Partly paid equity shares are treated as a fraction of an equity share to the
extent that they are entitled to participate in dividends relative to a fully paid equity share during the reporting
period. The weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the year is adjusted for events such as
bonus issue.

For the purpose of calculating diluted earnings per share, the net profit or loss for the year attributable to equity
shareholders of the Parent Company and the weighted average number of shares outstanding during the year, are
adjusted far the effects of all dilutive potential equity shares.

4. Significant accounting judgements, estimates and assumptions

The preparation of the Group’s financial statements requires management to make judgements, estimates and
assumptions that affect the reparted amounts of revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities, and the accompanying
disclosures, and the disclosure of contingent liabilities. Uncertainty about these assumptions and estimates could
result in outcomes that require a material adjustment to the carrying amount of assets or liabilities affected in
future periods.

There was also no impact on the opening retained earnings as at 1 April 2024.
Judgements

In the process of applying the Group’s accounting policies, management has made the following judgements, which
have the most significant effect on the amounts recognised in the consolidated financial statements:

a) Contingencies

Contingent liabilities may arise from the ordinary course of business in relation to claims against the Group,
including legal, contractor, land access and other ¢laims. By their nature, contingencies will be resolved only when
one or more uncertain future events occur or fail to occur. The assessment of the existence, and potential guantum,
of contingencies inherently involves the exercise of significant judgments and the use of estimates regarding the
outcome of future events.

b} Revenue recognition and presentation

The Group assesses its revenue arrangements against specific criteria, i.e. whether it has exposure to the significant
risks and rewards associated with the sale of goods or the rendering of services, in order to determine if it is acting
as a principal or as an agent. The Graup has concluded that they are operating on a principal-te-principal basis in all
its revenue arrangements.

In case of sales of products under provisional rate basis, the differential amount between final rate and provisional
rate is accounted for once the rates are finalised.

Subsidy and interest income on delayed payment from customers is accounted for when right to receive credit as
per the terms of Scheme is established in respect of subsidy from the Government and when there is no significant
uncertainty regarding the ultimate collection of the relevant subsidy and such interest from customers.

5. Estimates and assumptions

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the reporting date,
that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within
the next financial year, are described below. The Group based its assumptions and estimates on parameters
available when the consolidated financial statements were prepared. Existing circumstances and assumptions about
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future developments, however, may change due to market changes or circumstances arising that are beyond the
control of the Group. Such changes are reflected in the assumptions when they occur.
A change in an accounting estimate is recognised prospectively by including it in profit or loss in:

* the period of the change, if the change affects that period only, or

 the period of the change and future periods, if the change affects hoth.

A change in an accounting estimate arises from new information or new developments and is not a correction of an
error. An accounting estimate is a monetary amount that is subject to measurement uncertainty. In using estimation
techniques, the Company uses assumptions and inputs that reflect the best available information.

a) Impairment of non-financial assets

Impairment exists when the carrying value of an asset or cash generating unit exceeds its recoverable amount,
which is the higher of its fair value less costs of disposal and its value in use. The fair value less costs of disposal
calculation is based on available data from binding sales transactions, conducted at arm’s length, for similar assets or
observable market prices less incremental costs for disposing of the asset. The value in use calculation is based on a
DCF model. The cash flows are derived from the budget for the next five years and do not include restructuring
activities that the Group is not yet committed to or significant future investments that will enhance the asset’s
performance of the CGU being tested. The recoverable amount is sensitive to the discount rate used for the DCF
mode! as well as the expected future cash-inflows and the growth rate used for extrapolation purposes. These
estimates are most relevant to goodwill and other intangibles with indefinite useful lives recognised by the Group.

b) Defined benefit plans [gratuity benefits)

The present value of the gratuity is determined using actuarial valuations. An actuarial valuation involves making
various assumptions that may differ from actual developments in the future. These include the determination of the
discount rate, future salary increases and mortality rates. Due to the complexities involved in the valuation and its
Jong-term nature, a defined benefit obligation is highly sensitive to changes in these assumptions. All assumptions
are reviewed at each reporting date.

The parameter most subject to change is the discaunt rate. In determining the appropriate discount rate for plans
operated in India, the management considers the interest rates of government bonds in currencies consistent with
the currencies of the post-employment benefit obligation. The mortality rate is based on publicly available mortality
tables for the specific countries. Those mortality tables tend to change only at interval in response to demographic
changes. Future salary increases and gratuity increases are based on expected future inflation rates for the
respective countries.

¢} Allowance for uncollectible trade receivables

Trade recelvables generally do not carry any interest and are stated at their nominal value as reduced by
appropriate allowances for estimated irrecoverable amounts. Individual trade receivables are written off when
management deems them not to be collectible.

d) Property, plant and equipment and investment property

Refer note 3.8 & 3.9 for the estimated useful life of property, plant and equipment. The carrying value of property,
plant and equipment and investment property has been disclosed in note 6and 7.

e} Intangible assets

Refer note 3.10 for the estimated useful life of intangible assets. The carrying value of intangible assets has been
disclosed in note 9.

§} Fair value measurement of financial instruments

When the fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities recorded in the balance sheet cannot be measured
hased on quoted prices in active markets, their fair value is measured using valuation techniques including the DCF
model. The inputs to these models are taken from observable markets where possible, but where this is not feasible,
a degree of judgement is required in establishing fair values. Judgements include considerations of inputs such as
liquidity risk, credit risk and volatility.

Changes in assumptions about these factors could affect the reported fair vatue of financial instruments.
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g} Leases - Estimating the incremental borrowing rate

The Group cannot readily determine the interest rate implicit in the lease, therefore, it uses its incremental
borrowing rate (IBR) to measure lease liabilities. The IBR is the rate of interest that the Group would have to pay to
borrow over a similar term, and with a similar security, the funds necessary tc obtain an asset of a similar value to
the right-of-use asset in a similar economic environment. The IBR therefore reflects what the Group ‘would have to
pay’, which requires estimation when no chservable rates are available or when they need to be adjusted to reflect
the terms and conditions of the lease. The Group estimates the IBR using observable inputs {such as market interest
rates} when available.

h) ‘Leases - Estimating the period of lease contracts with related parties

In case of lease contracts with related parties, there exists economic incentive for the Group to continue using the
leased premises for a period longer than the 11 months. The period of expected lease in these cases is a matter of
estimation by the management. The estimate of lease period impacts the recognition of ROU asset, lease liability
and its impact of statement of profit and loss. The lease terms in the arrangements with related parties have been
determined considering the period for which management has an economic incentive to use the leased asset (i.e.
reasonably certain to use the asset for the said period of economic incentive). Such assessment of incremental
period is based on management assessment of various factors including the remaining useful life of the asset as on
the date of transition. The management has assessed period of arrangements with related parties as 5 to 6 years as
at April 01, 2019,

i) Determining the lease term of contracts with renewal and termination options — Group as lessee

The Group determines the lease term as the non-cancellable term of the lease, together with any periods covered by
an option to extend the lease if it is reasonably certain to be exercised, or any pericds covered by an option to
terminate the lease, if it is reasonably certain not to be exercised.

The Group has several lease contracts that include extension and termination options. The Group applies judgement
in evaluating whether it is reasonably certain whether or not to exercise the option to renew or terminate the lease.
That is, it considers all relevant factors that create an economic incentive for it to exercise either the renewal or
termination. After the commencement date, the Group reassesses the lease term if there is a significant event or
change in circumstances that is within its control and affects its ability to exercise or not to exercise the option to
renew or to terminate.

i) Uncertainties exist with respect to the interpretation of complex tax regulations, changes in tax laws, and the
amount and timing of future taxable income

Given the wide range of business relationships and the long term nature and complexity of existing contractual
agreements, differences arising between the actual results and the assumptions made, or future changes to such
assumptions, could necessitate future adjustments to tax income and expense already recorded. The Group
establishes provisions, based on reasonable estimates. The amount of such provisions is based on various factors,
such as experience of previous tax audits and differing interpretations of tax regulations by the taxable entity and
the responsible tax authority. Such differences of interpretation may arise on a wide variety of issues depending on
the conditions prevailing in the respective domicile of the companies. Refer Note 11 Recognition of deferred tax
assets: availability of future taxable profit against which tax losses carried forward can be used.
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7. Investment property

Particulars

Building

Total

Gross Block

As at April 01, 2023
Additions during the year
Deletion during the year®
As at March 31, 2024
Additions during the year
Deletion during the year
As at March 31, 2025

Accumulated Depreciation
As at April 01, 2023
Change for the year
Deletlon during the year
As at March 31, 2024
Charge for the year
Deletion during the year
As at March 31, 2025

Net Block
As at March 31, 2024
As at March 31, 2025

Information regarding income and expenditure of Investment property

For the year ended
March 31, 2025

For the year ended
March 31, 2024

Rental income derived from investment properties
Direct operating expenses those did not generate rental income
Less — Depreciation

2.77
3.32
0.47

Profit/{loss} arising from investment properties before indirect expenses

{1.02)

*The Parent Company has sold its investment property during the previous year .
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6. Property, Plant and Equipment

1at ¢rat:

ts for the year ended March 31, 2025

Furnitures & Fixtures
Particiars Freshald land® Plant and equipment "er:_::"d"d]"‘ Vehlcles [IncJeding feasehald Office equipment cmm::':;?'"dm‘ Toral c':’[:';:::': ta
As at Apdll DI, 2023 5.756.06 28,702.79 14.508.92 L465.15 170438 580.78 284.19 §2.903.28 428035
Additions during the voar - 11.563.70 4.085.64 £5.10 645.70 119.85 15533 16,655.32 -
Dispasals during the year - 36388 56.01 2192 69.78 865 14.56 S$34.80 167269
Redlassified (o assets held for sale {refer note 30) - 49.38 . 0.23 . - - 4961 -
As at March 31,2024 525608 39,873.23 18,538.55 1,509.10 2,280.30 551.97 434.96 £3.974.17 2,600.70
Additions durlng the vear - 8.592.23 155146 63.77 31243 17344 129.95 11.022.28
Disposals during the yvear - 21436 . 128 23495 a1.63 15.06 30725 r12381.97
Redlasiilied to assets held for sate {refer note 30) 260.35 - - . - . 26035
As 3t March 32, 2025 5,756.06 42,930.25 10.69¢.01 1,771.63 2,568.78 712.78 51285 79,410.86 14,582.67
Depreciation
As at April 01, 2023 - 7.513.15 L.59055 451.06 423.81 17115 14111 10.291L.83
Charge far the year - 2,875.70 545.03 17487 3384B 95.49 £81.94 411251 -
Disposats for the vear . 22165 22 159t 2993 5.12 1207 29190 .
Rectassified to assets held for sale {refer note 30) - 19.64 . 0.23 - - : 19.87 -
As at March 31, 2028 - 10.145.56 2.128.36 605.29 73336 26252 21098 xi.gs_u.n -
Charge for the vear - 4,075,090 622.17 191.34 229.74 10157 10981 943632 -
Disposals for the year - 1572 . 118 453 16.52 12.05 o -
Redayyified to assets held for sale {refer aate 30} - I08.96 208,96 -
As at March 31, 2025 - 12.976.95 2,756.13 795.95 1,058.57 34157 30174 19,240.90 -
et block
As at March 31, 2024 5,756.06 25,7127.67 16.410.1% 89931 154694 32946 11398 S1.333.60 2,600.70
As 3t March 31, 2025 5,756.06 34.013.80 17.3311.88 arLER 1.510.21 17522 228.11 60,184.96 14,982.67

*Addition to [rechold land during the year

# The numbers reported are net (additions - deletions).
Hotes

1 Pursuant to a $cheme of Arrangement, vehide having a gross block of Rs. 0.211ac ks in the process of transfer as at Mareh 31, 2075. Such vehigle having weilten down value of As. Nil has been transferred 10 a3xets hetd for $3le duning the cutrent year.

2) Reler Mote 17 for information an propenly, plant and equipment pledged as secusity for borrowings,

1) Capital work in propress sgeing Schedule:
As at March 31, 7025

e land whose change of use to Indusuial use is pending.

Amountin CWIP lor a periad of

Partleulan Lessthan 1 year 1.2 years 23 years Maore than 3 years Tatal

Projects in progress 14,933.20 4947 - - 14.932.67

Projocts temporaridy suspended - - - - -

Total 14,933.20 45.47 - - 14,9867

As atMarch 31, 2024 Amount in CWIP for a period of

Partleulan Lessthan 1 year 1-2years 2-3years Mare than 3years Total

Ptgjects in propress 2,095.64 466.99 3807 . 2,600.70

Projects tempararidy suspended . . - . .

Total 2,095.68 466.93 318.07 - 3,600.70

There are no peojects which are overdue and projects where costs have exceeded.

4) Reconciliatlan of deprediation expense with amounts disclosed in the statement of profit aod lass:

Parthcelary For the yearended Forthe year ended
March 31, 2025 March 38, 2024

Depreciation on pro ant and equipment included in the of profit and kots in note 26 5436.32 £,112.31

Ocpreciation on property, plant and equipment capitalised as preoperative expense (refer note belaw) - 0.20

fatal depreciation as per note 6 above 543632 4,112.51

Clariernd
,:t"ﬁntan:s
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5) Pre-Operalive Expenses (Inctuded in Capitab work in

1in respect of subsldlaries namely CMRA Aluminium Private timited and CMR ECO Aluminium Private Limited are as follows:

faor the year ended March 31, 2025

Particulars Asat March 31,2025 | AsatMarch31, 2024

Qpening Pro-operathve expanses 264.73 290.66
Salaries, woges and bonus 215.58 468.37
Contribution to provident and other funds. 1421 20.29
[Geatuity expenses - t2.70
Stalf wetizre expenses 54,24 45.74
Interest on borrowings 508.00 503.86
Depreciation on ROU 3ssets - 46.92
Depreciation on Property, plant and equipmant - 0.20
Consumption of stores ang spares. 349 23.66
Power & fuel 46.64 13189
Repair B malntenance {athers) 1507 13.47
Printing & stationery - 080
Insurance eharges 279 44.53
Rates ond taxes 9.53 28.84
Teavelling and conveyance 46.94 3160
Vehide running Expense 1.44 269
Communication ¢xpenses 0n 217
Legal #nd peolossiona] eapenses 11.29 14198
Land develcpment charges - 3222
Freight & cartage autward . 16.20
Banpower Scrvices 9157 -

Rent paid - 1051
DBank charpes - 1292
Conumables 8n -

Miscellancous erpenses 60.55 63.23
TrlalRun Sales - {782.28)
Triat Run cost af material consumed . 666.36
Trlal Bun Job work chaeges . 28065
Caplralized during the year {358.51)/ {1,596.43!
Closing balante earried forward 998.56 264.73

G. During the FY 23-24, ene of a subsidiary company namely CMR £CO Aluminium Private Limited has started its commercial operation at one of its plant having a capacity of 11.000 MT i.e. March 26, 2024.
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8. Goodwili

Partiadars Goodwill on Goodwill on Total

Amalg o Feats

Gross black
As at Agrll 01, 2023 92.366.30 40.833.02 L33.198.2
Impzirment of goodwdll (92.266.30) {40.833.02) {1,33,199.32}
As at March 31,2024 . - .
Additions - - -
Ditpesals - . .
impalment of gopawitt . -
As at March 31, 2025 - . .

As at April 01, 2023 9,236.63 - 9.235.63
Dispesals far the year 19,236 63} - {9.226.53)|
As at March 31, 2024 -

Charge for the vear B B .
Addition - - .
impairment ef goodwilt - - .
As at March 31, 2025 - . .

Net block
As at March 31, 2024 - . B
As at March 31, 2025 . - .

* Goadwill represcats goodwill pursuani to a Scheme of Aranpement

Impalrment testing of koodwiit

During (ke FY 23-24, The group performed an annual Impairment test for goadwill. The Group contidered the b its peise vatue based on olther comparable companies and its book value, among cther lactors, when reviewing (or Indizatoes of impalmment.

The recoverabile amount considered based on the fair value less cost of disposal ar value In use, which s higheras red to be d under Ind-AS 16,

The recevetable smeunt of the Businesi Unit [CGU) determined based an a valve in use calculation using cash Mow b PP d by senior of the Group, which are part of overall business plan covering 3 Eve-year period.

The Group during the previous yeas, recorded an impairment af goodwill based on its atsessment oF impairment analyiis a3 reguired by tnd AS 36, Such imp lass disckied a5 an £ i Item tn the of profit and loss. Further, the Group reversed delerred tax Babifity which was
recognised on the amount of geodwill and such reversal of deferred tax labilties disclosed as Deferred taxon € | item ly in the of profit and logs.

Key assumptions uted for valve In use cilculations

The calculation of value in use for the CGU is most sensitive Lo the ollowing assumptions:

EBITDA marglns

EBITDA margins are estimated based on the trend of aciyal EBITDA for past 1 year preceding the beginaing of the budget period.

Discount Rate

biscount rates represent the current market assessment of the risks specific to the CGU, taking into consideration the time value of money and individual risks of the underlying assets that have not been incorporeated in the cash ow estimates. The diseount rate
calcutation is based on the specific circumstances of the Group and the CGU and is derived from its weighted average cost of capital (WACC). The WACC 1akes into account both debt and equity. The cost of equity is derived from the expected return on investment by the
Group's investors. The cost of debt is based on the interest-bearing barrowings the Group is obliged to service. CGU specific risk is incorparated by applying individuat beta factor. The beta factor is evaluated annually based on publicly available market data. Adjusiments
16 the distount rate are made to factar in the specific amount and timing of the future tax Mlows In arder te reflect a pre-tax discount rate. The discount rate applied it cash tow prejection far impairment testing during the FY 23.24 |5 23.07%.

Growth rates used to late cash flows beyond the forccast period

The Group has considered growth rate of 6% to extrapolate cash flaws beyond the larecast period which is in line with the industry forecasts.
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9. Intanglble Assets

Particulars Computer Sofware (ntangible astets under
development |

Grags blotk

AsatApillog, 2023 26952 7156
Disprosals during the year . (71.56)
Additions during the year 175.64 -
AvatMarch 31, 7028 445.16 -
Additions during the year 12150

Disposals during the year {3.65})

As at March 31, 2025 563.01 -
Amartisation

AsatAprllO1, 2023 24267

Charge for the vear 25.712

Disposals for the year -

As 3t March 31,2023 68,39 -
Charge for the year 47.10
| Disposals for the year .

As at March 33, 2025 31549

Het Block

As atMarch 31, 2024 176.77 -
At atMarch 31, 2035 243152 .

There is no intangikle assets under development.

- b Chterad
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10. Financial Assets
10{a}. investments
Asat Asat
March 21, 2025 March 31, 2024
Tnvestment in folnt Venture {unguoted) {acquired at falr value, carred at deemed cost)
CMR - Chiha Reeyeling Technologles Private Umited
- 36.56,750 [March 31, 2024: 36,56,750) equity shares of Rs 10/~ each (fully pald upl 3720.00 370.00
Add: Share Inopening feserves 4.85 496
Addf(less): Share in (Toss) for Lhe year - {0.11}
374.85 374.85
Beikkel CMR Aluminium Indla Private timited [carried at deemed cost} .
- 1,17.00,000 [March 31, 2024: 1,17,00,000) equlity shares of Rs 10/- each {fully paid up) 1.170.00 1,170.00
- fquity portion of corporate guarantee 38 117
Addf{less): Share In opening reserves {21.65} 24.95
Add/{less): Share In profit/(toss) for the year {493.31) {45.60)
£58.55 1,149.52
CMR - Chiho Industries Indla Prlvate Limited {carried at deemed cost)
« 72,00,000 [March 31, 2024: 72,00,000] equity shares of Rs 10/- each{lully pald up) 710.00 12000
- Equity partion of corporate gudrantee 45.00 45,00
Add: Share in opening reserves 129582 130248
Add/f{lessk: Shace in (Ioss} for the year . {5.66}
2,061,82 2,051.82
3,095.22 3,586.19
inequity others {;
At falr value through prafit or fess
Investment [n Isharays Energy Private Limited {at cost)
9,50,000 |March 31, 2024: 7,60,000) equity shares of fis. 10/- each (fully paid upl’ 95.00 7600
Qthers [at cost)
38,956 (March 31, 2024: 23,996) equity shares® 0£0 0.0
95.60 76.60
3,150.82 3,662.79
Axgregate amount of unguoted investments 319082 3,662.7%
1. The abovei areinlisted However, the quated price of the shares of these companies are not avaitable as they are not being traded. Accordingly, these investments have baen

ed as

Investments acquired pursuant 1o the Scheme of Arrangement in the equity shares of listed comspanies of Rs. .60 1acis pending to ke traatferred in name of the Parent Company.

2. During the FY 23-24, CMR- Toyotsu Aluminium India Private Umited has entered into Power supgly and Oftake Ag: dated N

30, 2023 fer ipt

of solar energy power plant with

Isharays Energy Private Limited. Puesuant to the aforesaid agraement, CRR. Teyotsu Aluminium Indla Private Urited has made Investment of Rs. 76.00 lacs in 7.60,000 equity shares of Rs. 10-eachin kharays

Energy Private Umited. Further, CMR- Toyotsu Aluminlum India Private Limited has made Investement of Rs, 19 lacs equity shares of Rs. 20 each,

10{b) Loans {at amartised cost) Non - Current Current
Asat Asat Asat
March 31, 2015 Margh 31, 2024 March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Unsecured ond considered good
- Cthers 43,69 20.04 63.59 59.13
Toral 43,69 20.04 £3.59 g
10{c}. Other Finandal assets (at amartised cost) Non = Current Curren}
Asat Asat Asat
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024 March 33, 2025 March 31 2023
Unsecured, considered goad
{i) Derlvative Instruments at falr value through proFt of [oss
Mark to market gain an commodity futures - Recelvable from helding company
Mark ta market galn en commodity lutures 1,299.60 30348
Mark to market Raln on derivatives contragts . - - -
Mark 10 market galn on currency futures . - z hd
- - 1,299.60 309.48
N} Other Financlal assets atamortised cust
Securlty deposits 6Y7.66 £83.06 24.95 8N
Depasits with Bank having maturity for more than 12 menths (Hote 15) 93.06 165.57 - .
Interest recoverable from related parties [Reler note 32} - . - 4217
Bank Charges recoverable 5.76 -
Interest accrued on fixed depasits and others 443 831 5110 44.75
Quality dalms recoverable - - 200,90 526.56
Insurance claims recoverable - - 1,800.00 .
Corporale guarantee cormemigdion regeivable - - 107.36 125.78
Subsidy receivable Irom government authorities . 6.96 6396
Retelvables fram Joint Venture Partner on account of expentes recaverable - . 216.90 -
Advance/Margin money Jpainst derivatives® . - 2,886.54 1.616.24
Othersh . . 43.41 .72
11515 856.55 5343838 2,473.90
Total 775.15 B56.95 5,643.48 2!783.38

* Repeesents margln money agalnst derivatives (coraemadity huture contracts) taken for hedging of commudity price sk
Frinchdes nil lacs {(March 31, 2024: Rs 15.82 Facs) recoverable from a related party (refer note 32)
Note:-

Entire Loans and other financial assets of the Group have been hypoth LI gaged to secure gs of the Group (refer note 17).
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11. Income Tax

The major component of Income tax expense for the year ended March 31, 2025 and March 31, 2024:

Statement of profit and loss:
Profit or loss section

Current income tax:

Current income tax charge

Income tax pertalning to earlier years {net)

Deferred tax:

Relating to origination and reversal of temporary differences for current
year

Relating to arigination and reversal of temparary differences for earlier
years

Deferred tax on exceptional item

Income tax expense reported In the statement of profit or loss

Other Comprehensive Income (OCl) section

Deferred tax on net (gains) on measurement of defined benefit plans

Deferred tax on net loss in effective portion of cash flow hedge reserve

Income tax charged to 0Q1

Reconcitiation of tax expense and the accounting profit multiplied by the applicable tax rate(s} :

Accounting profit before Income tax {including OCl)
At India's statutory income tax rate of 25.168%/17.16%

Non-deductible expenses/{Non taxable income) for tax purposes:
Adjustments in respect of current income tax of previous pericds

- Deferred tax adjustment for earlier years {net)
financial guarantee income
Impact on change an indexed cost of acquisition on fair valuation gain of

lznd and investments
Deferred tax expense in relation to earlier years

Reversal of Deferred Tax Assets in one of the subsidiaries in the absense
of certainity of profits

Non creation of Deferred Tax Assets on minority interest in one of the
subsidiaries In the absense of certainity of profits

Effect of expenditure not allowable under Incame Tax Act, 1961

Effect of tax on share of profits in joint ventures

Effect of deductions allowable under Income Tax Act, 1961
Income tax for earlier years

Others

At the effective incame tax rate

Income tax expense reported in the statement of profit and loss

For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
5,452.97 3,717.53
20.78 {115.42)
[520.28) {618.63)
43.83 127.72
- (30,264.68)
5,002.20 {27,153.47)
For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
4,05 (11.04)
4.05 {11.04)
For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
20,487.16 {1,10,964.95)
5,096.50 {28,091.33}
{3.03) -
48.83 -
(8.43) -
{189.22) {214.46)
- 934.26
55.88
. 4707
49.03 132.89
6.61 4.03
{10.10) {13.28)
23.81 12.31
[11.72) {20.84)
5,002.30 (27,153.47)
5,002.30 {27,153.47)
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Deferred tax:
Deferred tax relates to the following:

Deferred tax Labilltles:-

Impact of difference between tax depreciation and depreciationf
amortization charged for the financial reporting

On Goodwill pursuant 10 Scheme of Arrangement®

On unrealised portion of forward premium on derivalive contracts

On fair valuation of investments
On Right of use Assets

On items allowed under Section 43({b) of Income Tax Act, 1961
On deferred government grant related 1o EPCG

On undistributed profits of joint ventures

On derivative contracts

Others

Deferred tax Assets:-
Provision far gratuity, leave encashment and bonus

Qn Lease liability
Provision for doubtful debis
Effect of expenditure debited to statement of Profit and toss n the

current/ earlier years but altowable for tax purpese in the following years

On deferred government grant related to EPCG
On unrealised portion of forward premium on derivative contracts#

On carry forward business losses & unabsorbed depreciation

Expenses allowable under Section 35 OD of the Income Tax Act, 1961

Balance sheet

Statement of profit and loss and OC1

Asat As at Far the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024 March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
2,573.99 2,244.42 329,57 258.67
. . . [20,922.07)
16.97 - -
205.24 285.46 {80.12) {9,548.24)
684.06 809.24 {125.18) 402.51
138.13 13813 - (297.91)
267 267 - {18.24)
- 246.85 {246.85) {13.17)
- 0.08 (0.08) (9.50)
9.57 9.55 0.02 {002}
{384.24) (330.45) (53.78) (40.68)
[779.62) {900.77) 121.15 (423.31)
[22.68) (22.68) - .
(4.67} (12.53} 7.86 11.45
{159.86) {63.11) (95.76) (63.11)
51,61 {19.08) 70.68 5.56
{596.20) {160.86) (435.34} {103.57)
(27.87) (44.95) 17.08 17.08
1,707.18 2,181,96 {491.75) {30,744.55)

* Since the amount of gaodwill has been fully impaired, the Group has reversed deferred tax liability which was recagnised on the amount of goodwill. Also, refer note 8.

# Deferred tax asset on firm commitment, inventory and derivative asset/liability has been disclosed on net basis.

Reflected in the balance sheet as follows:

Deferred tax assets

Deferred tax liability
Deferred tax ltabilitles {(Net)

As at As at
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
242,28 2.57
1.949.46 2,184.53
1,707.18 2,181.96
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12. Other aisats
Non-current Currant
Asat Asat Asat Asat
March 31, 2025 Mtarch 31, 2024 March 31, 2025 Mareh 31,2024
Wnsecured ond contldered aood excent atherwise stoted
Capital advances 130616 311987 -
Less: I forcaplial ach whith have signifi increase In credit Risk (.24} {3.28)
3.101.92 321563 - - -
Prepaid exponies 1519 9235 33542 15383
Balance with v/ A i 165714 97031 10.410.22 500886
PAELS Uicensesan hand - - 182 3.3
Export incentive recetvable - - 15.19 6864
Conteatt Assets - Unbilled Revenue . . 256127 §53.25
Flm i far purchase of v of raw { note 45} . - 1210 B84.26
Advarce toempleyeas againit expenies
- Advance ta related partiea [Refer note 32} - . 606 .
- Advante to others . . 352 2037
Advance to sunoliers
ta related parties (Reler note 321 - . 3a49 -
to athers - - a4,60742 5.556.66
Tota! £, 1.!=2.97 627409 - 18, M 13,850.38
Kate=
Entire other assets of the P have been b tgaged to secure ings of the Group (refes note 17).
13. Inventodies {at kower of costand net realizabie value)
Asat At
March 31, 2025 Mareh 31,2024
Raw materials 1069187 5476436
{including Rs. 32,924.95 lacs {March 31, 2024; Rs. 15.866.92 Lacs
s
Traded goods finduding Ry. 122.40 lacs (March 31, 2024: 3.748.03 Lags intranut) 8 129.40 -
Finished poods 9,378.01 535328
(trckuding Rs. 1.537.73 Lacs (Mazch 31, 2024: Ra. 14.60 Laes
indransitl w
Stores and Spares 2.512.59 1A65.48
Total B2.721.89 4] 93!.5:
Hotez-
All type of staeks hing in the Group's Factories. g tsewhere (including GIT) have been hi tgaged 10 secure of the Groun (refer note 17).
#Falr value hedges are malnly used to hedge the hangein falr value of dity price risks, The fair valye adjustaent remaing part of the camying vatue of inventory and laken to profit and lots when tae iaventory is
either sold or contumed.
The grovp has extended falr vatue hedge i i ¥ which farms part of raw matenial during the year. frefer tote 45)
14, Trade recetvadles {at amartised cost)
Asat Arat

March 33, 2025 March 31, 2024

Unsecured and coasidered good

Regeivables from related parties [Refer note 32) 14715 155.44
Receivables fromothers 632 625428
Yesecured and considered doubtiul
Receivables fram aihers 90.10 3010
Lesy: i lortrace {$0.10}1 130.19)
Less: i tor teade ; Credit impaired {23155} -
TR GRS
Motes:-

1. Fot terms and eonditions celating to retated party receivables, refer Note 32

2. The Group charges interest on gverdue trade bles and are ge v an terms of O to 90 days for customens other than related parties. tn case of related party excest for CMR-Chiho Inctystries India Prvate
Limited, the Company charges interest from day ane

3. Entire trade recrivables of the Groud have been b d; o secure ings of the Graup {refer nate 17).

4 trade recelvables nchede bill discounting and supply chain fingnang aggregating to Rs Kl laca (htarch 33, 2024 AL.B22.36 Laea).

d credit loss on trade s 33 Follows.

1n

Batance at the begnine of the vear . .
Addition during the vear 123.55}

Utilisation/reversal of provision duning the year -
Balance 353t theend of the year {23,551 -

5_Trade recelvables Apeing Schedula:

A atMarch 32, 2028 Tutstandiag lor fallawing periods rom due date of payment
Partkulars m':;:::"' Lessthan & Months | 6 months =1 year | 1-2years -1years m;;;":“ I Total
d Trade - dgocd 64.770.64 13,145.91 w0r3a 14482 - 464.60 7873
Trade - which b ificant increase in credit itk - - 4316 - 9010 13325
Undisputed Trade receivable - credit impaired - . - 211.55) 122581
i Trade . d good - - . . - . . .
Disauted Trade receivables - which have significant increase in eredit risk - - . .
Diveuted Trade receivaliles - credit Imzaired - - . - . . .
Tetal 53,770,641 13,145.91 207.38 - 127.98 - 531.15 IBB27.02

Lest:Undisouted Trade Reccivables — whith have significant increane in credit itk {50.10}
Mat Trade receivables 78,756,932

As at Mareh 31, 2024 Qutstanding far followlag peiriads from due date of payment

Particulars ""::';‘u':“' Less than 6Months | & manths— 1 year L2yean 2ayans M“;::‘:“ 3 fowt
dif d Trade T idered gaod 43.819.01 15.802.45 3.022.75 - 55.51 . - 62.7119.72
Undisputed Trade Receivables ~ which have significant increase in credit risk . - - - 90.10 20.10
Undisputed Trade reeeivable = credit impaired - - . - - . . -
Disouted Trade receivables - considercd good . - - - - -
Disputed Trade recelvables - which have significant increang in tredit mk - . . . . . - B
Cisputed Trade receivables — credit impaired - . .
Total 43.839.01 15,802.4% 302275 - 35.51 L3

L esyAindiyputed Trade Receivables - which have significant increase in credit sk
lrm Trade receivablet
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15. Cash and cash equivalents

{i) cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash on hand
Balances with banks:
- Current accounts
- Cash credit accounts
Tota!

Deposits with banks
Deposits with remaining maturity of more than 3 months and less than
12 months®

Deposits with remaining maturity of more than 12 months*

Less : Disclosed under
Other bank balances {Note 15a)
Other financial assets {Note 10c)

15a Other bank bzlances

Deposits with banks

Asat
March 33, 2025

As at
March 31, 2024

27.49 28.21
83.61 172.54
65.66 959.47
176.76 300.22
619.63 410.35
03.06 165.57
712,69 575.92
6519.63 410.35
93.06 165.57
712.69 575.92
As at As at
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
619.63 410.35
618.63 410,35

* Deposits Rs. 182.53 (March 31, 2024: Rs.264.42 ) are pledged with banks against bank guarantees, letter of credit and margin meney for availing Buyer's credit and fixed
deposits of Rs. 438.50 lacs {March 31, 2024 : Rs. 311.50 lacs) which are made out of specified funds for CSR Activities.

Note:-

Entire Cash and Cash equivalents and depasits with banks of the Group have been hypothecated/mortgaged to secure borrowings and to secure bank guarantees and letter of

credit of the Group [refer note 17) .

For the purpose of the statement of cash flow, cash and cash equivalents comprise the following:

Cash on hand

In current accounts
Cash credit accounts
Total

Changes In liabilitles arisIng from financing activities

Ogrening balance of borrowings
Cash flows
Closing Balance of Borrowings

Movement of interest accrued

Opening balance of interest accrued
Interest Expense

Interest Paid

Capitalised as pre-operative {refer note 6)
Closing Balance of interest acerued

As at As at
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
2749 28.21
83.61 172.54
65.66 99.47
176.76 300.22
Current Non Current
As at As at As at As at
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024 Mareh 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
36,203.48 32,049.88 13,661.56 5,117.93
31,774.29 4,153.60 7,763.91 8,543.63
67,977.77 36,203.48 21,425.47 13,661.56
Asat As at
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
235.01 147.96
5,887.51 5,194.27
(6,345.83) {5,607.08)
508.00 503.86
288.70 239.01
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CIM: UI37HR2005PLCOA5675
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16. Equity shace capital

Asat Asat
Particulars March 31, 2025 Mareh 31, 2024
Authorised share capital
26,67.13,390 equity shares of R3.2/- 22ch {March 31, 2024: 533:.27 5.334.27
16,67.13,330 ecuite shares of Rs.2/- eacht
Total Authertied share capltal $,134.27 5.334.37

Isswed shares, subseribed and fully paid-up shires
71.90,55,489 equity shares of As. 2/~ each fully paidd up (March 31,

2024: 21,90,55,489 equity shares of R 2/- each fully paid up} 4,381.11 4,331.11
Teotal Subscribed & pald-up share £agitab 4.381,11 4,181.11
A. Recandllation of no. of shares 3ad amounts In Rz in bacs
Asat Asat Arat Asat

March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024 March 33, 2025 March 31, 2024
Equity shazes No of shares Mo of shares fis. In lacs Re.in laes
At the begineing of the year 21,50,55,489 221263171 4,351.11 4,415.16
Equity shares buy back during the year® - 122.12.682} - (53 35}
Althe end of the year 21,50,55459 21,50,55,48% 4.181.11 4,3

*The Parect Company vide Board resolution cated July 20. 2023 acrorded approval for buyback of s tully paid-up equity shares of face vatue of INR 2/- [Rupees Two each) uplo 22,12,682 a1 a price af R3. 135.58/: per
equity share,

B, Terms/Rights attached to equity shares

The Parent Company has anly one class of equity thares having par vatue of Ry, 2 per thase, Each bglder of equity shares Is entilied to one vote pas share. The Pasent Company decliees and pays dividends in indian
rvpees. The Parent Company has nol detlared dividend during the current year and previous year.

In the evenl of figuidation af the Parent Company, the holders ol #quity shares will be entitled 1o receive remaining a35e1s of the Parent Compasy, alter dstribution of 3ll preferentlsh #maunts. The gistrbution will be in
progorticn 1o the number of equity shates held by the sharehclders.

In respect of 2,65,89,450 { March 31,2024: 2,B5,39,450 equity staces held by Global Scrap Peocessors Limited (“GSPLT) , GSPL has right 1o vt ©n any resclution for the winding up of the Parent Company of for the
repayment of reduction of its equity, G5PL is also entitked to appoint one director an bazid of the Parent Company and the board of each of the subsiduries. The quorum of a meeting of the board shall be 1f3rc of ity
total strength and two direeiors, which {s higher, GSPL'S Direciar, present throughout the meeting, unless olherwise agreed with the invesior's consent. No action ar decltbon relating to any of
the reverved matters 33 in shall be taken unless GSPL's consent is oblalned for such action or cecition.

€. Detally of sharehelders holdings more than 3% shares

Asat Asat

Mameof Sharehalder March 3I.ZDI: - March 31, 2024

KNumber of shares held ‘:’:;::: ° Humberalshares held  Percentage of Holding
£qulty shares of Ra. 2 ¢ach [Previous year Rs. 30 each) fully pald
{1h She Mahan Azarwal 9,38,54.861 41.85% 13.64.90.45% 62.1%
[ii) Sme. Pralibta Agzrwal 443,395,789 10.25% 4,43,49,760 20.15%
[iii} Glabal Scrap Processars Limited ™ 2,B5,89,450 1305% 21,85,89,450 13.05%
[ev) Mr. Akshay Azanwal 2,19,05,549 10.00% 9.90,540 0.45%
tv] Mr. Raghay Agarwal 2,12,05,549 10.00% 1,384,980 0.08%

*The Board of Directers of the Company in ts meeting held on 20th tuly 2023 accarded approval for buy back of equity thares and accordingly 11.06,311 equity shares wiere bought back from Globa! Scrap Processors
Umited.

D, Detalls of shares held by Promoters:
Az at March 31, 2028

Mo, of shaces at the

Promoter Hame beginming of the  Change during the year No. of shares a the end % of Total Shares *change during the
year ol the year year
(it Shn Makan Agarwal 11,64,90,459 18,26,35,578] 9,38,54.B81 42.85% -19.46%
{li) Sme. Pratisha Azarwal 4.81,49.780 . 4,43,49,780 10.25% 0.00%
{il) Gauri Shankar Agarwala (HUF) 63,66.,620 - 64,66,620 2.95% 0.00%
{iv] Mohan Axzrwal (HUF) 19,80,540 . 19.80.520 0.50% 0.00%
[v) Me. Ashav Azarwal 9.90.540 2,09,15,009 2.14.05,549 10.00% 9.55%
i) Mr. Raghav Azarwa) 1,B4,980 2.17.10.569 2,19,05,549 10.60% 292%
twil) Akshay Agarwal Family Private Trust 780 - 780 0.00% 0.00%
fvill) GS Azarwala Family Private Trust 730 - 780 0.00% 0.00%
{ix) K Agawa) Famity Prhoate Trust 780 . 780 0.00% 0.00%
{x} Raghav Agarwal Family Private Trust T80 . 80 0.00% 0.00%
As at March 31, 2024
No. of shares at the
Promuter Kame beglaningefthe  Change durlngthe year Ho. of shargs 3t the end w6 of Total Shares % change during the
year ol the year year

(il $hri Gaurl Shankar Azarwala 4,11.92.760 14,11,92,760) . C.00% -18.62%
(i) Sent. Kalawad Azdrwal 401,348,840 (4,01,38,440) - 0.00% -18.14%
{ili) Shrh Mohan Aggnwal 5,62,65,600 8.02,23.859 13,64.90.459 62.31% 315.85%
{iwvi §mi. Pratibha Agarwal 4,41,49,780 . 443.45,760 20.25% 0.20%
{v) Gauth Shankar Agarwala {HUF] 61.66,613 . 64,66,620 295% 0.00%
) Mohan Axanwal (HUF) 19,80,54% - 19,80.540 0.90% 0.00%
{ii) Mr. Akshay Agarwal 9,90,540 - 490,530 0.45% 0.00%
i) Mr. Razhav Agarwal 1,831,980 - 1,84,980 0.08% 0.00%
fin} Akshav Agarwal Famuby Private Trust 730 - 780 0.00% 2.00%
t) GS Agarwala Family Private Trust 730 - 7E0 0.00% D.00%
1} K Agawal Family Private Trust 780 . 70 0.00% 0.00%
{xi) Raghav Axzrwal Family Private Yrust %0 . 780 0.00% 0.00%

K, Aggregrate number of equity shares isued 3 bonug, shares lisued for banus other than eash and thares Bought back during the period of flve years immedlately preceeding the reperting date:-

panlealars daan Asat AsatMich11, 2023 AsatMarch31, 2002 March3l 2021
No. of shares, Ho. of shares Mo, of sharet Na. al shares No. of shares
Equity thares of Rs 10 each issued for considerallon other than gash - . - 33,.99.950 .
Ity shaves of Rs 2 Hatred as fully pald bonus thares b
Equ\‘: :’ each al nu. as fully pald bonus thares by . . R 20,26,33,311
Buy Back of equity shares 6F Rs.2 each a1 the valve of Rs 135.58/-
per equity shate (22,12.682) . -

Tetal - {2212, 631} s 20,60,33,301 -




CMR Green Techneloples Limited

Hotos ta the fidated fi: fal ts for the year ended March 31, 2025
CIN: U00337HAZ0D5PLCOBSETS

(Amount In Rupees 1acs, vnless othenwise stated)

16£3). Cther equity ;.
Azat Asat
Masch 31, 2025 March 31, 2014

Retained eamnings:

Opening balanee {53.102.05) 3129393
Profitf[tass) for the year 14,246.02 {84,432.74)
Other comprehensive incame for the vear 11643 30.26
Deeecogaition of the carrying amount of subsidiary (145.04} -
Claslag balante (39,017.50) 153,102.05)
Retained earnings refar (o net earnings not paid out as dividends, but retained by the Group 10 be reinvestad in its eore business. This amount it available for di of di tolts
equity shareholders.

Statutory reserve (pursuant to Sectlon 45 {IC) of RE! Act, 1534):

QOpening balance 84.39 B4.253
Changes during the year - .
Coslag balance 2139 8339
Statutory Reserve [pyrsuant to Section 45 {IC) of A Act, 1914} = The said reserve was d pi to Scheme of 1 peralning to one &l a Tiansferot company ramely Suvildhi
Flnancial Services Limited,

Caplad reserve

Opening balance 91,298.08 91.193.08
Changes dusing the year - .
Clasing balance 91,198.08 91,253.08
Capital reserve represents reserve recogrlsed on decount of 3 Scheme: of Asrangement.

Capltal redemption reserve .

Opening balanes 44.25 .
Created durlng the year - 43.15
Closiag batanse 44.25 4315
The Parent Company has bought back 22,12,682 equity shares curing the FY 23.24. Accordingly. Section 69 of Companies Act, 2013 require 10 ereale Capital redemplion reserve £qual 10
noeminal value ol shares bought back where the Company purchases ity own shares cut of i fum Jccount 1| the Parent Company has transferred the amount equal &
nominal value 1o tapital cedemption reserve cut of its setutities premium account.

Securitles premium:

QOpenlag batance BD,A74.37 83,793.55
Buybark of equity shaces [rafer note 15) - {2,955.74)
Teansler 10 capital redemption reserve . (48,25}
Taxon buyback of equity shares - [319.19)
Closing balance 30,874.37 £0,474,37

Securities premium is used to recore the premium an asue of shares, The reserve ¢an be utilised only for Lmited purposes duch a3 15suance of bonys shares in accordance with the prawvisions of
the Companies Act, 2013.

Total 1,32,883.60 1,18,799.04
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17. flnancial labllitles

17a. Borrowings [at amortised cost) Non - Cureent Current
Asat As at Asat Asat

March 31, 2025 March 31,2024 March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Fram banks
Term loans (Secured) 25,825.14 16,171.96 193.38 .
Vehi¢le loans {Secured) - - . 13,77
Buyers credit {Secured) . . 8,741.09 9,329.46
Cash credit {Secured) . . 5.103.34 2,757.77
Vendor financing {Secured) - - - .
Vendor financing (Unsecured) . . N .
Commerclal Card {Unsecured) - . - -
Working capltal demand loans (Secured) - - 35,063.86 10,311.46
Worklng capital demand loans [Unsecured) - - 13,800.00 10,000.00
Bilk discounting {Unsecured) - - - -

Supply Chaln Finzacing

Fram financtal [nstltutlon

Indlan rupees loan [Secured) - . - -

Supnly Chaln Financing (Unsecured) . - - 474.17

From Others

taterest free Indlan rupees loan from Haryana Government - - .

{ Unsocured )

Lean from related parties {Unsecured) - - 670.43 B05.44
25,825.14 16,171.96 63,578.10 33,693.07

Less: Current Maturities of non-current borrowlings 14,359.67) {2,510.40) 4,399,627 2510.41
21,425.47 13,661.56 67,977.77 36,203.48

The above amount Includes

Secured borrowings 21,415.47 13,661.56 53,507.34 24,922.86

Unsecured borrowings - . 14,470.43 11,280.62
21,425.47 13,661.56 67,977.77 36,203.48

Notes:

(1) The maturity profile, security and rate of interest of the term loans from banks/ financlal institution/others are as glven below:

loan | Loan Amount_{Rs In Lacs) ] Rateofinterest | Repayment Terms | Soeurity

indian rupge term foan from:

Mareh 31, 2025: Rs 800.53 The term loan is repayable In equal quarterly

HDFC Bank {March 31, 2024: Rs 1,201.08) B.34% - 8.85% installment of Rs 150 lacs. Refer Note a) below
7 years including maratrium perlod of 1.5 years.
March 31, 2025: Rs. .40
Axls Bank are 75: Rs.2392 8.05% - 8.35% 22 equal quarterly instaliments of 70.45 lacs Refer Note (b) below

{March 31, 2024 : NIL) starting fram 30.06.2026

7 years including moratrium period of 1.5 years,
B.48% - B.73% 22 equal quartarly installments of 70.45 lacs Refer Note (b) below
starting fram 30.05.2026

March 31, 2025: Rs,1598.00

Federal Bank {March 31, 2024 : NIL)

March 31, 2025: Rs. 3665.65 7 years including moratrium period of 1.5 years.

1CHCY Bank 8.50% - B.60% 22 equal quarterly Installments of 70.45 lacs Refer Note [b) below
h 31,2024 :
{March 31, 2024 : 1550) starting from 31.12.2025
5 years including maratorlum period of 1 year.

March 31, 2025: Rs. 1604.19 The term loan outstanding as an 31.03.25 is

HOFC Bank {March 31, 2024 : 2,673.67) 8.34% - B85 copayable in 6 equal quarterly Instatlment of | Peor Hote (e below
267.37 lacs starting from June 2025.

March 31, 2025: Rs, 193, 20 I ed instalments of 391

HEEC Bank arch 3 5. 193.38 8,24%.8.75% quanerly equated instalments of R$.193.39 lacs Refer Noze (d) below

(March 31, 2024: 966.95} starting from Aug 2020.
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{Amount in Rupees lacs, unless otherwlse stated]

2 year moratarlum, after that 20 cqual quarterly
. 2025: Rs. 8,000,
Federa) Bank 'ﬂ;;‘;::{h z?:i :f: :1%03;0 8.35%-8.73% installments of the disbursed amount starting | Refer Note (e} below
e {from June 2025 up te March 2030.
2 Year moratorium, th fter 20 equal (l
March 31, 2025: Rs.7,964.39 . Jeburcnd iy )
HDFC Bank (;;.:Marchzzoz . 31506:31 8.55%-9.20% Inst of the starting | Refer Note {e) below
P from Sept 2025 up to July 2030,
The term loan s repayable In 16 equal quarterly
Axis Bank (March 31, 2028: 159.30) 7.50% Installments of Rs 13.27 lacs starting from 30th Refer Note {g) below
lune 2023 and ending on 31st March 2027
Vehicle loans :
March 31, 2025: Rs. Nil
6.4 5
HOFC bank {March 31, 2024: 6.45) 7.25% 39 equated monthly Instalments of Rs.6.48 lacs Refer Note [{} befow
March 31, 2025: Rs.Nil .
¢ hi . 1. .
ICICI bank (March 31, 2024: 7.32) 7.80% 35 equated monthly instalments of Rs. 1.86 lacs. Refer Note ([] below

a) CMR Tayotsu Atuminium Indla Private umited, a subsldiary company had taken a term lean In the financial year 2020-21.The loan Is secured agalnst first parl-passu charge over the entire fixed assets (MFA &
IMFA) of the sald subsidiary company, present and future including Equitable Mortgage of factory land and bullding at Plot No A-2 & A-5 Sipeot Industrial Park, Pillalpakkam, Chennal, vallam and factory land at G-
108 P1. SIPCOT Industrial Park, Vallam - Vadagal, Chennal and coll ly d by lon of secand pari-passu charge over current assels of the said subsidiary company.

{b) CMR Aluminiym Private Limlted has taken the term loan facllitles from Axis, Federa) and ICICI Bank are secured by :

.1st Pari Passu charge over movable fixed assets {bath present and future) of Qdisha Plant

- 13t Parl Passu charge by way of equitable martage of immaovable assets sitvated at Mouza-Derba, P5 Katarbaga, PS No 33, Tabasil - Rangali, District - Sambalpur, Orissa in the Rengali sub reglstratian Elaka of the
district Jurlsdiction of Sambalpur bearing major settlement Khata no 326/433, and Khata no 326/432. Further, these loans are secured by corporate g of Parent Comp
-Second pari passu charge on current assets of the said subsldiary company.

{¢) CMR Aluminlum Private Limited has taken the term loan facilizies {rom HDFC Bank are secured by :

-Exclusive charge over movable fixed assets { both present and future) and immovable assets situated at survey no 456, Mowe-vanod, Taluka Dadasa, Village Vanod, Surendranagar, Gujarat.
-Second parl passu charge on cutrent assets of the sald subsidiary company.

-Corporate Guarantee of CMR Green Technologles Limited.

{d] Indian rupee term loan of Parent company from HOFC Bank is secured by first charge on entire movable fixed assets of the Company, (both present and future, except those financed by other financial
institutions and loans taken agalnst specifle vehiclesh at Tatarpur, Bhiwadi, Manesar ang Halol and second parl passu charge on entire current assets of the Company. [tis further secured by first par passu charge
{bath present and future) on land and building focated at Tatarpur,

[a} CMR Eco Alurinium Private Uimited, a subsidiary company has taken a term loan from HDEC and Federal Bank Is secured by the following :

. First parl passu charge on fixed assets of the sald subsidiary company [movable and immovable}, Including equitakl gage of Fagtory Land & Building of Tirupat! Plant.
- Second park passu charge on the current assets of the said subsidiary company, bath present and future.

. Corporate Guarantee of CMR Green Technologles Limited.

(f} Vehicle loans are secured by way of flrst charge over specific vehicle of parent Company and the same are ropayable as per terms of agreement.

{g) CMR-Kataria Recycling Private tmited, a subsidiary company has taken a term loan which Is secured by exclusive charge over current assels and maovable fixed assets { both presen

t and future) of the sald

subsidiary company. Further, it is secured by Corporate guarantee of Parent Company and Kent Industrtal Park Private Umited. in FY 2435, CMR Kataria is no longer subsldliary. Hence, current year balance are

not distcosed.

The securlty and rate of intorest of the shost term borrawings are as given below:

Lean Loan Amount (As In Lacs) Rate of Interest during Repayment terms Securlty
the peried
Cash credit {secured)
March 31, 2025: Rs. 1380.86
- bl
HDFC Bank {March 31, 2026: Nil) 9.50%-9.70% Repayable on demand Refer Naote () below
March 31, 2025: Rs. 405.41
. . 5
58) Bank (March 31, 2024: 195.18) 8.70% - 10.20% Repayable on demand Reler Note (2} below
March 31, 2025: Rs.50.20
‘ Ri |
ICICY Bank {March 31, 2024: 1,980.64) 8.57%-9.00% epayable on demand Refer Note (a) below
March 31, 2025: Rs 102.50
S8 Bank March 31, 2024 Rs. NIl 8.70%- 10.20% Repayable on demand Refer Note (b) below
March 31, 2025: Rs 415.42
- R d
HDFC Bank "March 31, 2024 - Rs. 302.68 9.60% - 9.70% epayable on deman Refer Naote (b) below
March 31, 2025 - Rs 1800.40
SB1 Bank March 31, 2024 - Nit 8.60% - 10.20% Repayable on demand Refer Note {c] below
March 31, 2025 - Rs 140
Axis Bank March 31, 2024 - Rs 3.07 9.50% Repayable on dernand Refer Nate (c} betow
Mareh 31, 2025: Rs. 295.04
R
HDFC Bark (March 31, 2024 : 221.32) 9.55%9.70% cpayable on demand Refer Note {d) below
Margh 31, 2025: Rs. 519.51
HOFC Bank { March 31, 2024 NIL) 9,55% -9.70% Repayable on demand Refer Note {g) below
March 31, 2029 NIL
il . . bl
Axls Bank {March 31, 2024: 53.88] 7.5% - B.50% Repayable on demand Refer Nate (h) below
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[Amount In Rupees lacs, unless otherwise stated)

Working capital d d loans-Indlan Rupees | d)

March 31, 2025: Rs.4,000.00

SBI Bank {March 31, 2024; NIl 7.65% - 7.85% Re-payable on demand Refer Note (2} below
HDFC Bank M?::f:;';ﬁ;;:'i;ﬂiw 7.80% - 10.36% Re-payahle on demand Refer Note {a) below
|ICICY Bank T::::: ‘3123224“3;500030? B8.07% - 9.10% Re-payahle on demand Refer Note (a) below
Shinhan Bank March 31, 2025: £.4,000.00 7.55% - 7.80% Re-payable on demand Refer Note (a) below

{March 31, 2024: Nil)

March 31, 2025: Rs.8,500.51
RBL Bank arch 31, 2025: fs.4.5 7.38% - 10.02%

{March 31, 7024: 1,500.00) Re-payable an demand

Refer Note (a} below

March 31, 2025 - il For a period not exceeding 3 months from

Axls Bank {March 31, 2024: 1592.68) 7.80%-9.60% drawdown date Refer Note {a} below
HOFC Bank Ma;;:' ::a‘i?‘z;;iﬁ:?m 7.89%-0.23% Ra-payable on demand Refer Note (g) below
T IV T pee—
HDFC Bank n:':;‘zli g‘;'_i’sg:f 7.98% - 9.45% For a perlad :::f:::i':ﬁ;mmh’ from Reler Note (c} below
RBL Bank Mr:ra::r;nz;g:smz “:fw 7.30% - 10.02% For a period :::2’::::':2 i months from fefer Nate (b} betow
HDFC Bank .ﬂ::gi‘;ggf;:offm 7.53% - 9.60% For a period 'L::ﬁ:::::i xaem"m from Refer Note (b) befow
SBI Bank Ma,::;:hlaioigzss :?Loo 7.70%-7.85% For a perind 'Lt::’:::iizga femmh’ from Reler Note (b) befow
xis Bank March 31, 2025: Rs 1000 B.00%-9.75% Far a period not exceeding 3 months from Refer Note (b} below

‘tarch 31, 2024: NIL drawdown date

March 31, 2025: Rs, 2,500 For a perlod not exceeding 3 menths from

c1ec "March 31, 2024: Rs. Nil 7.55% - 7.65% drawdown date Refer Note (e} below
Working capltal demand loans-tndlan Rupees [unsecured)
March 31, 2025: Rs.5,000.00
Yes Bank (tarch 31, 2024; 5.000.00) 7.30%-8.64% Re-payable on demand Unsecured
March 31, 1025: Rs 4,000 for a poried not exceeding 3 months from
Ves Bank “March 31, 2024 NIL 7.33%-7.36% drawdown date Unsecured
March 31, 2025: Rs.2,500.00
i
CTBC Bank {arch 31, 2024: 5.000.001° 7.55% - 7.65% for a period not excesding 3 months from Unsecured
. drawdown date
{was unsecured during previous year)
barch 31, 2025: Rs.2,300.00 Fot a period not exceeding 4 months from
CTEC Bank {March 31, 2024: NIL) 7.60%-7.65% drawdown date Unsecured
|Bg!ers Credit {secured)
March 31, 2025: Rs.1,020.92 For a pericd not exceeding 200 days from
HOFC fiank {March 31, 2024: 2,458.36) Libor+125hps drawdown date, fiefer Note {a) below
March 31, 2025: Rs.2,432.95 For a pericd not exceeding 200 days from
HSBC Bank {March 31, 2024: 1.704.95) Libors60bps to 140kps drawdown date. Refer Note {a) below
Mareh 31, 2025: Rs.5,287.20 Far a period not exceeding 150 days from
Axls Bank {March 31, 2024: 5,126.14) Libor+a0bps to 60bps drawdown date. Reler Kote {a) below
|Supply Chaln Finanting
March 31, 2025: Rs.NIL For a period not exceeding 3 months from Unsccured and Refer

NEFC 13.75%

{March 31, 2024: 474.17) drawdown date Note (i) below
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{Amount In Rupees lacs, uniess otherwlse stated}

Loan from related parties { unsecured )

Loan Loan Ampunt (Rs In Lacs) Rate 0:}:::;33:“'1"8 Repayment Terms Securlty
CMR-Chiho Reeyeling Technalogy Private Umited m;‘r::;fg:::;:ﬁ :’:,9 - Repayable on demand unsecured
CMR Tech Solutians Private Umited I';::;::h!;lzgs;ni:;a 7%-8.25% flepayable on demand Unsecured
Kent tndustrlal Park Private Umited lM:;’::;::‘[;:f;:';‘m 750% Repayable on demand Unsecured

(a) First parl passu charge with other member banks of consortium on all the current assets of the parent Company, Including all type of stocks lying in thelr factories, godowns, elsewhere {including GIT) and
Parent Company's book debts/recetvables (present and future).

Second parl passu charge on entlre fixed assets {excluding Land and Building) of the Parent Company {bath present and future), excluding movable fixed assets at Harldwar plant. It is further secured by equitable
mortgage second parl-passu charge over land and bullding located at Tatarpur.

b) “Axls led Consortlum ol Bank whereln SB), HDFC, Federal, Axis, RBL and CTBC are the member banks Jfang with $81 Bank.

>First pari -passu charge an entire current assets of CMR Toyotsw Aluminium India Private Limited (both present and future) Including hypothecation of all stocks of raw materlals, stores, spares, stocks In process,
finlshed goods, ete., lying In factary, go-downs, elsewhere and including goods in transit and recetvables / book debts.

>Second parl-passu charge over the fixed assets of €MR Toyotsu Aluminium India Private Limited, including Equitable mortgage of factory land & building at Plot No. A-&, A-5 SIPCOT Industrial Park at
Pillalpakkam, Sriperumgudur, Bistrict Kanch; Chennai and et ble mosgage of factary and land and building a1 G-108/2, Sipeot Industrial Park, Vallam-vadagal, Chennai,

»Corporate Guarantee of CMR Green Technologies Limited.

>75,00,000 shares of CMR Toyotsu Aluminlum India Put. L1d (shareho!der is CMR Green Technologies Limlted) In respect of cradit facilities granted by the bank to this CMR Toysisw Aluminiem Indla Private
Limited,

*CTBC Bank facikitles were secured during the year as CTBC Bank was inducted into consurtium during FY 24-25.

c)Working Capital facilities Is secured by first charge on the entire current assets on pari -passu basis of CMR Nikkei India Private Umited with other working capital lenders both present & future, including
hypothecation of all typas of stocks of raw material, stares, spares, stock-In-process, finished goads, cic. lylng In factory, godowns, elsewhere {including goods in transit] and company’s recelvables/ Book debt.
Cellaterals: First Charge on pari passu basls over the fixed assets except vehicles speclfically hypothecated against vehicte loans of Bawal plant of CMR Nikkel tndia Private Limlted of the company (present and
future] Including Equitable Mortgage of factory Land & Bullding at Plat No. 65, Sector-15, Bawal-123501, Haryara.

{d) CMR Aluminium Private Limited, 3 subsldlary campany has taken a working capital facility during the previous year, which is secured by extlusive charge over curreat assets, movable fixed assets { both
present and future) and by way of registercd mortgage of immovable property situated at survey no 466, Mouje-Vanaod, Taluka Dadasa, Village Vanod, Surendranagar, Gujrat of the sald subsidiary company.
Further, it is sccured by Corporate guarantee of Pazent Company.

£) The facilitles sanctioned by CTBC Bank are unsecured, CTEC bank has sanctloned bili discounting facillties as main Emit amounting to Bs. 2,500 lacs. CMR Toyotsu Aluminitm Indla Private Limited has utilised Rs.
2.500 lacs WCDL facititles which is the sub limit to main limit,

{f) A Non-banking Financing Company {'NBFC'] has sanctioned Supply Chain Financing Limit to the parent Company, as a sub-limit of a customer. Under such Umit, during the current year such NBFC has
discounted sales bills of customer and an amount of Rs. NIL {March 31, 2024 : Rs. 474.17 tacs) is outstanding. Such amount is appearing as receivable from a customer (included in trade recelvables) and
appearing as payable to NBFC {including in borrowings).

As per the terms of Sanctlon letter, in ¢ase the custamer falls to pay the outstanding amount including interest on due date, the same will be recovered from customer. Further, in case the outstanding bs not
realisable the recourse will be on the Parent Company. However, during the FY 24-25 the same is paid by the customer to NBEC. Hence, cutstanding libaility is nil.

{g}'The working capital loan from HOFC Bank I secured by the following :

- Second pari passu charge on fixed 35sets of CMR Eco Aluminium Private Limited {movable and immovable), including equitable mongage of Factory Land & Building of Thrupatl Plant..
« Flrst parl passu charge on the current assets of CMR Eco Atuminium Private Limited , both present and future.

- Further, itis secured by Corporate guarantee of Parent Company.

{h) CMR-Kataria Recycling Private Limited, a subsidiary company has taken 5 working capital facility during the reporting year, which is secured by exclusive charge aver current assets, movable fixed assets [ both
present ang future) of 1he said subsidiary company. Further, 12 is secured by C of Parent C¢

In FY 24-25, CMR Katarla is no longer subsidiary. Hence, current year balance are not dislcosed.
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(Amountin Rupees lacs, uniess otherwlse stated)

for the year ended March 31, 2025

17[b] Trade Payables [#1 amortised cost]

Asar Asat
Macch 31,2028 March 31, 2024
Trade payables {including acceplances)
Total ing dues of micro and small B 43377 371.45
22,693.81 1241609
Total eutstanding dues ather than micro enterprises and small enterprises®
TOTAL 23,127.58 12.787.55
Terens and conditlons of the abave financlal liabilities:
a) Trads payables are nondnterest bearing and are normally settled on 0-60 days terms.
b) For terms and conditions with retated parties, refer note 32
¢l For on the Group's credit risk processes, referio Nole 37
® includes Ry, 5,366.78 Lacs { March 33, 2024 : Re. 5,352.49 lacs) payable to refated parties (Reler note 32)
Teade payables Agelng Schedule
At 31 March 31, 2025
Particulars Not due or unbilled Less than 1 year 1-2years T-3years Maorethan 3 years Tatal
Total ding dues of mi and seall 253.09 17463 0.05 - - 43377
Total outstanding dues of creditors other than emilcrd enterprives and small enterprises 12997.29 4,274.50 4.701.70 718.82 148 12,693.81
Daputed dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises .
Disputed dues of crediters other Lhan micro enterprises and umall enterprites. . 3 . . . )
Tetal 13,256.28 4449.13 4,701.15 718.84 148 23,127.58
AyratMarch 31, 2024
Particulars Kot dus or unblited Lessthan 1 year 12 years 2.3 years More than 3 years Total
Totat ding dues of mi prises and small 8872 E2.74 - - - 3745
Total autstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and small enterprises 1,874.84 12,88D.97 2,324.79 132713 202.75 17,416.0%
Dirputed dues of micro #nterprises aod small enterpriyes - - - -
Disputed dues of ereditors cther than micro enterprises and ymall enterprises . ) ) ) .
Total 1,951.56 13.163.70 2,323.78 13274 202.35 17,787.55
17{c) Other Nnandal tiabllities Hon Current Current
Asat Asat Asat Asat
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024 March 31, 2025 March 31,2024
{1} Derlvative Instruments at fakr value thraugh profiz of loss:
Mark to market loas currency (utures . 347
Hark to market lows on commodity Futures . 63341 1.268.6%
- - 643.41 17216
{ii) Qther fingnclal Habilities (a3t amortlsed cast)
Interest accrued but not due on berowings . 26901 15341
Intecett payable o relsted parties [Refer note 32) . . 16.86
Payable to subsidiary companies en acceynt ¢f gulstanding dentvative contracts [Refer note 32) . 413.31
Securily deposit from customers/ others 63.51 255t 266.95 290,06
Empicyee related liabilitles® . - 670.21 63t 43
Payable tor ¢3pial goods - - 282283 1,508.58
63.51 25.51 434234 2,500.34
Financial guarantee H{at [air vatus) - - 134 117
Total £3.51 25.51 5080 3.873.67
laghudes At 17,23 403 {March 31,2024 : Rs. £5.05 Lacs) payable to related parties (Refer MNote 32).
HThe Parent C hadp financial g inreipect of credit faciblies 3vailed by a5 joint venture Kikkei CMR Aluminium Private Limited as follows:
Arat Asat
—March31,2035  March3z qoza
Guarantes phren to MIZUHO Bank ea behalf of
Mkl CMA Alumintum Private Limited 2.860.00 1,820.00
Guarantee given Lo SMEC Bank on behall of
Mikkel CMR Alurtinlym Private Uimited 1,020.00 520.00
3,500.00 2,340.00
18, Pravisions Non-current Current
Asat Asat Asat Asat
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024 March 31, 2025 March 31,2024
Provision far employee henefits
Provision [or gratuity (Note 39) T16.14 08,25 1Hen 106.32
Provision for leave benefity 461.42 82.76 219.70 a8%.21
Tatal
!.I'LB.SG £943.02 33397 595.53
13. Other liabllitles
Asat As at
March 31, 3025 March 31, 2024
Contract Nabilities - Advance i
- Related party (Refer note 32) LIRE] -
-Others 50470 «40.25
Taxes and other statutery dues 1331.20 1,256.18
Firen commitment for purchase of Inventery of raw matertals {Refer note 45) 173,95 -
Interest on Income tax 19.65 6374
Deferred Government grant 120282 37833
Other Payables 0.4 -
Liabllity towards Corporate Social Responsibility 619.72 798.41
Total 3,942.48 2.950.91
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{Amount in Rupees lacs, unless othenwise stated)

20. Revenue From Operations For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Revenue from contract with customers
Sale of Products
Manufactured goods 5,38,745.65 4,70,305.47
Traded goods 72.17 12.20
Other operating revenue:
Sale of service * 1,002.23 £65.37
Sale of scrap and others ** 1,26,837.19 1,23,654.18
Export Incentives 251.58 606.88
Total 6,66,908.82 5,95,244.10
* sale of services is in the nature of job works executed.
** Sala of scrap and others is in the nature of sepregated scrap, ash and residual sales.
{a) Timing of revenue recognition
Products transferred at a point in time 6,65,655.01 5,93,971.85
Services rendeced at a point in time 1,002.23 665.37
Total 6,66,657.24 5,94,637.22
{b) Reconcillation of amount of revenue recognised with contract price
Revenue as per contracted price 6,66,657.24 5,94,637.22
(c) Contract balances
Trade Receivables 78,756.92 62,719.72
Contract Assets - Unbilled Revenue 2.561.27 953.25
Contract liabilities - Advance from customers 504.70 449.25

In case of Trade receivables, the Group charges interest on overdue trade recevables and are generally on terms of 0 to 90 days for customers
other than related parties. In case of related party, the Group charges interest from day one.

Contract assets represents revenue earned but yet to be billed.
Contract liabilities represents advances received for sales vet to be made.

[d] Set out below is the amount of revenue recognised from
Amounts included in contract liabilities at the beginning of the vear 449.25 819.90

Performance obligation

The Group recognises revenue from sale of goods at the point in time when control of the goods is transferred to the customer, generally on
delivery of the goods. The performance obligation is satisfied upon delivery of the goods and payment is generally due within 0 to 90 days from
delivery.

21. Other incame For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2029
Interest on fixed deposits 30.27 36.59
Interast from related parties (Refer note 32) 19.15 46.88
Interest from income tax 2.90 -
Interest on trade receivables and others 397.84 730.94
Gain in foreign exchange fluctuation (net) 151.95 255.99
Rental income 1.09 3.93
Management support fees from related parties {Refer note 32} . 119.80
Insurance claims received - 210.12
Liability towards custom/stamp duty written back - 10.54
Profit on sale of investment praperty - 21.06
Sundry balances written back (net) - 1.02
Ineffective portion of forward commodity contracts designated as fair value hedges {net} 984.55 -
Unrealised Gain on commaodity future contracts {net) 359.28 -
Forward premium on realised and unrealised commedity contracts 661.16 -
Realised and unrealised profit on undesignated portion of fair value hedge (net} 192.06
Profit on disposal of property, plant & equipment (net) 0.89 -
tncome on account of financial guarantee 33.52 -
Corporate guarantee commission 107.94
Lease modifications 71.96
Other non operating income 3.24

3,017.80
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22. Cost of raw materials consumed*

Inventory at the beginning of the year
Add : Purchases during the year

Less : Inventory at the end of the year
Cost of raw materials consumed

For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
54,764.86 54,511.95
6,08,521.22 5,30,695.75
6,63,286.08 5,85,207.70
70,691.87 54,764.86
5,92,594.21 5,30,442.84

* Fair value hedges are mainly used to hedge the exposure to change in fair value of commadity price risks. The fair value adjustment remains
part of the carrying value of inventory and taken to profit and loss when the inventory is either sold or consumed.
The group has extended fair value hedge accounting on its inventory which forms part of raw material during the year, refer Note 45.

23(a} Purchase of traded goods

For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Purchase of traded goods 70.50 11.95
70.50 11.95
23(b) Changes in inventory of finished goods
For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Opening Stock
-Finished goods 5,353.28 5,984.41
-Traded goods - -
Closing Stock
-Finished goods 9,378.03 5,353.28
-Traded goods 129.40 -
Change in inventory {4,154.16) 631.13
24. Employee benefits expenses
For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Salaries, wages and bonus 13,056.53 11,432.51
Contribution to provident and other funds 343,12 289,01
Gratuity expense {Refer note 39) 182.94 149.16
Staff welfare expenses 951.73 1,042.26
14,534.32 12,912,894
25. Finance costs
For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Interest expense:
- On income tax 77.99 73.98
- Interest to related parties (Refer note 32) 0.33 51.45
- Interest cost on lease liabilities {refer note 31{a)) 280.78 299.62
- On borrowings and others 5,528.41 4,769.22
- Other finance costs 33.64 -
Exchange difference to the extent considered as an adjustment to borrowing cost 148.58 56.81
Lead Bank and Annual processing fees, etc. 51.10 125.14
6,120.83 5,376.22
26. Depreciation and amortization expense
For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2025 March 3%, 2024
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment (Refer note 6) 5,436.32 4,112.31
Depreciation on investment property {Refer note 7 - 0.47
Amortisation of intangible assets {Refer note 9) 47.10

Depreciation of right-of-use assets {Refer note 31{a)) 785.84
6,269.26




CMR Green Technologies Limited

Notes to the consolidated financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2025
CIN: UDD337HR2005PLCOB5675

{Amount in Rupees lacs, unless otherwise stated}

27. Other expenses

Consumption of stores and spares
Consumption of packing materials
Power & fuel

Bank charges

Repair and maintenance of:

- Plant and equipment

- Buildings

- Others

Printing and stationery

Rent paid
Insurance charges

Rates and taxes

Advertisement, publicity and sales promotion

Travelling and conveyance expenses

Vehicle running and maintenance

Freight and cartage outward

Communication expenses

Payment to statutory auditor {(Refer details below)

Legal and professional expenses

Loss on disposal of property, plant & equipment, intangible asset and devaluation of assets held

for sale (net)
Charity and donation

Security service expenses

Dross processing expenses

Director sitting fees

Commission on currency and commodity derivatives

Fluctuation in Foreign Exchange (net)

Ineffective partion of forward commodity contracts designated as fair value hedges {net}
Realised and unrealised profit on undesignated portion of fair value hedge (net)
Sundry balances written off (net)

Impairment allowance for trade Receivables- Credit impaired (Refer note 14)
Carporate Social Responsibility

Procurement commission

Sales Commission

Miscellangous expenses

Total

Payment to statutory auditor:
As auditors:

Audit fee
In other capacity
Other services (certification etc.)
Reimbursement of expenses
Total

For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2025 March 21, 2024
1,978.78 2,119.57
36891 370.06
18,751.68 16,063.78
167.58 129.94
2,695.64 2,164.33
448.06 456.57
42.45 287.16
i2.34 36.86
1,078.73 936.84
291.31 227.79
120.64 160.32
114.23 87.95
840,59 621.49
7792 54.86
3,337.19 3,351.53
380.05 238.45
47.04 55.70
679.50 329.35
180.16 145.88
- 0.25
- 2.42
110.07 -
26.75 25.00
646.92 529.05
358.21 -
- 113.87
- 45.04
5.26 -
23.55 -
94.84 45192
4.75 10.08
80.12 91.63
529.01 3%96.97
33,492,28 29,504.80
For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
47.04 49.10
- 4.68
- 1.92
47.04 55.70
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28. The Code on Social Security, 2020 (‘Code’) relating to employee benefits during employment and post-employment benefits received
Presidential assent in September 2020. The Code has been published in the Gazette of India. However, the date on which the Code will come into
effect has not been notified. The Group will assess the impact of the Code when it comes into effect and will record any related impact in the

period when the Code becomes effective.

29. Earnings Per Share (EPS)
Basic and diluted EPS amounts are calculated by dividing the profit for the year attributable to equity shareholders of the Parent Company by the

weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the year.

For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Profit/(loss) attributable to equity holders 14,246.02 (84,432.74)
Weighted average number of equity shares in share capital account* 21,90,55,489 22,03,49,243
Total number of equity shares outstanding at the end of the year 21,90,55,489 21,90,55,489
Total number of equity shares outstanding used for computing basic and diluted EPS 21,80,55,489 22,03,49,243
Basic and diluted earnings per share 6.50 (38.32)

*The Parent Company vide Board resolution dated luly 20,2023 accorded approval for buyback of fully paid-up equity shares of face value of INR
2/- {Rupees Two each} upto 22,12,682 at a price of INR 135.58/- per equity shares. The weighted average number of equity shares outstanding

has been computed taking effect of such buy back.

30. Assets held for Sale
The management of the Group has identified certain items of property, plant and equipment which are not being used and are being disposed off,

Such items of property, plant and equipment have been disclosed as Assets held for sale as per below details:

Particulars For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024

a) Grass block of assets transferred from property, plant & equipment (refer note 6) 260.35 49.61

b) Accumulated depreciation on above assets transferred from property, plant & 208.96 19.87

equipment {refer note 6)

c) Loss accounted based on fair value expected to be realised - 21.35

Net Assets held for sale 51.39 8.39
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31. Leases:
a, Leases as a lessec

Operating lease : Group as lessee

The Group has entered inte operating leases for offices, factory land & buildings and guest houses with lease terms from one year to nine years. The Group also has ¢ertain leases of guest houses and certaln plant & equipment on lease with lease

terms of 12 months or less.

The Group has utilised the exemptions provided for short-term leases (less than a year} and teases for low value assets other than from related parties.

The Group has utilised hindsight in determining the lease terms where conltracts contained options to extend or terminate the lease,

Initial direct costs arc excluded from the measurement of right-of-use assets at the date of initial application.

The weighted average of Group's incremental borrowing cate applied to lease liabilities at the date of initial application was 9.00% and 8.56%.
Set out below are the carrying amounts of eight-of-use assets recognised and the movements during the year:

Particulars Offices Factory land and Resldential Buildings Leasehold Land* Total
building

As at April 01, 2023 - 1,001.87 6514.20 3,031.33 4,647.40
Lease modifications/adjustments - - (82.01) - {82.01)
Addition during the year 1,208.89 416.09 933.19 - 2,558,127
Depreciation expense for the year 104.62 397.16 300.52 64.69 866.99
As at March 31, 2024 1,104.27 1,020.80 1,164.85 2,966.65 5,256.57
Lease modifications/adjustments . {393.59) {211.79) - {605.29)
Addition during the year - - 754,27 £50.85 1,605.12
Depreciation expense for the year [refer note 6 (5) & 26) ** 139.48 254.32 2713 64.95 785.88
As at March 31, 2025 954.79 372.89 1,380.29 3,752.55 6,470.52

* Includes Leaschold land of fis. 631.13 lacs acquired pursuant te a Scheme of arranpement which is pending to be registered in the name of the Parent Company. Also refer note 6.

** including Rs. nil { March 31, 2024 : Rs.46.92 lacs) charged to pre-operative expenses.

Set out below are the carrying amounts of lease liablilities and the movements dusing the year:

Partleulars Amount in lacs
As at April 01, 2023 1,895.81
Accretion of interest for the year 299.62
Lease modifications/adjustments 97.20
Addition during the year 2,558.16
Payments for the year 993.28
As at Mareh 31, 2028 3,658.11
Accretion of interest for the year 280.78
Lease modifications/adjustments 681.76
Addition during the year 754.20
Payments for the year 913.67
As at March 31, 2025 3,097.68
Current lease liabilities 552.61
Non current lease liabilities 2,545.07

Consldering the lease term of the leases, the cffective interest rate for lease liabilities is considered at 9.00% and 8.56%.
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Undiscounted Iease lizbllities are as {ollows:

Particulars On demand Less than 12 months 1-5 years >5 years Total undiscounted Carmrying amount of
liabilities

As at March 31, 2024 - 1,043.33 7,052.39 1,231.37 9,327.08 3,658.11

As at March 31, 2025 - 564.88 1,511.83 1,085.40 3,162.11 3,097.68

Considering the lease term of the leases, the elfective interest rate for tease liabilitées is considered at 9.00% and 8.56%.

The following are the amounts recognised In statement of profit and loss and pre-operative expense for the period/year :

Partlculars March 21, 2025 March 31, 2024
Depreciation expense of right-of-use assets 785.88 866.99
Interest expense on lease liabilities 280.78 299.62
Expense relating 10 short-term leases (included in other expenses) 1.078.73 936.84
Total amount recogaised in profit or loss 2,145.39 2,103.45

For maturity analysis of lease liability, refer note 37 Financial risk management framework and policies under maturities of financial labilities.

The Group had tetal cash outfiows for feases of Rs. 1,992.40 lacs (March 31, 2024: fi5.1,722.8%acs) in the year ended March 31, 2025, There are no future cash outflows relating to leases that have not yet commenced.

Extension and termination options are included In a number of leases. These are used to maximise operational flexibility in terms of managing the assets used in the Group’s operations. The majority of extension and termination options held are

exercisabile only by the Group and not by the respective lessor,

Payments associated with short-term leases other than leases from related parties are recognised on a straight-line basis as an expense n statement of profit and foss. Short-term leases are leases with a lease term of 12 months or less.

Lease Rental Income

Operating lease ; Group as lessor

The Graup had leased out its Building situated at Hemkunt Tower, Nehru Place, New Delhi w.e.f March 01, 2021, The Said lease was for three years with a lock in period of 12 months. The said property has been sold during the FY 23-24.

Lease rental income recognised in the statement of profit o 1oss for the year is Rs. 1.16 lacs {March 31, 2024: Rs.3.93 lacs) {including rentat income from property appearing In investment property).

Future minimum rentals reccivable under non-cancellable operating leases are as follows:

3-4 yoars 4-5 years Beyond 5 years

Particulars Up to 1 Year 1.2 years 2-3 years
As at 31.03-2025 116 0.77 -
As at 31-03-2024 1.16 116 0.77

116 1.16 0.77
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31(b). Capl1al and other commitments

{1} Capltal Commitments

a) At March 31, 2025 the estimated amount of contracts remainmg 10 be oxecuted on capital account and not prowided dor s Rs. 20,487 70 lacs {March 31, 2024: Rs. 11.566.12facs} {net of advances).

{I1} Contingent Liabilitles

{A} Demands®
Partlculars A3 atMarch 31, 2025 | As ar March 31, 2024
1} Under Customs Act, 1962
(a) Demands for differential custam duty payatie on enhanced assessable value of import of raw materials The Parent Company has preferred an appeal 41.66 41.66
(b) Demands for differential custom duty payable on enhanced assessalile valug ol import of raw materials. Duning the previous vede, the Parent Company has 836.45 831624
received favourable orders on which departeneat has orelerred an apaeal
(€} Demands under appeals of Parent Company 58.13 8.1
{d} Qutstanding guarantee furnished by bapk an behalt of the company in respect of provisional assessment of Cuttom duty to Custom Department 132.13 132.13
[i) Under Central Exclse Act, 1953

- Demand raised by Commissioner of Central Excise, Alwar disallowing CENVAT eredit for the period 13.11.2014 to 30.09.2015 (including penalty on the ground that 1,512.14 181234
Cenvat credit on imported aluminium scrap has been taken on the basis of Excise chatfans issucd by the Dadn Dwision of the Parent Company, are not valid
documents far taking Cenvat credit. Further, demand for the period from 2012-13 to 31 July 2015 was rassed an the ground that sales ot segregated items trom
aluminium scrap aee liable far reversal of Cenvat credit. The Parent Company tiled an appeal before the CESTAT, New Delte and 3gainst the said order CESTAT vide
order dated 23/11/2017 sct aside the order passed by the Commusioner Central Exaise, Atwar and cemanded back the case 1o the Commssioner of Conteal Excise,
Atwar with a direction to allow Cenvat Credit alter verification that the goods have been reccived in the factory of the Parent Company at Bhivadi and also to
reconsider the rgversal of Cenvat credit on sales of segregated items on the basis of circular ssucd by CBEC ¢ianbnng that segregation of unusabie dems from brass
scrap amounts to manufacture and the sale of such segregated items is kable 1o be taxed on the basis of sale value theseof at the rate of duty appleable on the items
sold. The Parent Company has received order in its favous. However, the department has preferred an appeal in the High Court of Rajasthan

- Demaads (including penalty) raised based on a special audit of the Parent Company. 290.52 290.52
{2} Non-payment / short payment of service tax on services receved by the Company under reverse charge
(b} Non-paymeni / short payment of service tax on servecey prownded by the Campany
(<) Non reversal of CENVAT Credit on input removal as such and on capital goods sotd ahier use
{0) Wrong availment of CENVAT Credit of central excise duty on inghgible inputs and input senices
The Parent Compary has filed an appeal.

~ Demand raised by excise autharitics for disallowance of CENVAT credit lor the period 01.10.2015 to 01.06.2017 (including penalty] alleging that Cenvat credit on 1,382.60 1,382.60
shredded aluminium serap has been taken basis the Extise challans which were nsued by the Parent Company, Dacn without registration number and which were
subject to differont jurisdiction. The Parent Company had filed an appeal befare CESTAT and had recewved tavourabie prder o the said matters
Hpwever, the department has preferred an appeal in the High Court ot Ragasthan.

+ Ocmand {including penatty) for the period from August 01, 2015 to June. 2017 was raised on atcount of non reversal of Cenvat crodst on sales ot segregated items 33027 330.27
on the ground that segregated items from atuminium scrap are ble for the tacture of thew hrmished goeds 1 ¢, Aluminum Ingot @ malien and does not

canstilute 3 manulacturing activity. The Parent Company had tited an appeal tiefare CESTAT and had recewved favourable ordes in the said matter

However, the depanment has preferred an appeal in the High Courl of Rajasthan

« Demand {including penalty} raised on the shortages noted during the scarch conducted by the Excise officers of the factory prenuses of the Parens Company. The 122.85 122.85
Parent Company had filed an appeal and now the malter has been referred back to the divisianal bench

.Show cause nolite teccived by the Parent Company appregriating demand of Rs. 21.61 lacs along with applicable interest and penalty for Service 122 an Procurement 43.23 43.23
c Sates Commission, Technical foe and Guarantee Commussion for the periad from April. 2015 16 June, 2017

The Pazent Company had received order from Ocputy cummissioner against the same including equivalent amount of penatty. During the previous year, the Pareny

Company has prefeered an appeal agasnst the same

Show caust notice received by the Group apprapriating demand of Rs.71.83 lacs along with appleable interest and penalty for wrong availment ot cenvat credit on 13366 143,66
Aluminium Ingot afleging that Alumirnium Ingot have not been used in the praduction process.

The Parcst Company had reccived order frar Additional commissiontr against the same including cquivalent amaunt of penatty. Buning the provious year, the Parent

Company has preferred an appeal against the same.

- Othor domands raised on Parent Comgany under Central Excise Act, 1944 under appeals 152.17 15317
i) Under Finance Act, 1594

In anc of the subsidiary company, Demands [including mterest) raised on accouny of noen payment / short payment of service 1ax under reverse charge and 143 143
proceedings pending before CESTAT, Haryana
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Particulars
iv) Under Sales Tax Act/Entry Tax Act under appeal for various years. 41 24 Morch 31, 2023 £ at Masch 31, 2022
. Demand raised {intluding equal amount of interest) on wrong availment of tnput tax credit on aganst Input tax pard on the purchase of DEPB Lkense 170.98 170.98
The Parent Company is in appeal.
. Other demands raised on Parent Company under Sales Tax Act/ Entey Tax Act under aopeals [+X:1:] 9.09
- In gre of the subsidiary company, demand raised by Sales Taw/VAT authonty during the assessment for Y. 2015-16 1215 12.15
. Vehicle detained by state tax officer Under section 129 & 130 ol the G5T Act 2017 against it we have submisted bank guarantee of Rs 14.5 Lacs 14.50 -
v} Under Goods & Service Tax Act under appeal for various years
In one of subsidiary company, Demand on account of High utilization of ITC 38 VS 2A difterence far the pernod fram Aprd 1019 1o March 2020 under Secuion 73 af) 1710.66 16191
CGST ACT and Rules 2017, The subsidiary company has filed anoeal to Anoellate Authorit
- OI0 Osder in Form GST DRC - 07 issued vide Ref No. ZD330424239418E dated 29/03/2024 ssuc regarding Tax difrance GSTR9 Vs GSTR 1, Waybitl V4 GSTA 9, Excess 11062 -
3¢ Taken in ACM, GSTR 24 Vs GSTR 3B, and Block Credit under secnian 17(5) tor the penod Aprd 2018 to March 2019 ufs 73 CGST ACT and Hules 2017
00 Order in Form GST ORC - 07 issued Order Reference Mo ZD3308241949270Q dated 30-D8-2024. ssue regarding Execis ITC Taken in HCM, GATA 24 Vs GSTR 38, 325.95
2nd Block Credit under section 17151 for Lhe penod Apsil 2019 to Masth 2020 ufs 73 €GST ACT and Rules 2017
-During the current year, the Parent Company has received a demand order far penod from fuly, 2017 1o March, 2020 tor Chenaai locatson for ingorrect reversal of 509.87 509.87

7, uaresonciled ITC, excess ITC availed and wrong availment of taes quring transitton
The Parent Company has filed a weit petition in High Court of Madras chalenging the arder

-During the current year, the Parent Company has received a demand order for period irom July, 2017 to March, 2018 tor Haridwar lpcation jor mismaich between 105 62 105.62
\TC a3 por GSTR 2A & G5TR 38 and availment of meligible ITC.
The Parent Company has filed an appeal.

-During the current year, the Parent Company has recesved a demand arder lor penod from July, 2017 1o March, 2018 for excess avadment ol 1 TC 57.33 5133
The Parent Company has filed an apaeal.

Show cause natice received by the Company appropriating demand of Ry 17.09 1acs along with apahcatle mtereit and penalty for excess avadment of ITC through 17.10 17.10
Tran-1.

During the current year, the Company has receved order from Deputy commissioner aganst the same and the Comgany has tiled appeal to Commssioner {Apptal)
against the same.
vi} Under Income Tax Act, 1961

- tn case of Parent Company, Demand raised (including interest) on account of disalloveance ufs 53(b} af the Incame Tax Act, 1961 for the AY 2018-19. 222.45 28245
. Demand raised including interest) for disallowance for ausessment vear 2021-2022 14,06 14.06
. inone of the subsidiary company, demand raised under Section 68 C of Income Tax Act for AY. 2015-16, and the subsdiary company has paid Rs 6750 lars as 20% 33730 337.30
of the total demand ynder protest. The subsidiary company is in appeal before CIT Appeals.
. I one of the subsidiary comaany, Demand raised for assessment year 2021-22 under Section 68 of Income Tax Act 1961 437.25 437.25
. 1n ane of the subsidiary company, Gemand of 5 163.21 lacs under section 154 of Income tax Act 1961 tor income credited under sectian 115 18 tor MAT Credit lea 1 164.21

vii) Dther Claims

In ene of the subsidiary company, contingent hatility on accaunt ol logal case n Madras High court liled by ex-workers of the subsidiary campany 61.35 6135
on account of legal case on enhancement of land purchase price By farmers 137.00 137.00

any, contingent liabilily on account of tegal case by warker betare Industnal tribunal Cum Labiour court 0.49 D.40

Non-banking Financing C {'NBFC’) had sanctioned Supply Chain Financing Limit 10 the Parent Compary, as 8 sub-imit of acuttomer Under such limit, during . 159.34 399.44

an earhor year such NBFC had diseounted sales Dills of customer and an amount ol Ry 369 19 lacs (March 31, 2023 Ry 34919 lacs} & outstanding Such amount is
appearing as receivable from cvstomer lincluded in trade recervables) and appeanng as payable to NBFC {includmg in Borrawings}

As per the torms of Sanction letter, in £ase the custamer fails to pay the oulstanding amount inctuding interest en duc date, the same will be recovered from
customer by liquidation of security / POC cheques provided by the customer Futther, m case the gutstanding 3 not rcahsable the recourse wall be on the Parent
Company. NBFC has abtained post dated cheques from cestomer hefore discounting the sales bills to the Parent Company and thus the claim of NBFC Les against
customer and not against the Pareat Company.

NBEC has initiated lega) proceedings against the Parent Company. and one of s Derectors in relation 10 the amaunt outstanding and penal inferest The Parenal
Company has liled a counter ¢laim against NBFC of As. 500 lacs for defamation and a recovety suit has been tiled by the Parent Company. The Graup has disclased
penal intergst as contingent Kabilities.

The Cammissloner of Centrat Excise, Dothi (*CET) passed an grder dated 27.10 2011 against the Parent Campany alleging that, the Parenl Company had avarted CENVAT Credit, under the Cenavat Crodit Hules, 2004, laran
aggregate amount of A3 1,585.80 lacs on purchase of aluminum scraps which were ytihzed in clandestine manner and vathout groper accounting. Additionally the Parent Company was dircctet! 10 pay an amaunt of Rs
417.60 lacs on accaunt of duty short paid on clearance af atuminium dross m the guise of ash and residue. The Parent Company filed 2ppeal aganst the saidd order of CE before Customs. Exeise and Service Tax Appcllate
Tribural, Principal Beneh, New Dethi ["CESTAT"} and the CESTAT after carelul perusal of the facts and gircumstances of the case and appreciation of the evidence svailable and ttending circumstances passed an order
dated 04.12.2015 in the favour of the Parent Company by seiting aside all the aliegations of the CE for the reason same bewng tascless and uncarroh d. CE fited a p ion case in the Court of Chief Judicial
Maglstrate, Faridabad in the year 2016 ufs 9 and 9AA ot the Central Excise Act, 1944 Section 9 and 9AA Ipys down the provisian about ¢nminal prosecetion, imgrisanment and penalty. The amount of penalty refereed
under Section 9 and 9AA of the Central Excise Act, 1944 cannot be as¢ertained since this purcly depends upon the discrenion of the (udge, therefare the question ¢f quantificatian of contingent Habiliry does not arise at
this juncture at all. Mareover, in prosecution cases the fecus of the Courls are MOZC ON IMPrISORMENS ROt Monctary FELOVery far which appral i the right remedy. The Pareat Company based on in-house assessment
daes not expect any liability on account of above.

*sgased on the favaurable decisions in similar cases, assessment ! in-house tegal advsor, discussions with the consultants and legal opntons obtaned by the Group in Case of {i} to {wi) above , the Group believes that it
has good merits on the matters and hence no provision there-22dinst s cansidered necessary.

{b) Guarantees As at March 31, 2025 At 3t March 31, 2024

Guarantee given to MIZUHO Bank on, behall of

Nikkei CMR Aluminiven Private Limited 2,860.00 182000
IGunranlce Elvm to SMBC Bank on behall of

Nikkei CMR Aluminium Private Limited 1,040.C0 520.00

{C IThere are numeroys interprelaloe issues relating to the Supreme Count (SC) judgment on PF dated 28th Februaty, 2019 A3 a matter of cautlun, the Group has prospectively ehanged the PF policy. The same shall be
updated, it required on teceiving further clarity on the subject

{D}] Contingent liability in one of the joint venture company
Particulars As at March 31, 2025 Az at March 31, 2024
[a) Matter refated to payment of custom duty and Integrated Goods and Service Tax whieh i pending with Han'ble High Couwt of Gujarat related 10 classiheation af 47262 47262

raw material [refer note (i) betow)

b) Contingent Liability on at¢ount of Bebi note raised by Chiho Tiando [MX) Limited pending settiement 20.89 20.89
o) Continpent Liabitity on account pending recenciliation £ settlgment with Chihp Environmental Recycling Industnes 44.66 43.65
Total 53817 538.17
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Note (i): Department of fevenue Inteligence {DRI) customs, carried aut seaech at the factary [ ises of the join} pany an 29 July, 2020. The princlpal allegation levelled by the customs department was
1hat the |oint venture company filed the BII of Entry of their Import material by declaring the description as “glcarded and non-sesviceable semi-brokenfbroken motor” by mentioning CFi 7204 49 00 under the other
Fetraus Waste and Scrap whereby Imports are subject to 2.5% customns duty. However, the department’s contention was that the duty to be pald on the imports as per Copper ssrap Barely/Blich at 5% customs duty.
Based on the search, the departrment detained and scized joing venture company's goods ring at the factory and raised demand for duty along with interest and other penal charges. Against the DRI action, the joint
ventere campany filed Special Civil Application with the Hon'ble Gujarat High Court. The High Caurt in their interim ceder dated 7 September 2020 stated that the joint venture company do nos have to sutfer the huge
Iass in their business, therelore, against the demand of X 84B.32 lakhs, it was ordercd that the joint venture company provide bank Guarantee of Nationalized Bank of % 200 lakhs 1o the Custom authorities and also
allowed the departrment 16 retaln with them the ravs materials/ goods up to the value of % 1,000 lakhs. Also, joint venture company has given additional bank guarantee of X 100 Iakhs to Cestom authority for impart of
consignment at concessional 2.5% duty {as an advance). On further petition by the jolat venture company , Hon'ble High Court of Gujarat vide it's interim order dated 6 April, 2021 ordered to release the goods worth ®
1,000 lakhs which was restricted for use and then Hen’ble High Court of Gujarat vide it's interim order dated 10 August, 2021 has instructed Customs authorltles 1o return the bank guarantee of X 200 lakhs and asked
joint venture company to furnlsh bank Guaranice of Nationalized Bank of X 20 lakhs till the final determination of the matter of classilication of the import material {discarded and iceable seml-broken/broken
moter) which aee being imported by the joint venture company. The amount of ¢ gent liabllity rep dith tal amount of customs duty and integrated Goods and Services Tax thereon as per dispute relating
to classiflcation.

Further, the Group has atso pledged 75,00,000 equity shares in CMR Toyotsu Aluminium India Private Limited held by the Parent Company with State Bank of Indla in respect of credit facifities granted by the bank to this
CMR Toyotsu Aluminium indla Private Umited.




CMR Green Technologies Limited
Notes to the consolidated financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2025

CIN: UCD337HR2005PLCOB5675
{Amount in Rupees [acs, unless otherwise stated)

32. Related party disclosures

In accordance with the requirements of IND AS -24 'Related Party Disclosures’, names of the related parties, related party relationship, transactions and
outstanding balances where control exists and with whom transactions have taken place during the year are:

{i} Names of related parties and related party relationshlp
{(a) Key management personnel and their relatives

Mr. Mohan Agarwal - Managing Director

Mr. Akshay Agarwal - Director

Mr. Raghav Agarwal - Director

Mr. Balvinder Kumar - Independent Director

Mr. Gyan Mohan - Independent Director

Mr. Satpal Kumar Arora - Independent Directar

Ms. Rashmi Verma - Independent Director

Mr. Gauri Shankar Agarwala-Chairman Emeritus

Mrs. Kalawati Agarwal - Relative of a Director

Mrs. Pratibha Agarwal - Relative of a Director

Mrs. Mandakini Agarwat - Relative of a Director

Mrs. Ekas Agarwal - Relative of a Director

Mrs. Rajni Bagla - Relative of a Director

Mr. Satish Kaushik-Chief Financial Officer {appointed w.e.f. January 20, 2024 and resigned w.e.f. June 06, 2024)
Ms. Sonam Garg- Company Secretary [appointed w.e.f. June 16, 2023 and resigned w.e.f. October 24, 2023)
Mr. Ajay Bansal- Chief Financial Officer (appointed April 8, 2023 and resigned w.e.f. May 10, 2023)

Ms. Srishti Saxena- Company Secretary {w.e.f. January 20, 2024}

M. Virender Kumar Shimar - Chief Financial Officer (appointed w.e.f. May 21, 2025)

{b) doint Venture Partners
Joint Venture Partner in CMR-Nikkei India Private Limited: Nikkei MC Aluminium Company Limited
Joint Venture Partner in CMR-Toyotsu Aluminium India Private Limited :- Toyota Tshusho Corporation
Joint Venture Partner in CMR-Kataria Recycling Private Limited :- Kent Industrial Park Private Limited
Joint Venture Partner in CMR-Chiho Recycling Technologies Private Limited : - Chiho Environmental Global Holdings Limited {Joint Venturer)
Joint Venture Partner in CMR Chiho Industries India Private Limited :- Chiho Environmental Global Holdings Limited - Hongkang (Joint Venturer)
Joint Venture Partner in Nikkei CMR Aluminium India Private Limited :- Nikkei MC Aluminium Co. Ltd {loint Venturer}

{c} Subsidiaries of Joint Venture Partners
Toyota Tsusho India Private Limited - Subsidiary company of Toyota Tshusho Corperation

{d) Parent of Jaint Venture
Nippon Light Metal Co. Ltd - Parent Company of Nikkei MC Aluminium Co. Ltd

{e} JoInt Ventures of the Group
CMR-Chiho Recyeling Technologies Private Limited
CMR Chiho Industries India Private Limited
Nikkei CMR Aluminium tndia Private Limited

{f} Entities over which Company , or key managerial personnel or their relatives , exercise significant influence:
CMR Tech Solutions Private Limited
Akshay Agarwal Family Private Trust
GS Agarwala Family Private Trust
K Agarwal Family Private Trust
Raghav Agarwal Family Private Trust
Mohan Agarwal HUF
Gauri Shankar Agarwala HUF
Sanjivani Metal Trading Private Limited
KGS Partners LLP
KGS Partners
GSK Partners
ERA Luxe Gifting
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{1i} The foltawing table provides the total value of transactions thase have been entered into with related partles for the relevant financial year:

Partlculars

Key monogement personnel & their
relatives

Associates, Joint Ventures and Joint
Venture Partners

Enterprises over which Directors and
thelr relatives have sipnificant influence

March 31, 2025

March 31, 2024

March 31, 2025

March 31, 2024

Mareh 31,2025

March 31, 2024

Transactions during the year:

Sale of goods

Nikkei MC Aluminium Company Limited
Nlkkel CMR Aluminium India Private limited
Toyota Tsusho Corporation

Nippon Light Metal Co. Ltd

Sanjivanl Metal Trading Private Limited

2,199.54

1,436.05
47.22

6,360.20

15,043.75 .
1.98 -

2,152.66

sale of property, plant and equipment
Nikkel CMR Aluminium india Private Limited

96.27

1.57

Purchase_of raw materials and traded poods
Sanjivani Metal Trading Private Limited
Katarla Automabiles Pvt. Ltd -

2,186.16
15.19

Commlssion pald
Toyota Tsugho Indla Private Limited

79.28

Corporate Guarantee commission Recelved
Toyota Tsusho India Private Limited

126,51

Loan taken
Kent Industrlal Park Private Limited

124.91

Loan repald
CMR Tech Solutions Private Limited

24.65

Expenses made on behalf of related Party
Nikkel-CMR Aluminium India Private Limited
CMR Tech Solutions Private Limited

896.11

135

Frelght Expenses

5,21

Toyota Tsusho India Private Limited
Interest Pald

CMR Tech Solutions Private Limited
Sanjivani Metal Trading Private Limited
Kent industrial Park Private Limited

13.09

033

2.26
36.11
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Remuneration Paid ***

Mr. Mohan Agarwal 229.72 200.32 - . .
Mr. Gaurl Shankar Agarviala 125.45 109.93 - - - -
Mr. Akshay Agarwal 102.63 84.90 - - - -
Mr. Raghav Agarwal 62.67 45.69 - B - -
Mrs. Mandakini Agarwal 21.60 15.80 - - - -
Mr. Satish Kaushik 33.35 12.89 - - -
Ms. Rajnl Bagla 20.00 20.00 g - - -
Ms. Sonam Garg 2.33 2.09 - - - -
Ms. Srishti Saxena 14.00 2.50 - . - -
Mr. Ajay Bansal - 13.67 - - -
Ms, Ayushi Verma 1.99 - . - - .
Ms. Neelam Malik 1.97 4.00 . . . -
Mr. S5 Rana 60.19 65.00 - - - -
Mr. Sumlit Gupta 9.17 . - - - -
Ms. Ekas Agparwal 21.60 10.80 - - -
Sitting Fees

Mr. Satpal Kumar Arora 6.50 7.50 . - -
Mr, Balvinder Kumar 6.75 5.50 . - - -
5. Rashmi Verma 6.00 5.00 . - - .
Mr. Gyan Mohan 7.50 7.00 - - -
Mrs. Suman Bala - 0.02 - - - -
Interest Recelved

Sanjivanh Meta) Trading Private Limited . - - - 12.38 46.88
Investment made n Equity portion of Cotporate Guarantee

Nikkei CMR Aluminlum India Private Umited - - 2.34 1.17 - -
Guarantee Given

Nikkei-CMR Aluminium India Private Limited - - 1,560.00 2,340.00 -
Management support fees Received

Toyola Tsusho India Private Umited - - 83.41 - - -
Nikkel-CMR Aluminium India Private Limited . - - 119.80 - -
Payment agalnst lease linbllities

Smt. Kalawatl Agarwal® - 16.50 . - - -
Sheri Mohan Aganwal** 267.03 248.40 . - - -
Smt. Pratibha Agarwal*® - 18.00 - - - -
Rent Pald

Kataria Automobiles Pvt Ltd{Makarba) - - - 0.12
Buyback of equlty shares

Mr. Gauri Shankar Agarwala - 749,99 - - - -
Smt. Kalawati Agarwal - 749.99 - - - -

* Rent of Rs. Nit {March 31, 2024 : Rs 34.501acs) paid to Smt. Kzlawath Agarwal and Smt. Pratibha Agarwal for residence of Shri. Akshay Agarwal.
*« pent of Rs 267.03 lacs (March 31, 2024 : Rs 248.4D lacs) paid to Shri Mohan Agarwal for residence of Shri Gauri Shankar Agarwala.

sv* including rent free accommodation paid to fandlords {related parties) already disclosed above and excluding provision for gratuity and leave
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{iii} Balances as at the year end:

Particulars

Key management persannel & thelr
relatives

Associates, Joint Ventures, Fellow
Subsidiaries and Joint Venture
Partners

Enterprises over which Directors and
thelr relatives have significant influence

March 31, 2025

Trade Recelvables

Nikkei-CMR Aluminium ndla Private Limited
CMR-Chiho 1ndustries India Private Limited
Sanjivani Metal Trading Private Limited

March 31, 2024

March 31, 2025

March 31, 2024

March 31, 2025

March 31,2024

4,31
2179

24.40
21.79

23.65

10%9.25

Interest Recoverable
Sanjivani Metal Tradlng Private Limited

42.17

Borrowings
CMR Tech Solutions Private Limited
CMR-Chiho Recycling Technologles Private Limited

Kent Industrial Park Private Limited

666.59

601.48
203.16

3.83

Trade payables

CMR-Chiho Industries india Private Limited
CMR-Chlho Recycling Technologies Private Limited
Toyota Tsusho India Private Limited

Sanjivani Metal Trading Private Limlted

Nikkel CMR Aluminium India Private limited
Katarla Automobile Private Lirmited

621.43
38.62

124,09

610.53
103.73
2131

531

4,612.64

4,611,61

Interast Payable {shown under the head other financlal liabllitles]
CMR Tech Solutions Private Limited
Kent Industrial Park Private Limlted

2.04
14.82

Other Receivahble {shown under the head other fingncial assets)
Mikkei CMR Aluminium ndia Private Limited

15.82

Employee related Liabilities
Mr. Mohan Agarwal

Mr. Akshay Agarwal

Mrs. Mandakai Agarwal
Mr. Raghav Agarwal

Mr. Gauri Shankar Agarwala
Mr. Satish Kaushik
Ms.Ayushi Agrawal

Ms Ekas Aggarwal

Ms Srishti Saxena

Ms. Rajni Bagla

6.66
0.31
i
199
21

0.38
121
0.89
1.89

17.66
2.04
1.19

12,16

16.98
4.71

141
0.78
1.12

Corporate Guarantee plven on hehalf of the subsidlary/loint
Venture/Others
Nikkel CMR Aluminium India Private Limited

Kataria Automoblle Private Limited

3,500.00

2,340.00
325.85

Investment made in Equity portion of guarontes
CMR-Chiho Industries India Private Limited
Nikkel CMR Aluminlum India Private Umited

45.00
3.51

45.00
117

Notes:

(i) The remuneration to the key managerial personnel and relatives as disclosed above does not include the provision made for gratuity and leave benelits, as they are determined on an actuarial

basis far the Group as a whale.
Terms and conditions of transactions with related parties

1) The sale and purchase from related partles are made on terms equivalent to those that prevail in arm’s length transaction. Outstanding balances at the year end are unsecured. The Group has not

o

recorded any impairment of receivables relating to ar

ts owed by

position of the related party and the market in which the related party aperates.

partics except disclosed above. This yearly assessment is undertaken each financial year through examining the financial

2) The Group charges and pays interest on daily batances of related parties at market rate other those taken/given fromfto CMR-Chiho Recydling Technologies Private Limited and CMR-Chiho

Industries India Private Limited.
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33. Disclosure required under Section 186{4) of the Companies Act 2013

a) Particulars of Corparate Guarantees given as required by Section 136(4) of Companies Act 2013

Particulars CMR Chiho Industries Nikkei CMR
India Private Limited | Aluminium Private
Limited

As at 31 March 2023 - -
Guarantees given - 2,340.00
Guarantees withdrawn - -
As on 31st March 2024 - 2,340.00
Guarantees given - 1,560.00
Guarantees withdrawn - -
As at March 31, 2025 - 3,900.00

The Parent Company had given corporate guarantees in respect of Letter of Credit/

is jointly and severally liable.

b) Details of Investment made :

Bill Discounting facilities taken by the above jaint venture companies, where the Parent Company

Particulars CMR - Chiho Nikkeil CMR CMR - Chiho Isharays Energy Others* Total

Recycling Aluminium India Industries India Private Limited

Technologies Private Private Limited Private Limited ##

Limited#
As at March 31, 2023 374.96 1,194.95 2,067.48 - 0.60 3,637.99
Share in profits/(loss) for the year (0.11} {46.60) {5.66) - - (52.37)
Add: Deemed investment for the year 1.17 117
Investments made during the year® - - - 76.00 - 76.00
Investments sold/disposed off during the year - - - - - R
As at March 31, 2024 374.85 1,149.52 2,061.82 76.00 0.60 3,662.79
Add: Dezmed investment for the year - 2.34 - - - 2.34
Share in profits/{loss) for the year - {493.31) - - - {493.31)
Investments made during the year - - - 19.00 - 19.00
Investments sold/disposed-off during the year - - - - - -
As at March 31, 2025 374.85 658.55 2,061.82 95.00 0.60 3,190.82

* The above investments are in listed companies. However,

investments have been considered as unquoted investments.
For relevant information on Investments refer note 10 (a)

TN
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the quoted price of the shares of these companies are not available as they are not being traded. Accordingly, these
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34, Segment information

As per Ind AS 108, identification of segment is based on the manner in which the companies Chief Operating decision makers' {CODM) reviews the business
components regularly to make decisions abaut allocating resources to segment and in assessing its performance.

The Executive Management Committee is the Chief Operating Decision Maker {CODM) and monitors the operating results of its business units separately for
the purpose of making decisions about rescurce allocation and performance assessment. Segment performance is evaluated based on profit or loss and is
measured consistently with profit or loss in the consolidated financial statements.

The chief operating decision maker reviews business performance at an overall Group level as one segment "Aluminium ingots and zinc ingots”.

Business Segment

The Group manufactures and sells aluminium and zinc based alloys and does trading and job work of these products. The products have the same risks and
returns which are predominantly governed by market condition i.e. demand and supply position and hence have been considered as representing a single
business segment.

Geographical Segment

The analysis of geographical segment is based on geographical location of its customers. The following table shows the distribution of revenue by
Geographical segment.

a) Summary of total revenue by Geographical area are as follows:

Products and services

Particulars For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Revenue from external customers :
India 6,56,492.54 $,67,040.88
Qutside India 10,416.28 28,203.22
Total 6,66,908.82 5,95,244.10

b) Summary of non- current assets by geographical location is as follows:

Particulars

As at
March 31, 2025

As at
Iiarch 31, 2024

Property plant and equipment

India

60,188.96

Qutside India

54,883.60

Capital Work-in-progress

India

14,982.67

2,600.70

Qutside India

Intangible assets

India

247.52

176.77

Qutside India

Right-of-use assets

India

6,470.52

6,256.57

QOutside India

Other Non current assets and financial assets

India

9.089.05

9,665.51

Qutside India

Total

90,978.71

73,583.15

¢) Revenue from majar customers :

Revenue from transactions with a single external customer amounting to 10 per cent or more of the Company’s revenues is as follows:

Name of The Customer For the year ended March 31, 2025 For the year ended March 31, 2024
Revenue Revenue % Revenue Revenue %
Customer 1 - 62,462.24 10.49%

*In FY 24-25 there is no customer which is having sales more than 10%.
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35. Fair values
Set out below, is a comparison by class of the carrying amounts and fair value of the Group’s financial instruments, other than those with carrying amounts that are
reasonable approximations of fair values.

Carrying value Fair value
Asat As at . Asat As at
March 21, 2025 March 31, 2024 : Mareh 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Financial assets
A. Financial assets at falr value through profit or loss:
Investment in Other Equity Instruments 95.60 76.60 95.60 76.60
Mark to Market gain on commodity futures 1,259.60 309.48 1,299.60 309.48
1,395.20 386.08 1,395.20 386.08
B. Amortised Cost:
Security deposits 702.61 766.76 702.61 766.76
Loans to employees 107.69 79.38 107.69 79.38
Interest accrued on fixed deposits 55.54 53.07 55.54 53.07
865.84 899,21 865.84 B99.21
Total 2,261.04 1,285.29 2,261.04 1,285.29
Financial liabllities
A. Amortised Cost:
Borrowings 89,403.24 49,865.04 89,403.24 49,865.04
Security deposits from customers/ others 330.46 315.57 330.46 315.57
Interest accrued but not due on borrowings 269.04 153.41 269.04 153.41
90,002,74 £0,334.02 90,002.74 50,334.02
B. Financlal liabilities at falr value through profit or loss:
Financial guarantee 2.34 2.34 234 2.34
Mark to Market loss on commodity futures 643,41 1,268.69 643.41 1,268.69
Mark to Market loss on commodity currency contracts - 3.47 - 3.47
645.75 1,274.50 645.75 1,274.50

The management assessed that trade receivables, capital creditors, trade payables, and other current financial assets and liabilities {(except financial guarantees
and derivative assets & Uabilities} approximate their carrying amounts largely due to the short-term maturities of these instruments.

The falr value of the financial assets and liabilities is included at the amount at which the instrument could be exchanged in a current transaction between willing
parties, other than in a forced or liquidation sale.

The following methods and assumptions were used to estimate the fair values:
Borrowings:-
The fair values of the Group’s interest bearing borrowings are determined by using discounted cash flow (DCF) method using discount rate that reflects the issuer’s

borrowing rate as at the end of the reporting period.

Derivative Instruments:-

The falr value of foreign exchange forward contact is determined using the foreign exchange spot rates at the balance sheet date. The derivatives are entered into
with the banks with investment grade credit ratings. The fair value of commodity & currency contracts is determined using the spot rates at the balance sheet date.

Investment In Dther equity instruments, loan to employees, security deposit and Interest accrued on fixed deposits:-
The fair value of investment in other equity instruments, loan to employees, security deposits and interest accrued on fixed deposits approximates the carrying
value and hence, the valuation technique and inputs have not been given.
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36. Fair Value Hierarchy

All financial instruments for which fair value is recognised or disclosed are categorised within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest level input that is

insignificant to the fair value measurements as a whole.

Level 1 : Quoted {unadjusted) prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities.

Level 2 : Valuation technigues for which the lowest level Inputs that has a significant effect on the fair value measurement are observable, either directly or indirectly.

Level 3 : Valuation techniques for which the lowest leve! input which has a significant effect on fair value measurement is not based on observable market data.

The following table provides the fair value measurement hierarchy of the Group's assets and liabilities.

Quantitative disclosures falr value measurement hierarchy for assets asat Mareh 31, 2025:

Asscts measured at fair value {Note 35):

A. Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss:

Investment In equity shares [unquoted)
Mark to Market gain on commodity futures

8. Amortised Cost:
Security deposits
Loans to employees
Interest accrued on fixed deposits

Financial liabilitles

A. Amortised Cost:
Borrowings

Security deposit from customers/ others
Interest accrued but not due an borrowings

B. Financial lfabflitles at fair value through profit or loss:

Financial guarantee
Mark to Market loss on commodity futures

There have been no transfers between Level 1 and Level 3 during the year ended March 31, 2025

Quantitative disclosures falr value measurement hlerarchy for assets as at March 31, 2024:

Financial assets

A. FVTPL financlal instruments:
Investment in equity shares (unguoted)
Mark to Market gain on commedity futures

B. Amortised Cost:
Security deposits
toans to employees
Interest accrued on fixed deposits

Financial Nabilities
A, Amortised Cost:
Borrowings
Security doposit fram custamers/ others
Financial guarantee
Interest accrued but not due on borrowings

B. Financlal Mabllities at falr value through profit or loss:

Mark to Market loss on commodity futures

Mark to Market loss on commodity currenty contracts

The management assessed that trade receivables, capital creditors, trade payables, and other current financial assets

Fair value measuremant using

Date of valuation

March 31, 2025
March 31, 2025

March 31, 2025
March 31, 2025
March 31, 2025

March 31, 2025
March 31, 2025
March 31, 2025

March 31, 2025
March 31, 2025

Date of valuation

March 31, 2024
March 31, 2024

March 31, 2024
March 31, 2024
March 31, 2024

March 31, 2024
Macch 31, 2024
March 31, 2024
March 31, 2024

March 31, 2024
March 31, 2024

Total Quoted pricesin Significant Significant
active markets gbservableinputs  unobservable inputs
[Level 1) [Leveal 2) {Level 3)

95.60 - - 95.60
1,299.60 - 1,259.60 -
1,395.20 - 1,299,560 95.60

702.61 - - 702.61
107.69 - - 107.69

55.54 - - 55.54

B865.84 . - 865.84

£9,403.24 - - 89,403.24
330.46 - - 330.46
269.04 - - 2649.04
90,002.74 - - 90,002.74
2.34 . - 2.34
543.41 - 643.41 .
645.75 - £643.41 2.34

Fair value measurement using
Total Quoted prices in Significant Significant
actlve markets cbservable inputs  unobservable inputs
{Level 1) [Level 2} {Level 3}

76.60 - - 76.60
309.48 305.48 -
386.08 - 308.48 76.60
766.76 - - 766.76

79.38 - . 79.38

53.07 - - 53.07
8599.21 - - 859.21

49,865.04 - . 49,865.04
315.57 - - 315.57
2.34 - . 234
153.41 - - 153.41
50,336.36 - - 50,336.36
1,263.69 - 1,268.69 -
3.47 - 347 *
1,272.16 - 1,272,156 -

assets & liabilities) approximate their carrying amounts largely due to the short-term maturities of these instrumeats.

The fair value of the financial assets and liabilities is included at the amount at which the instrument could be exchanged in a current transaction betwe

than in a forced or liquidation sale.

and labilities {(except financial guarantees and derivative

en willing parties, ather
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37. Elnancial sk management obectives and palicles

The Group's principal financial liabilities comprise of borrowings, lease liabilities, trade payables, financial guarantee, security depasits received, capital creditors and employee related payables. The maln
purpose of these financial liabilities is to finance the Group's operations and o provide guarantees to SUpPort its operations. The Group's principal financial assets inchude trade and other recelvables and cash
& cash equivalent that derive directly from its operations. The Group alsg enters into derivative transactions.

The Group is expostd to market rigk, credit risk and liquidity risk. The Group’s senior management oversees the managemaent of thase risks. The Group's seniar management is responsible (o ensure that
Group’s financlal risk activities which are governed by appropriate policies and procedures angd that financial risks are identitied, m dandr ped in accordante with the Group's paolicies and risk
abjectives. All derivative activities for risk management purposes are carried out by specialist leams that have the app iate skills, experience and supervisian. it is the Group’s policy shat no trading In
derivatives for spoculative purposes may be undertaken. The Board of Directors reviews and agrees policies far managing each of these risks, which are summarised below.

Marke? risk
Market risk Is the risk that the fair value of luture cash flaws of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of change in market price. Market ritk camprise of interest rate risk, currency risk and other price

risk, such as cquity price risk and commodity risk.
The sensitivity analysis in the following sections relate 1o the position as at March 31, 2025 and March 31,2024
{3] Intercst rate risk

Interest £ate (isk is the risk that the [air value or future cash Nows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market interest rates. The following table demonstrates the sensitivity to a
reasanably possivle change In interest rates an that portion of loans and hotrowings atfccted, alter the impact of hedge accounting. With all other variables held constant, the Groug's prafit before tax is
atfected theough the impact on floating rate borrowings, as follows:

increase/ decreaseln  Effect on profit before

basis noints tax

US dollar Berrowlngs

March 32, 2025

Borrowings +0.5 27103
Borrowings -0.5 {271.031
March 31, 2024

Borrowings +0.5 219.75
Barrowings 0.5 {219.75)

The above assumed movement in basis points for the interest rate sensitivity analysis is based on the currently observable market eavirenment,

Fair value sensltivity analysls for fixed rate instruments =

The Group has not disclosed interest rate risks on any flixed rate financial liabilities at fair value through profit and loss. Therelore, 3 change in interest rates at the reporting date would neither affect prefitor
loss nor affect cquity.

{b) Forelgn currency risk

The Group is exposed to foreign exchange risk arising from foreign currency transactions primarily with respect to USD and Eurc. Foreign exchange risk arises from future commercia) ransactions and
recognised asset and ligbilities denominated in a currency that is not the Group's functional currency. The Group imports raw materials which exposes it to fareign currency risk. The Group holds derlvative

foreign currency forward conteacts to mitigate the risk of change in exchange rate on foreign currency exposure, The following tables demonstrate the sensitivity to a reasanably possible change in USD and
Ewro exchange rates, with all other vasiables held canstant. The impact on the Group's profit befare tax is due to changes in the fair value of manetary assols and liabitities.

Below Is the Group’s exposure to forelgn currency risk changes.

March 31,2025 Change in rate Effecton :::ﬂt before
usb +5% {412.83)
usD 5% 412.83
Euro +5% {10.66)
Euro -5% 10.66
CHY +5% {12.83}
CNY -5% 12.83

March 31, 2024 Change in rate Effecton ;::m belore
usD +5% {490.60)
uso 5% 430.60
Eutro +5% {13.98)
Euro 5% 13.98
CNY +5% {1.29)
CNY 5% 1.29

The abave assumed movement in the basis points for foreign exchange sensitivity analysis is based an fareign risk exposure risk in the past.

{c) Commodity price risk

The operating activities of the Group requine the ongoing purchase aof aluminium and serap. The purchase price of the Akuminium scrap depends on the global metal market. The Greup is exposed ta risk of
volatility in the prices of Aluminium, Copper, Brass and Stainless Steel etc. The Group has a significant poriion af priced inventory of purchase grders at any point in time during the year which exposes the
Group to Commadity price risk,

The Group uses derivative Gnancial instruments such as forwards to hedge its risks associated with fluctuation in the price of the products {Aluminium, Copper, Brass and Stainless Steel e} in accordance
with the risk management strategy outlined by the Board of Directars.

The Group deslgnates ferward contmodity contracts under Fair value hedges to herdge the exposure to changes in prices of the commodities for its unrecognized firm commitment and exIsting inventory, refer
note 45 for details on hedge accounting.
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[d) Credit Risk

Credit risk is the risk that counterparty will not meet its abligations under a financial instrument or customer contract, leading to 2 financial loss. The Group is exposed to credit risk from its operating activities
{primarily trade receivables) and from its financing activities, including deposits with banks, Management has a credit pelicy in place and the exposure to credit risk is monitored on an ngoing basls. Credit
evaluations are perfarmed on all custemers requiring credit over a certaln amount.

{i) Trade Recelvable

Customer credit risk Is managed as per the Group's established policy, procedures and control relating to customer credit fisk managemens. Credit quality of a customer is assessed based on an extensive
eredit rating scarecard and individual credit limits are defined in accordance with this assessment. Quistanding customer receivables are regularly monitored,

An impairmant analysis is performed at each reporting date on an individeal basis for major customers. The calculation is based on exchange lesses historlcal data. The maximum exposure to credit risk at the
teporting date is the carrying value of each class of financial assets disclosed below, The Group does not hold collateral as secwrity. The Graup evaluates the concentration of risk with respect to trade
receivables as low on the basls of past default rates of its customers.

Far againg of Trade receivahles, refer note 14.
til) Financtal instruments and cash deposits
Credit risk from balances with banks is managed by the Group’s treasury department in aceordance with the Group's policy, Investments of surplus funds are made only with approved counterparties and

within gredit limits assigned 1o each counterparty. Counterparty credit limits are reviewad by the Group’s Board of Directors on an annual basis. The limits are set to minimise the concentration of risks and
therelore mitigate financial loss through counterparty’s poteniial failure 10 make payments.

The Group's maximum exposure 1o crodit Hisk for the compongnis of the Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2025 and March 31, 2029 Is the carrying amounts as below.

Particulars As at Asat

March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Security Deposits (Current & Non Current) 702.61 766.76
Loan to emplayees (Current & Non Current) 107.68 79.37
Trade receivables 78,756.92 62,719.72

Liquidity risk
The Group monitors its risk of a shortage of funds deing a liquidity planning exercise.

The Group's objective Is 1o malntain a balance between contlnuity of funding and flexibility threugh the use of shert term borrowing facilities like bank overdralt, cash credit facility and buyers credit facility.
The Group's treasury function reviews the liquidity position on an angeing basis. The Group assessed the concentratian of tisk with respect to refinancing its debt and concluded it to be low. The Group has
access to a sufficient variety of sources of funding and surplus cash and cash equivalent on the basis of expected cash llaw. The table below summarises the maturity profile of the Group's financial liahilities
based on contractual undiscounted payment :

As at March 31, 2025

Total undiscounted Carrylng amount of
Particulars On demand Less than 12 months 1-5 years >S5 years contractual cash flows Viabilltles

Borrawings 54,643.63 13,334.14 21,425.47 - 89,403.25 B89,403.25
Lease ligbilities - 5564.88 1,511.83 1,085.40 3.162.11 3.097.68
Security deposit from customers/ others - 266.95 63.51 - 320.48 33045
Interast accrued but not due on borrawings - 169.04 - - 260.04 269.04
Employee related liabilities - 670.21 - - 670.21 670.21
Pavable for capital goods . 2,82283 - - 282283 182283
Trade pavables - 23.127.58 - - 23,122.58 23,127.58
Financial guarantee * - 3,900.00 - - 3.900.00 3,900.00

54,643.63 44,955.63 23,000.81 1,085.40 1,23,685.48 1,23,621.04
As at March 312024

Total undiscounted Carrying amount of
Particulars Ondemand Less than 22 months 1-5years >Syears contractual eash Mlows Hablites

Berrowings 24,349.84 11,853.63 13,661.56 - 49,865.03 49,865.04
Lease liabilities - 1,043.33 7.052.39 1,231.37 9,327.08 3,658.12
Security deposit from customers/ others - 290,06 2551 - 315.57 315.57
Interest accrued but not due on borrowings - 153.41 - - 15341 153.41
Employee related liabilities - 631.43 - - 631.43 631.43
Payable for capital goods . 1,508.58 - - 1,508.58 1,508.58
Interast payable to related parties - 16.86 - - 15.86 16.86
Trade pavables - 17,787.55 - - 17,787.55 17,787.5%
Financial guarantee * - 2.340.00 - - 2,340.00 2,340.00

24,329.84 as5,624.84 20,733.45 1,231.37 81,945.51 76,216.55

Excessive risk concentration

Concentrations arise when a number of counteparties are engaged in similar business activities, or activities in the same gaographical reglon, or have 2conomic features that vould cause their ability to meet
contractiral obligations to be similarly alfected by changes in economic, palitical or other conditions. Concentrations indicate the relative sensitivity of the Group’s performance to development aflecting a
particular industry. The Group is not exposed to excessive concentration since the custamers of the Group are not engaged in similar business activities, The Graup has a strong custoner base and derives its
revenues from many customers belonging to different industries and corresponding trade receivables from varied number of customers.
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38. Capltal management

The Board's policy maintalns a strong capital base so as tg maintain investor, creditor and market confidence and to-sustain future development of the business.
‘The Beard of Directors monitor the return on capital emplayed as well as the level of dividend to sharehelders.

For the purpose of the Group's capltal managerment, capita! includes issued equity capltal and gf | reserves attril
cbjective of the Group®s capital ma isto tmise the sharehofders’ value.

1o the equity holders. The primary

The Group manages its capital structure and makes adjustrnents in light of changes In economic conditions and the requirgments of the Anancial covenants. To
maintaln or ad]ust the capital structure, the Group may adjust the dividend payment to shareholders, return capital to sharehalders or issue new shares.

The Group monltcrs capital using a gearing ratio, which is net debt divided by total capital plus net debt. The Group includes within net debt, interest bearing
loans and barrowings, trade and ather payables, fess cash and cash equivalents,

Partlculars As at Asat
March 31, 2025 March 31,2024

Trade payables [Nate 17(b}) 23.122.58 17,782.55

Other financlal llabllities [Note 17{c)] 5,149.26 3,898.01

Lease liabitities [Note 32{a)l 3,097.68 3,658.12

Borrowlngs [Note 12{al) 89,403.24 49,865.04

Less: Cash and cash equivalents (Note 15} (176.76) {300.22)
Net debts 1,20,601.01 74,908.51
Tatal equity 1,52,128.75 1,36,639.84

Capital and Net Debt 2,72,729.75 2,11,548.34
Gearing ratio (%) 44.22%} 35.41%

No changes were made in the objectives, policles or procasses for managing capltal during the year ended March 31, 2025 and year ended March 31, 2024.
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33. Employee benefits
Defined Contribution Plans - Provident Fund:

The Group makes contribution towards employees’ provident fund. The Group has contributed the following amount to:

Particulars March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Employers contribution to Provident fund (including Employee's Pension Scheme 1995)* 319.54 267.19
Total 319.54 267.19

*net of benefit Rs nil lacs { March 31, 2024 : Rs. 6,82 lacs) received under Aatmanirthar Bharat Rojgar Yojana,

Defined Bengfit Plans - Gratuity:
The gratuity plan is governed by the Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972. Under the Act, employees who have completed at least five years of service are entitled to specific

benefit. The fevel of benefit provided depends on the member's length of service and salary retirement age. The employee is entitled to a benefit equivalent to 15 days
salary last drawn salary for each completed year of service with part thereof in excess of six months. The same is payable on termination of sarvice or retirement ar
death whichever is earlier. The gratuity plan of the Group is unfunded.

The present value of the obligation under such defined benefit plan is determined based on an actuarial valuation as at the reporting date using the projected unit
credit method, which recognises each period of service as giving rise to additional unit of employee benefit entitlement and measures each unit separately to build up
the final obligation. The obligations are measured at the present value of the estimated future cash flows. The discount rate used for determining the present value of
the cbligation under defined benefit plans is based on the market yields on Government bonds as at the date of actuanal valuation. Remeasurement gains and losses
{net of tax) are recognised immediately in the Other Comprehensive Income (GC1),

The following tables summarise the components of net benefit expense recognised in the statement of profit or loss and amounts recognised in the balance sheet
for the gratuity plan:

Particulars March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Gratuity Gratuity
{Unfunded) {Unfunded)
Change in benefit obligation
Present value of obligation as at the beginning of the year 712.58 619.20
Add: Current service cost™ 128.09 116.43
Add: Past service cost . -
Add: Interest cost 54.84 45.43
Add: Actuarial (Gain)/ loss 17.00 {44.21)
Less: Benefits paid (79.16} {24.27)
Less; Adjustment for subsidiary 12.99) -
Liability recognized in the financial statements 830.36 712.58

* including Rs. Nil {March 31, 2024 : Rs. 12.70 lacs} charged to pre-operative expenses.

Amount recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss:

March 31, 2025 Warch 31, 2024
Current service cost 128.10 103.73
Interest cost on benefit obligation 54.84 45.43
Past service cost - -
Amount secognised In Statement of Profit and Loss 132.94 149.16
Amount recognised in Other Comprehensive tncome:

March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Actuartal changes arising from changes in financial assumptions 23.43 9.71
Experience adjustments [22.15) {53.91)

Amount of loss recognised in Other Comprehensive Income 1.28 (44.20}
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The principal assumptions used in determining gratuity Hability for the Group's plans are shown below:

March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024

Discount rate {%) 7.93-7.25 7.23-7.36
Future salary increases (%) 550-9.00 5.50-9.00
Retirement Age {Years) 58-60 58-60
Withdrawal rate

Up to 30 years 3% 3%

From 31 to 44 years 2% 2%

Above 44 years 1% 1%
Martality table ALM {2012-2014) 1ALM (2012-2014)

A quantitative sensitivity analysis for significant assumption as at March 31, 2025 is as shown below:
Gratuity Plan

March 31, 2025
Assumptions Discount rate Future salary increase
0.5% increase 0.5% decrease 0.5% increase 0.5% decrease
Impact on defined benefit obligation {43.086) 47.43 45.45 {41.83)
A quantitative sensitivity analysis for significant assumption as at March 31, 2024 [s as shown below:
Gratuity Plan
March 31, 2024
Assumptions Discount rate Future salary increase
0.5% increase 0.5% decrease 0.5% increase 0.5% decrease

Impact on defined benefit obligation [37.69) 41.50 40.29 (37.21)

The sensitivity analyses above has been determined based on the method that extrapolates the impact on defined benefit obligation as a result of reasanable changes
in key assumptions occurring at the end of the reporting year.

Sensitivities due to mortality and withdrawals are not material and hence impact of change not calculated. Sensitivities as to rate of inflation, rate of increase of
pensions in payments, rate of increase of pensions before retirement & life expectancy are not applicable being a lump sum benefit on retirement.

The maturity profile of defined benefit obligation are as follows:

March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Rs. Rs.
Within the next 12 months (next annual reporting year) 108.51 106.33
Between 1and 2 years 32,70 21.58
Between 2 and 3 years 17.59 22.47
Between 3 and 4 years 12.18 13.26
Between 4 and 5 years 33.69 11.30
Between 5 and 6 years 23.96 25.16
Beyond 6 years 601.73 512.48
Total expected payments 830.36 712.58

The average duration of the defined benefit plan abligation at the end of the reporting year is 17.76 to 21.67 years.
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40, List of subsidiaries, step down subsidlary and [oint venture with ownership % and place of business

Principal Place of Percentage of Percentage of Method used to
Name of the Investees Principal Activity Businoss Ownership (Asat  Ownership(Asat  account for the
March 31, 2025)  March 31, 2024) investment

Subsidiarles

CMR Nikkie India Private Uimited (Subsidiary) Producers of Aluminium based Die Cast 74.00% 74.00% Deemned cost
Alloys

CMR Toyotsu Aluminium India Private Limited (Subsidiary) Producers of Aluminium based Die Cast 70.00% 70.00% Deemed cost
Alloys

CMR Woelfare Foundation Corpaorate Social Work 90.00% 90.00% Deemed cost

CMR Aluminium Private Limited {Subsidiary)*® Producers of Aluminium based Die Cast 99.99% 99.99% Deemed cost
Alloys but operations are yet to be
started India

CMR-Kataria Recycling Private Limited®*** Treatment and recycling of ferrous, non- 2.00% 51.00% At Cost

{up to June 30, 2024) ferrous metal serap and ELV (End of Life
Yehicles)

CMR ECO Aluminium Private Limited* All kind of ferrous and non ferrous metal 100.00% 100.00% At Cost
including aluminium, zinc, copper, iron
and steel, plastic and billets etc

CMR Green LLC*** Trading, import and export of Aluminium UsA 100.00% 100.00% At Cost
Scrap.

Joint Venture

CMR - Chiho Recycling Technologies Private Limited Segregation, regycling, treatment and 50.00% 50.00% Deemed cost
disposal of metal waste

CMR - Chiho Industrics India Private Limited Scgregation, recycling, treatment and india 50.00% 50.00% Deemed cost
disposal of metal waste

Nikkei CMR Aluminium India Private Uimited Segregation, recycling, treatment and 26.00% 26.00% Deemed cost
disposal of metal waste

*During the FY 23-24, the Parent Company has made investments of Rs. 14,000 lacs in 0.01% optionally convertible redeemable preference shares of CMR ECO Aluminium Private timited by way of
conversion of loanfadvances and subscription to rights Issue of optionally convertible redecmable preference shares at premtum in the following manner:

-18,603 0.01% optionally convertible redeemable preference shares of CMR ECO Aluminium Private Limited were issued and allotted to the Parent Company, through conversion of unsecured loan/
advances of Rs. 10,000 lacs in three tranches The canversion of shares was made at premium.

- 7,042 0.01% optionally convertible redeemable preference shares of Rs. 10 each (fully paid up) of Rs. 4,000.00 lacs were issued and alloted by way of rights issue.

**During the FY 23-24, the Parent Company has made a tnvestment of Rs. 10,000 lacs in 0.01% optionally convertible redeemable preference shares in CMR Aluminium Private Limited by way of
conversion of loanfadvances and subseription to rights Issue of optionally convertible redeemable preference shares at premium in the following manner:-

-31,51,285 0.01% optionally convertible redeemable preference shares of CMR Aluminium Private Limited were issued and allotied to the Parent Company, through conversion of unsecured loan/
advances of Rs. 7,000 lacsin three tranches vide their Board Resolution dated 03rd April, 2023, 03rd July, 2023 and 03rd October, 2023 respectively. The conversion of shares was made at premium.

- 12,76,595 0.01% optionally convertible redeemable preference shares of Rs. 10 each {fully paid up) of Rs. 3,000 were issued and alloted by way of rights issue.

*+* buring the FY 23-24, the Parent Company has made investment of Rs. 0.83 lacin 1000 equity shares of $ 1 each in CMR Green LLC making It as a 100% subsidiary of the Company.

***4nthe FY 24-25, CMR Kataria Private Limited has issued 24,30,007 eguity shares on june 11, 2024 by conversion of loan amounting to Rs. 243.00 lacs (including loan of Rs, 207.96 lacs and interest of
Rs. 10.92 lacs as at March 31, 2024). Further, the Parent Company has, subsequent to year end, entered Iinto an agreement dated July 01, 2024 and sold 33,28,793 equity shares at a total value of Rs. 1
lacs. The group will record a profit of Rs. 92.02 lacs in the consolidated financial statements on divestment of the said subsidiaries Company.
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42. Material Partly owned subsidiaries

Financial information of subsidiaries that have material non-controlling interests is provided below:

Proportion of equity interest held by non-controlling interests

Country of
Name Incorporation and March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
operation
CMR Nikkei India Private Limited India 26.00% 26.00%
CMR-Toyotsu Aluminium India Private Limited India 30.00% 30.00%
CMR Welfare Foundation India 10.00% 10.00%
CMR Aluminium Private Limited India 0.01% 0.01%
CMR-Kataria Recycling Private Limited* India - 49.00%
*CMR-Kataria Recycling Private Limited is not a subsidiary any more w.e.f June,30 2024,
Information regarding non-controlling interest
Name March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Accumulated balances of material non-controlling interest
CMR Mikkei India Private Limited 8,021.42 7,292.52
CMR-Toyotsu Aluminium Ingdia Private Limited 6,836.15 6,310.57
CMR Welfare Foundation 6.48 1.51
CMR-Kataria Recycling Private Limited - (144.92)
Total Comprehensive income allocated to material non-
controlling interest
CMR Nikkei India Private Limitad 728.90 350.99
CMR-Toyotsu Aluminium India Private Limited 525.44 339.31
CMR Welfare Foundation 4.98 1.62
CMR-Kataria Recycling Private Limited - (112.46)
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42{a). Information In respect of Joint Ventures:

Particulars CMR - Chiho Recycling Technologies Private CMR - Chiho Industries India Private Limited Nikkel CMR Aluminlum Indla Private Limited
Limited

{Unaudited} | {Unaudited) {Unaudited) | {Unaudited) {Unadited) | {Audited}
Country on incorporation India India India
Accounting period ended pMarch 31, 2025 March 31, 2024 March 31, 2025 March 31,2024 March 31, 2025 March 33,2024
Balance Sheat
Current assets 745.43 74543 5,348.15 5,348.15 7,376.35 2,698.73
Non-current assets - - 26.39 26.39 10,362.4% 9,175.48
Current liabilities 4.38 4.38 1,340.89 1,340.89 6,564.84 707.71
Non-current liabilities - - . . 8,654.61 6,740.76
Equity 741.05 741.05 4,033,65 4,033.65 2,519.38 4,425.74
Statement Of Profit and Loss
Revenue - - - - 4,762.98 69.36
Qther income - - . 9.25 42.33 51.56
Total Revenue - - - 9,25 4,805.31 120,92
Cost of Materials Consumed - . - 4.83 3,612.31 60.37
Purchase of Stock in Trade - - - - - -
Change in inventorics of Finished Goods, Work in Progress - - - - - -
Employee Benefits Expenses - - - - 609.33 7.22
Finance Costs - - - 0.21 873.65 22,76
Depreciation and amortisation - . - - 514.72 34.41
Other Expenses - 0.23 - 15.53 1,092.65 152.23
Total Expenses - 0.23 - 20.57 6,702.66 276.59
Profit/{Loss) before tax e {0.23) - {11.32) {1,857.35) {156.07)
Tax expenses
Current tax - - - - - -
Deferred tax {credit)/charge - - - - - -
Income Tax earlier Year - 14,15
Total Tax expense - - - - - 14.15
Proflt/{Loss) After Tax - {0.23) - {11.32} {1,897.35] {170.22)
Other Comprehensive Income
ltems that will not be reclassified to profit or loss - - - - - -
Re-measurement gainf{loss) on defined benefit plans - . - - - -
Income tax effect - - - - - -
Total Comprehensive Income for the year - {0.23) - {11.32) (1,897.35) {170.22)
Group's share of profit/{loss) for the year - (0.11) - {5.66 {493.31) {a3.26
Contingent Liabilities - . 538.17 538.17 - -
Capital Commitment - - - - -

Note: In view of the matters detailed in Note 43(a} and 43(b} to the Consolidated Financial Statements in respect of 2 joint ven
Technologies Private Limited, these joint venture companies are not

considerad for consolidation in the Consalidated Financial Statements for the FY 2024-25.
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Note 43(a) - Additional Notes relating to one of a Joint Venture namely CMR - Chiha [ndustries Indla Private Limited:

1) During the financial years ended March 31, 2022, and March 31, 2023, the said Joint Venture Company entered into certain related party trade transactions, which were noted
as dissented in the Soard meeting at that time due to ongoing differences with Chiho Environment Global Holdings Umited's members concerning technology and operationat
matters. These issues are not yet reached on a conclusive resolution.

2} In the board meeting of the joint venture company held on December 13, 2021, the board of the Joint venture company took the note of the Shareholder Group represented by
CMR Green Technologies Limited Shareholders claim of USD 81 million (equivalent amount in INR Is Rs. 61,403.67 laes) on CEG Shareholders represented by Chiho Environment
Glabal Holdings Limited towards matters related to operational disputes, which are described further below in the note and Chiho Environmental Global Holdings Ltd affiliate
entities clalm of approx. USD 1.3 million on the jeint venture for the material supplied to the company.

Apart from the above claims noted in the joint venture company’s board meetings held on December 13, 2021 and December 22, 2021, the joint venture company’s operations
have been significantly impacted since quarter ended December 31, 2021 after the sourcing of the scrap motors stopped and shareholders raised disputes about various business
activities such as joint venture company not achieving operations as per business plan; payment not made against the supplies to ane Shareholder Group; unilateral functioning of
the joint venture company’s operations by one Shareholder Group; continuous non-agreement between the directors to approve the business transactions, including banking
transactions and matters at the board meetngs; significant related party transactions entered by the joint venture company not approved by the board; pre-arbitration
notice/mail by one Shareholder Group to another Shareholder Group etc.

As at March 31, 2022, the joint venture company’s operations were completely stopped, the significant value of inventories lying in the joint venture company were sold, the
employees of the Joint venture company were transferred to group entities of one Shareholder Group; the significant plant and equipment were dismantled and some of them
were disposed to group entities of one of the Shareholder Group etc. Accordingly pursuant to applicable provision of the Companies Act, 2013, Memorandum and Article of
Assaociation of the joint venture company and Joint Venture Agreement dated 25 November 2015 between CMR Green Technologies Limited and Chiho Environmental Global
Holdings Limited, the Joint venture company’s Board of Directors approved the cireular resolution dated June 28, 2022 that “due to discontinuation of the joint venture company’s
business operations as on reporting date and period subsequent to the reporting date, the board do hereby pass the resolution that the joint venture company ceased its business
aperations and accordingly financial statements of the joint venture company should be prepared on the basis that the joint venture company is not a golng concern entity”.

In view of the above assessment made by the joint venture company’s Board of Directors that joint venture company’s operations were discontinued and its business operations
ceased, it was concluded that, use of the going concern basls of accounting in the preparatlon of the financial statements is considered inappropriate and thus the financial
statements of the joint venture company for the year ended March 31, 2022, March 31, 2023, March 31, 2024 and March 31, 2025 have not been prepared on a golng concern
basis.

Note 43(b] - Additional Notes relating to one of a Joint Venture namely CVR - Chiho Recycling Technologies Private Limited:

1) During the financial year ended March 31, 2022, there were operational disputes between both the Joint Venturers Le. CMR Green Technalogies Umited and Chiho
Environmental Glabal Holdings Umited.

Buring the year ended March 31, 2022, the joint venture company’s operations have completely stopped, all the inventories lying In the joint venture company were sold, the
significant plant and equipment were dismantled and some of them have been disposed to group entities of one of the Shareholder Group etc. Accordingly, pursuant to applicable
provision of the Companies Act, 2013, Memorandum and Article of Association of the joint venture company and Joint Venture Agreement dated between CMR Green
Technologles Limited and Chiho Environmental Global HoldIngs Limited, the joint venture company’s Board of Directors approved the circular resolution dated June 23, 2022 that
#due to discontinuation of the Jaint venture company’s business operations as on reporting date and period subsequent to the reporting date, the board do hereby pass the
resalution that the joint venture company has ceased its business aperations and accordingly financial statements of the joint venture company should be prepared on the basis
that the joint venture company is not a going concern entity”.

In view of the above assessment made by the joint venture company’s Board of Directors that joint venture company’s operations have been discontinued and its business
operations have ceased, it was concluded that, use of the going concern basis of accounting in the preparation of the financial statements is consldered inappropriate and thus the
financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2022, March 31, 2023, March 31, 2024 and March 31, 2025 have not been prepared on a going concern basis,

During the year ended March 31, 2025, the Jaint Venture Company has not entered into any related party transactions. However, the following transaction pertaining to the
financial year 2023-24 and is subject to the approval of the Board:

|tame of the Related Parties Nature of Transactlon March, 2025 March, 2023

CMR Green Technologies Limited Business support services (net - 65.11
of credit note}

Total - 65,11

czé;;.-cd A%
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44. Statement contalnlng salient features, pursuant to Schedule It of the Companles Act 2013, of subsidiaries as per Separate financial statements of cach eatity

March 31, 2025
Net Assets §.e. total assets minus Share In Profit and Loss Share Inn other comprehensive Share in total cemprehensive
total liabilitles {ncome tncome
Name of the entlty In the Group As%of {Amount in Rs. As % of {Amount In As % of (Amountin As % of {Amount In Rs.
Consolidated laes} Consolidated Profit]  Rs. lacs) Consalidated Rs. lacs} Cansolidated lacs)
Net Assets & Llass Other Prafit & Loss
Comprehensive
Inrorr
Parent
CMPR Green Technologles Umited 95.49% 1,45,263.81 52%| 9,609.41 88% {13.12) 61.96% 9,5965.28
Indlan Subsidiaries
CMR-NIkkel India Private Limited 20.28% 30,851.62 18% 2.801.19 -15% 2.26 18.10%| 2,803.45
CMR-Toyotsu Aluminlum [ndla Private Limited 14.98% 22,786.75 11% 1,748.16 -23% 331 11.31% 1,751.47
CMR Welfare Foundatlon 0.04% 64.93 0% 49.82 0% - 0.32% 49.82
CMR Alumialum Private Limited 5.58% 8,492,890 19% 2,992.85 49% {7.30) 19.28% 2,985.56
MR ECO Aluminium Private Limited -0.80% {1,213.15) 8% {1,2072.07) 0%! - -7.79% (1,202.07
[indlan Jolnt Ventures
CMR - Chiho Recycling Technologies Private Limited 0.24% 370.52 0% ) 0% ) 0.00% :
CBAR - Chiho Industrles India Private Limited 1.33% 2.016.82 0% - [1}:1 - 0.00% -
Nikkel CMR Aluminlum India Private Limited 0.43%| 658.55 -3% 1493.31) 0% - -3.18% {493.31)
Non- Controlling Interast
CMR-Nikkei India Private Limited 5.27% 8,021.42 5% 728.31 4% 0.59 4.71% 728.80
CMR-Tayaisu Al jum indla Private Limited 4.49% 5.836.15 3% 524.45 1% 0.99 3.39% 525.44
CMR Wellare Foundatlon 0.00% 648 0% 498 0% - 0.03%! 4.98
CMR Atuminlum Private Limited 0.00% = 0% - 17 - 0.00%| -
|tn:er co elimination and ad|ustments In consolidation -47.35% {72,029.07} -8% {1.255.04) 11% {1.58) -8.11% {1,256.62)
|TOTA!. 100% 1,52,128.74 1003 15,503.76 100%| {14.85) 100% 15.488.92
March 31,2023
Net Assets i.e. total assets minus Share in Profitand Loss Share in other comprehensive Share in total comprehensive
total liabilities income income
" fth : As % of fAmount InAs.  |As% of tAmountin |As % of [Amountin  |As%of {Amountin Rs.
ame of the entity In the Group Consolldated  |facs) Consalidated Profit|Rs. lacs) Consolidated  |Rs. lacs) Consolldated  [lacs)
Net Assets & Loss Other Prolit & Loss
Comprehensive
Income
Parent
CMR Green Technolegies Limited 95.29% 1,35,667.54 67%| (56,345.46) 73% 24.21 67.19% {56,321.25)
tndian Subsidiaries
CMR-Nikkel Indla Private Limited 20,53% 28 048.16 -2% 1,348.06 6% 1.93 -1.61% 1,245.99
CMR-Toyotsu Aluminlum India Private timited 15.39% 21,035.25 -1% 1,124.87 18% 6.13 -1.35% 1,131.01
€MR Welfare Faundatlan 0.01% 15.22 @ 16.24 0% - -0.02% 16.24
CMR Aluminlum Private Umited 4.03% 5,508.34 2% 1,782.07 2% 0.75 -2.13% 1,782.82
CMR-Katarla Recycling Private Limited -0.22% [(295.99) 0% {229.65) 0% 0.14 0.27%] [229.51)
CMR ECO Aluminium Private Umited 0.00%) (6.09) % [7.89) o% - 0.01%| (7.89)
Indian Joint Ventures
CMR - Chiho Recyeling Technologles Private Umited 0.27% $70.52 0% ©.12) 0% ) 0.00% @iy
CMR - Chiho Industries India Private Limited 1.48% 2.016.82 0% {5.66) 0% - 0.01% {5.661]
Nikkel CMR Aluminium India Private Limited 0.84% 1.149.52 0% {46.60) (1.4 - 0.06%) {46.60)]
Non. Cantrolling Interest
CMR-Nikkel India Private Limited 5.34% 7,292.52 0% 350.50 2% 0.50 G42% 351.00
CMR-Toyolsu Aluminium indla Private Limited 4.62% 6,310.57 0% 337.46 s%l 1.84 0,408 339.30
CME Welfare Foundatlon 0.00% 151 0% 1.62 0% - 0.005 162
CMR Aluminjum Private Limited 0.00% - 0% - 0% - 0.00% -
CMR-Kataria Recycling Private Limited -0.11% {144.92) 0% [112.53) 1.1 0.07 0.13% {112.46)
|lnler co elimination and adjustments in consolidation -51.47% {70,329.05} 38%|  (32.068.60) - 7% {2.41} 38.26% {32,071.01)
ITOTAL 100% 1,36,639.82 100%) {83,855.69) 100%] 33.17 10034 [83,822.52)
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45. Disclosure of Hedging activities and derivatives

The Group is exposed to certain risks relating to its ongoing business operations. The primary risks managed using derivative instruments is
commaodity price risk.

Derivatives designated as hedging instruments

Commuodity price risk:

The Group is engaged in the business of manufacturing and selling of aluminium-based die cast alloys and zinc alloys in India. The Group is also
angaged in the business of segregation and sale of metal scrap as a part of manufacturing process {with a specific focus on stainless steel, brass,
copper and zinc).

The Group is exposed to risk of volatility in the prices of Aluminium, Copper, Brass and Stainless Steel etc. The Group has a significant portion of
priced inventory or purchase orders at any point in time during the year which exposes the Group to Commodity price risk.

The Group has decided to apply hedge accounting for forward commodity derivative contracts that meets qualifying criteria of hedge relationship.

The Group uses derivative financial instruments such as forwards to hedge its risks associated with fluctuation in the price of the products
(Atuminium, Copper, Brass and Stainless Steel etc.) in accordance with the risk management strategy outlined by the Board of Directors.

The Group designates forward commodity contracts under fair value hedges to hedge the exposure to changes in prices of the commodities for its
unrecognized firm commitment and existing inventory.

At the inception of a hedge relationship, the Group formally designates and documents the hedge relationship to which the Group wishes to apply
hedge accounting and the risk management objective and strategy for undertaking the hedge. The effectiveness of hedge instruments is assessed and
measured at inception and on an ongoing basis.

The Group frequently resets (i.e. discontinues and restarts} hedging relationships because both the hedging instrument and the hedged item
frequently change, i.e. the entity uses a dynamic pracess in which bath the exposure and the hedging instruments used to manage that exposure do
not remain the same for long.

{A) The Asset and Liability position of outstanding derivative financial instruments is given below:

Asat As at
March 31, 2025 March 21, 2024
Fair Value Hedge Nature of Risk Liability Asset Net Fair Value Liability Asset Net Fair
being Hedged Value

Commodity forward Price Risk

contracts Component ] _ _
Current 643.41 1,299.60 {656.19) 1,268.69 309.48 959.21
Noan-Current - - - - - -
Total 643.41 1,299.60 (656.19) 1,268.69 309.48 959,21

The maturity profile far commaodity forwards ranges from April 2025 to June, 2025. Hedge Ratio of .9 : 1 is used by the Group.
Derivative assets are part of other financial assets included in Notes 10 (c). Derivative liabilities are part of other financial liabilities included in Notes
17 (c).

{B) Outstanding position and fair value of commaodity derivative financia! instruments:

Commodity Buy Contracts Sell Contracts Net Open |MTM {Loss}/Gain
Position
Long/[Short}
{Qty. in MT) {Qty. in MT) {Qty. in MT) {Amt in lacs)

As at March 31, 2025
Aluminium - 34,675 (34,675) 996.49
Zinc - 1,300 {1,300) 21.21
Copper - 1,400 {1,400) (496.73)
Nickel - 774 (774) 90.36
Total - 38,148 {38,149} 611.33
As at March 31, 2024
Aluminium - 15,000 {15,000} {883.18}
Zinc - 1,125 {1,125) 62.53
Copper - 2,425 {2,425) {322.92)
Nickel - 360 {360 184.36
Total - 18,910 (18,910 {959.21)
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(C) The adjustment as a part of the carrying value of inventories and firm commitment arising on account of fair value hedges 1s as follows:

Increase/ {Decrease) in Inventory Value

Inventory {including As at March 31, | Asat March 31,
GIT) 2025 2024
Aluminium 173.73 980.77
Copper {167.84) 89.76
Stainless Steel 1.53 (157.01)
Zinc 27.67 {37.14)
Total 35.09 876.38

Increase/ (Decrease) inp

urchase firm commitment

As at March 31, As at March 31,
Inventory Type
2025 2024
Aluminium 149.19 12.6%1
Copper (179.21) 100.54
Stainless Stee! 1.45 (13.49)
Zinc 51.81 {15.39)
Total 23.24 84.27

(D) Details of Ineffectiveness on forward commodity contracts designated as fair value hedges:

March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Type Realised Unrealised Total Realised Unrealised Total
Loss/(Gain) Loss/(Gain) Loss/{Gain) Loss/{Gain}
Aluminium {454,585} {77.40}) {531.99) (247.94) {110.19} (358.13)
Copper {85.17) {58.26) {143.43) {31.08) 45.66 14.57
Stainless Steel {205.40) {8.69) {214.09) 334.35 {9.99}) 324.36
Zinc {92.37) {2.68) (95.05) 146.93 {13.86) 133.07
Total {837.53) (147.03) {984.56) 202.26 {88.38) 113.87
(E} Details of realised and unrealised loss on undesignated portion of fair value hedge: .
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Particulars Realised Unrealised Total Realised Unrealised Total
Loss/{Gain) Loss/(Gain) ot Loss/(Gain) Loss/{Gain} ota
Aluminium 4.09 - 4.09 190.35 - 190.35
Copper 57.07 {7.74) 49.33 {42.73) 86.96 44.24
Zinc 99.66 - 99,66 37.71 - 37.71
Stainless Steel (28.06} 15.73 (12.33) {227.28} - {227.28)
Total 132.76 7.99 140.75 {41.95) 86.96 45.02,

The Group has subsequent to the year end settled/rollover the contracts outstanding as at March 31, 2025 and incurred a net gain of Rs 7,805.23
lacs {including amount to be payable to subsidiary companies) as against amount of MTM gain of Rs. 623.18 lacs appearing as at March 31, 2025.

Forward Contracts:

As at the year end, the net open position of forward contracts are as follows:

Currency Buy Contracts Sell Contracts Net Open  |MTM {Loss)/Gain
Position
iaty) (atv) {aty) Amount in lacs
UsD - 30,00,000 {30,00,000} 10.71
Total - 30,00,000 {30,00,000} 10.71
s @' .
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47

Other $tatutory Information

{1} The Graup does not have any Benaml property, where any procesding has been initiated or pending against the Group for holding any Benami property

{I}) The Group does nat have any transactions with companies struck off.

ili) The Group does not have any charges or satisfaction which Is yet to be registered with ROC beyond the statutory pericd.

[iv} The Group have not traded or Invested in Crypto currency of Virtual Currency during the financtal year.

(v} The Group have not advanced or loaned or invested funds to any other persan(s) or entity(les), including fareign entitles {Intermediaries) with the understarding that the Intermediary shall:

a) directly or Indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entitles identified in any manner whatsoever by or on hehalf of the Group (Ultimate Beneficlaries); or

b) provide any guarantee, security ar the like to or on behalf of the Ultimate Benefictaries;

{vi) The Group have not recelved any fund from any person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (Funding Party) with the understanding twhether recorded in writing or otherwise} that the Group
shall:

2} directly ot indirectly lend or [nvest [n other persans or entities Identified in any manner whatsoevar by or on behalf of the Funding Party (Ultimate Benefidaries} or;

) provide any guarantee, security or the like an behall of the Ultimate Benefldlaries,

{vii) The Group does not have any such transactlon which is not recorded in the books of accounts that has been surrendered or disclosed as income during the year in the tax assessments under the

The Holding Company, subsidlaries and joint venture which are companies incorparated in Indla and whose financial statements have been audited under the Act have plied with the req its
of audit trail except for the following:

The group has used accounting software Infor LN and Payroll software far maintaining its books of account which has a feature of recording audit trail [edit log) lacility and the same has operated
throughout the year for all relevant transactions recorded in the software, except that audit trall feature is not enabled for certaln master tables and direct changes to the underlying database using
privileged/ administrative access rights in respect af tnfar LN, Further, no Instance of audit trall feature being tampered with, in respect of accounting solftware where the audit trall has been enabled.
The audit trail has been presented by the company for these saftware as per the statutary requirement for record rerention.

The accompanylng nates are an Integral part of the consalidated financlal statements [note 1 to47).
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